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Territorial
“Bancorp Inc.

CHAIRMAN AND CEO'S MESSAGE |
Feilow Shareholders:

December 2012 marked the end of our third full year as-a public. company. The past year showed some
signs of our economy beginning to stabilize and start the long path to recovery. The past few years have
been a challenge for all of us and we want to thank you for staying with us as we navigated through some

- difficult times. Hawaii’s economy is on an upward trend and we are hopeful that trend will continue. Our
visitor industry has not only survived but is now showing signs of strong growth over the next few years. One
indicator of this growth is that the number of airline seats to and from Hawaii has been increasing in 2012.
Real estate in Hawaii has recovered, with growing demand for new homes and condominiums. Recently two
new condominium projects in metropolitan Honolulu, one targeting high end investors/homeowners and the
other aimed at moderate income families, both sold out in hours. Also, we are seeing a decreasing inventory
of existing homes and condominiums for sale. The average length of time on the market before sale for both
homes and condominiums is also decreasing. The construction of the rail system on Oahu has received final
approval and alrgady spme federal funds for its construction have been received.

With diligence by our management team in reviewing our interest rates, we have been able to preserve a
strong balance sheet and maintain an acceptable net interest margin. For the year ended December 31, 2012,
the Company earned $14.8 million, or $1.47 per basic share and $1.45 per diluted share, compared to $12.8
million, or $1.19 per basic and $1.17 per diluted share for the year ended December 31, 2011. 2012 earnings
represented an increase of 15% over 2011. )

2012 Highlights and Financial Performance

+ 2012 was a year that showed signs. of the u.s. economy begmnlng a recovery. However, the world

economy is still unstable, especially in certain European countries. There is no certainty as to when
 they will resolve their issues. In the U, S our unemployment i is on a downward trend and we see

strong signs that the housing market has bottomed out. However, it will be a long time before we are.
able to get back to the economic stability that we prewously enjoyed. The U.S. stock market is very
bullish, with historical highs being reached with the potential for even more gains. However, there are
pockets of weakness and uncertainty. Many of our citizens are still unemployed, the cost of gasoline
remains very high, the cost of utilities continues to increase, and the continuing issue of the Federal
budget and sequestration causes us to exercise caution in viewing the future. ConS|der|ng aIl of these
factors, we are always reviewing our business results with our shareholders’ best interests in mind.
We believe we have done that well and are pleased that despite the uncertainties and difficulties, we
again have realized a significant increase in net income as compared to the previous year.

+ During the year, we were able to successfully continue our stock repurchase program, and from the-
beginning of our first repurchase program in September .of 2010 through the end of 2012, we. have
repurchased more than 1,684,000 shares. The cost of these shares reduces our shareholders’
equity, yet even with these repurchases, driven by our net income, our shareholders’ equity increased



from $214.0 million at the end of 2011 to $219.0 million at the end of 2012. Despite the impact on
shareholders’ equity, we firmly believe that the use of capital to repurchase shares is a decision that
benefits all of our shareholders, and our shareholders’ equity balance remains at a very strong level.

« In November of 2012, because of the possibility of higher income tax rates on dividends in 2013, we
declared a special dividend of $0.10 per share. We also increased our annual dividends from $0.34
per share in 2011 to $0.44 per share in 2012, giving our shareholders $0.54 in dividends for 2012, an
increase of almost 60%.

+ The Company’s total assets grew from $1.54 billion at December 31, 2011 to $1.57 billion at
December 31, 2012.

+ Total deposits grew by $71.7 million or 6.15% to $1.24 billion as we continued to increase our market
share by attracting new customers.

« In 2012, we set a record for dollar volume of loans originated.

+ Territorial Savings Bank continues to consistently maintain regulatory capital ratios that significantly
exceed the Federal “well-capitalized” standards and has a strong balance sheet and capital position.

«  Our ratio of non-performing assets to total assets at December 31, 2012 was 0.28%, which continues
to be one of the best ratios for bank holding companies in the nation.

¢ We are working to open our 28th branch, in Manoa, on the island of Oahu in 2013. This will be our
22nd branch on the island of Oahu.

As stated above, there is tangible evidence that Hawaii’'s economy is improving. As we noted last year,
however, if interest rates increase, this could adversely affect our cost of funds and our loan volume. Also,
the Dodd-Frank Act has increased regulatory issues as well as the cost of doing business for all financial
institutions. We are not isolated from this and we see more regulations coming in the future. During 2011,
our former regulator, the Office of Thrift Supervision, was absorbed into the Office of the Comptroller of

the Currency (OCC). While we have experienced two years of regulation by the OCC, all of the rules and
regulations that the OCC will apply to thrift institutions have not been totally settled and we are still facing an
uncertain transitional period. Despite all of these challenges, we remain confident in our ability to guide your
Company and that we will be able to execute our core mission of serving the State of Hawaii as a community
bank.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to thank all of our shareholders, employees and customers
for your continued confidence and support.

(. O

Allan S. Kitagawa
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President
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FORWARD-LOOKING:STATEMENTS

This Annual Report contains forward-looking statements, which can be identified by the use of words such as:“‘estimate,”

“project,” “believe,” “intend,” “anticipate,” “plan,” “seek,” “expect,” “will,” “may” and words of similar meaning. These forward-
looking statements include, but are not limited to:

. statements of our goals, intentjons and expectatxons

. statements regarding our business plans prospects, growth and operatmg strategies;

. statements regarding the ,asset qu-al;ty of our( loan and mvestment portfolios; and

. estimates of our risks and future costs and benefits.

These forward-looking statements are based on our current beliefs and expectations and are inherently subject to significant
business, economic and competitive uncertainties and contingencies, many of which are beyond our control. In addition, these
forward-looking statements are subject to assumptions with respect to future business strategies and decisions that are subject to

" change. Except as may be required by law, we disclaim any intention or obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements,
whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

The following factors among others, could cause actual results to differ materlally from the anticipated results or other
expectations expressed in ‘the forward- looking statements: :

. -general economic conditions, 1nternat10nally, natlonally or in our market areas, that are worse than expected

. competition among dep051tory and other ﬁnan01al 1nst1tut10ns

. inflation and changes in the interest rate environment that reduce our margins or reduce the fair value of financial
instruments;

» . adverse changes in the:securities markets;

« ~ changes in laws or government regulatlons or p011c1es affecting financial 1nst1tut10ns including changes in regulatory fees
and capital requ1rements

. our ability to enter new markets successfully and capltalxze on growth opportumtles

. our -ability to’ successfully integrate acquired entities, if any; o

. changes in consumer spending, borrowing and savings habits;

. changes in accounting policies and practices, as may be adopted by the bank regulatory agencies, the Financial
Accounting Standards Board, the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board; '

. changes in our organization, compensation'and benefit plans;

. the timing and amounthof revenues that we may recoénizev; .

» ' the value and marketability of collateral underlying our loan portfolios;

. the impact of recent legislation to restructure theUS financial and regulatory system;

. the quality and composition of our investment -portfolio'; '

. changes in our financial condition or results of operations that reduce capital available to pay dividends; and

. changes in the financial condition or future prospects of issuers of securities that we own.

Because of these and a wide variety of other ‘Uncertainties, our actual future results may be materially different from the results
indicated by these forward-looking statements. Please also see “Item 1A. Risk Factors.”



PART I

ITEM 1. Business
Territorial Bancorp Inc.

Territorial Bancorp Inc. is a Maryland corporation and owns 100% of the common stock of Territorial Savings Bank. On
July 10, 2009, we completed our initial public offering of common stock in connection with the mutual-to-stock conversion of
Territorial Mutual Holding Company, selling 12,233,125 shares of common stock at $10.00 per share and raising $122.3 million of
gross proceeds. Since the completion of our initial public offering, we have not engaged in any significant business activity other than
owning the common stock of and having savings deposits in Territorial Savings Bank. At December 31, 2012, we had consolidated
assets of $1.575 billion, consolidated deposits of $1.238 billion and consolidated stockholders’ equity of $219.0 million.

Our executive offices are located at 1132 Bishop Street, Suite 2200, Honolulu, Hawaii 96813. Our telephone number at this
address is (808) 946-1400.

Territorial Savings Bank

Territorial Savings Bank is a federally chartered savings bank headquartered in Honolulu, Hawaii. Territorial Savings Bank was
organized in 1921, and reorganized into the mutual holding company structure in 2002. Territorial Savings Bank is currently the
wholly-owned subsidiary of Territorial Bancorp Inc. We provide financial services to individuals, families and businesses through our
27 banking offices located throughout the State of Hawaii.

Territorial Savings Bank’s executive offices are located at 1132 Bishop Street, Suite 2200, Honolulu, Hawaii 96813. Our
telephone number at this address is (808) 946-1400.

Available Information

Territorial Bancorp Inc. is a public company, and files interim, quarterly and annual reports with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. These reports are on file and a matter of public record with the Securities and Exchange Commission and may be read
and copied at the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Public Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, NW, Washington, DC 20549.
The public may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the Securities and Exchange
Commission at 1-800-SEC-0330. The Securities and Exchange Commission maintains an Internet site that contains reports, proxy and
information statements, and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC (http://www.sec.gov).

Our website address is www.territorialsavings.net. Information on our website should not be considered a part of this annual
report.

General

Territorial Savings Bank’s business consists primarily of accepting deposits from the general public and investing those
deposits, together with funds generated from operations and borrowings, in one- to four-family residential mortgage loans and
investment securities. To a much lesser extent, we also originate home equity loans and lines of credit, construction, commercial and
other nonresidential real estate loans, consumer loans, multi-family mortgage loans and other loans. Territorial Savings Bank offers a
variety of deposit accounts, including passbook and statement savings accounts, certificates of deposit, money market accounts,
commercial and regular checking accounts and Super NOW accounts. Through our subsidiary, Territorial Financial Services, Inc., we
engage in insurance agency activities. We also offer various non-deposit investments to our customers, including annuities and mutual
funds, through a third-party broker-dealer.

Market Area

We conduct business from our corporate offices and from our 27 full-service branch offices located throughout the State of
Hawaii.

The largest sector of Hawaii’s economy is the visitor industry. The Hawaii Tourism Authority reported that 8.0 million visitors
came to the state in 2012, a 9.6% increase compared to 2011. The increase in visitor arrivals is primarily due to growth in the number
of visitors from the United States, Canada and Asia. Total visitor expenditures in 2012 totaled $14.333 billion, an 18.7% increase
compared to 201 1.

The unemployment rate for the State of Hawaii was 5.2% in December 2012, representing a decrease from a 6.6% rate in
December 2011. This rate continued to be lower than the unemployment rate of 7.8% for the United States. The growth in the visitor
industry has supported the local economy and kept the state’s unemployment rate lower than the national rate. The construction phase
of the City and County of Honolulu’s mass transit rail project is expected to start sometime in 2013. When the transit project starts, it
will give the construction industry a major boost as the project is projected to employ 10,000 people a year over the next eight years.




The number and median sale prices of existing single-family homes and condominium units sold increased in 2012 compared to
2011. Median home prices in.Hawaii have not declined as those reported on the mamland :

On the island of Oahu, the prlmary real estate market in Hawaii, sales of exrstmg single-family homes totaled 3,072 units for the
year ended December 31, 2012, an increase of 6.4% compared to sales in 2011. The number of condominium sales, a notable portion
of the overall housing market grew by 7.4% in 2012 compared to 2011. The median price paid on Oahu for a single-family home in
2012 was $625,000, an increase of 8.1% compared to the median prlce in 2011..The median price paid on Oahu for condominiums i in
2012 was $315,000, an increase of 5,0% compared to the median price in2011.

On the island of Maui, the second largest real estate market in. Hawaii, sales of existing single-family homes totaled 933 units in
2012; an increase of 3.5% compared to similar sales during 2011. The number of condominium sales increased by 7.9% in 2012
compared to 2011. The median price paid for a single-family home on Maui in 2012 was $470,000, an increase of 8.7% compared to
the median price in 2011. The median price paid on Maui for condommlums in 2012 was $359,000, a 15.8% increase compared to the
medlan price in 2011. :

Foreclosure and bankruptcy ﬁhngs fell in 2012 compared to 2011 There were 3,327 mortgage foreclosure cases in Hawaii in
2012, a 44.7% decrease from 2011. The decrease in foreclosure filings is attributed to Hawaii’s economy growing at a moderate rate
and a'Hawaii'law intended to protect homeowners” rights by requiring mediation in nonjudicial foreclosure cases. In 2012, there were
2,528 bankruptcy filings, a decrease of 24.0% compared to the number of ﬁlmgs in2011.

Competltlon

We face intense competltron in our market area both in makmg loans and attractmg deposits. We compete with commercial
banks, savings institutions, mertgage brokerage firms, credit unions, finance companies, mutual funds, insurance companies and
investment bankmg firms. Some of our competitors have greater name recognition and market presence that benefit them in attracting
business, and offer certain services that we do not or cannot provide.

Our deposit sources are:primarily concentrated in the communities surrounding our banking offices, located in all four counties
in the State of Hawaii. As of June 30, 2012 (the latest date for which information is publicly available), we ranked fifth in deposit
market share (out of 13 banks and thrift institutions with offices in Hawaii) in the State of Hawaii, with a 3.7% market share. As of
that date, our largest market share was in the City and County of Honolulu, where we ranked fifth in deposit market share (out of 13
banks and thrlft institutions Wlth offices in the City and County) with a 3.9% market share:

Lending Activities

Our primary lending activity is the origination of one- to four-family residential mortgage loans To a much lesser extent, we
also originate home equity loans and lines of credit, construction, commercial and other nonresidential real estate loans, consumer
loans, multi-family mortgage loans and commercial business loans. :

One- to Four-Family Residential Mortgage Loans. At December 31, 2012, $741.3 million, or 94.8% of our total loan portfolio,
consisted of one- to four-family residential mortgage loans. We offer conforming, fixed-rate and adjustable-rate residential mortgage
loans with maturities generally up to 30 years, and to a much more limited extent, of up to 40 years and nonconforming loans with
maturities of up to 50 years. There has beén little demand for adjustable-rate mortgage loans in our market area.

One- to four-family residential mortgage loans are getierally underwritten according to Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac guidelines,
and we refer to loans that conform to such guidelines as “conforming loans.” We generally originate both fixed- and adjustable-rate
mortgage loans in amounts up to the maximum conforming loan limits as established by the Federal Housing Finance Agency, which
is currently $625,500 for single-family homes located in the State of Hawaii. We also originate loans above this amount, which are
referred to as “jumbo loans.” These jumbo loan amounts are generally up to $1.0 million, although we do originate loans above this
amount. We generally originate fixed-rate jumbo loans with terms of up to 30 years. We have not originated significant amounts of
adjustable-rate jumbo loans in recent years due to customer preference for fixed-rate loans in our market area. We generally
underwrite jumbo loans in a manner similar to conforming loans. Jumbo loans are not uncommon in our market area.

We will originate loans with loan-to-value ratios in excess of 80%, up to and including a loan-to-value ratio of 100%. We
generally require private mortgage insurance for loans with loan-to-value ratios in excess of 80%. During the year ended
December 31, 2012, we originated $14.2 mllhon of one- to four-family residential mortgage loans with loan-to-value ratios in excess .
of 80%. We offer a variety of credit programs for low- to moderate-income and first-time home purchasers. These include our first
time home purchaser program, where the borrower will receive up to a 100 basis point reduction in points charged in connection with
the loan. We will also originate first mortgage loans to lower-income individuals who reside in rural census tracts where the U.S.
Department of Agriculture will issue a second mortgage and complete the underwntmg of the loan subject to our review before
origination. We also offer both FHA and VA fixed-rate loans.



Other than our loans for the construction of one- to four-family residential moftgage loans (described under “—Nonresidential
Real Estate Loans”), we currently do not originate new “interest only” mortgage loans on one- to four-family residential properties
(where the borrower pays interest for an initial period, after which the loan converts to a fully amortizing loan). We also do not offer
loans that provide for negative amortization of principal, such as “Option ARM” loans, where the borrower can pay less than the
interest owed on their loan, resulting’in an increased principal balance during the life of the loan. We do not offer “subprime loans”
(loans that generally target borrowers with weakened credit histories typically characterized by payment delinquencies, previous
charge-offs, judgments, bankruptcies, or borrowers with questionable repayment capacity as evidenced by low credit scores or high
debt-burden ratios) or Alt-A loans (traditionally defined as nonconforming loans having less than full documentation).

Home Equity Loans and Lines of Credit. In addition to traditional one- to four-family residential mortgage loans, we offer
home equity loans and home equity lines of credit that are secured primarily by one- to four-family residential homes. Home equity
lines of credit have a maximum term of 10 years during which time the borrewer is required to make payments to principal based on
the amortization of 0.125% of principal outstanding per month. The borrower is permitted to draw against the line during the entire
term. Our home equity lines of credit are originated with adjustable rates of interest or with fixed rates of interest that convert to
adjustable rates of interest after an initial period of up to three years. Our home equity loans are originated with fixed rates of interest
and with terms of up to 30 years. Home equity loans and lines of credit are generally underwritten with the same criteria that we use to
underwrite one- to four-family residential mortgage loans. Home equity loans may be underwritten with a loan-to-value ratio of 80%
when combined with the principal balance of the existing mortgage loan, while lines of credit for owner-occupied properties and
investment properties may be underwritten with loan-to-value ratios of 75% and 65%, respectively, when combined with the principal
balance of the existing mortgage loan. We require appraisals on home equity loans and lines of credit when the aggregate loan amount
exceeds 60% of the property’s tax assessed value or when the home equity loan or line of credit is $250,000 or greater. When the
aggregate loan amount is below 60% of the property’s tax assessed value, the tax assessed value must be validated by the Bank’s
Appraisal Department. Atthe time we close a home equity loan or line of credit, we record a mortgage to perfect our security interest
in the underlying collateral. At December 31, 2012, the outstanding balance of home equity loans totaled $6.2 million, or 0.8% of our
total loan portfolio, and the outstanding balance of home equity lines of credit totaled $9.0 million, or 1.1% of our total loan portfolio.

Nonresidential Real Estate Loans. Our nonresidential real estate loans consist primarily of commercial real estate loans and
construction loans for residential real estate projects. These loans totaled $13.8 million, or 1.8% of our loan portfolio as of
December 31, 2012. The commercial real estate properties primarily include owner-occupied light industrial properties. We generally
seek to originate commercial real estate loans with initial principal balances of $1.0 million or less. Loans secured by commercial real
estate totaled $7.6 million, or 1.0%, of our total loan portfolio at December 31, 2012, and consisted of 13 loans outstanding with an
average loan balance of approximately $583,000. All of our nonresidential real estate loans are secured by properties located in our
primary market area. At December 31, 2012, our largest commercial real estate loan had a principal balance of approximately $2.0
million and was secured by real property and a building that is being used as an elderly care facility. This loan was performing in
accordance with its terms at December 31, 2012.

In the underwriting of commercial real estate loans, we generally lend up to the lesser of 75% of the property’s appraised value
or purchase price. We base our decision to lend primarily on the economic viability of the property and the creditworthiness of the
borrower. In evaluating a proposed commercial real estate loan, we emphasize the ratio of the property’s projected net cash flow to the
loan’s debt service requirement (generally requiring a minimum ratio of 110%), computed after deduction for a vacancy factor and
property expenses we deem appropriate. Personal guarantees are usually obtained from commercial real estate borrowers. We require
title insurance, fire and extended coverage casualty insurance, and, if appropriate, flood insurance, in order to protect our security
interest in the underlying property. Almost all of our commercial real estate loans are generated internally by our loan officers.

Commercial real estate loans generally carry higher interest rates and have shorter terms than one- to four-family residential
mortgage loans. Commercial real estate loans, however, entail greater credit risks compared to one- to four-family residential
mortgage loans, as they typically involve larger loan balances concentrated with single borrowers or groups of related borrowers. In
addition, the payment of loans secured by income-producing properties typically depends, in large part, on sufficient income from the
property to cover operating expenses and debt service. Changes in economic conditions that are not in the control of the borrower or
lender could affect the value of the collateral for the loan or the future cash flow of the property. Additionally, any decline in real
estate values may be more pronounced for commercial real estate than for residential properties.

We also originate a limited amount of construction loans to experienced developers, almost exclusively for the construction of
residential real estate projects. Construction loans are also made to individuals for the construction of their personal residences.
Construction loans to individuals are generally “interest-only” loans during the construction period, and convert to permanent,
amortizing loans following the completion of construction. At December 31, 2012, construction loans totaled $5.4 million, or 0.7% of
total loans receivable. At December 31, 2012, the additional unadvanced portion of thesé construction loans totaled $2.4 million.

Advances on construction loans are made in accordance with a schedule reflecting the cost of construction, but are generally
limited to an 80% loan-to-completed-appraised-value ratio. Repayment of construction loans on residential properties is normally
expected from the sale of units to individual purchasers. In the case of income-producing property, repayment is usually expected
from permanent financing upon completion of construction. We typically provide the permanent mortgage financing on our
construction loans on income-producing property.



Before making a commitment to fund a construction loan, we require an appraisal of the property by a licensed appraiser. We
inspect properties before disbursement of funds during the term of the construction loan. . -

Construction financing generally involves greater credit risk than long-term financing on improVéd, owner-occupied real estate.
Risk of loss on a construction loan depends largely upon the accuracy of the initial estimate of the value of the property at completion
of construction compared to the estimated cost (including interest) of construction and other assumptions. If the estimate of .
construction cost is inaccurate, we may be required to advance additional funds beyond the amount originally committed in order to
protect the value of the property. Moreover, if.the estimated value.of the completed project is inaccurate, the borrower may hold a
property with a value that is insufficient to assure full repayment of the construction loan upon the sale of the property. In the event we
make a land acquisition loan on property that is not yet .approved for, the planned development, there is the risk that approvals will not
be granted or will be delayed. We currently do not have any land acquisition development and construction loans. Construction loans
also expose us to the risk that improvements will not be completed on time in accordance with specifications and projected costs. In
addition, the ultimate sale or rental of the property may not occur as anticipated. :

Loan Originations, Purchases, Sales, Participations and Servicing. All loans that we originate are underwritten pursuant to
our policies and procedures, which incorporate standard underwriting guidelines, including those of Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae, to
the extent applicable. We originate both adjustable-rate and fixed-rate loans. However, in our market area, customer demand is
primarily for fixed-rate loans. Our loan origination and sales activity may be adversely affected by a rising interest rate environment -
that typically results in decreased loan demand. Most of our one- to four-family residential mortgage loan originations are generated
by our branch managers and employees located in our banking offices and our additional commissioned loan officers located in our
corporate headquarters. We also advertise throughout our market area. We also receive loans from mortgage brokers, mortgage
bankers and other financial institutions that work with our staff to process and close these loans. We underwrite and approve all of
these loans. D - ' N

Prior to 2010, we retained the servicing rights on residential mortgage loans sold. In 2010; we began selling loans primarily on a
servicing-released basis. We sell loans to assist us in managing interest rate risk: We sold $107.9 million, $61.2 million and $45.1
million of residential mortgage loans (all fixed-rate‘loans, with terms of 10 years or longer) during the years ended December 31,
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. We had six loans totaling $2.2 million classified as held for sale at December 3 1, 2012.

We sell our loans without recourse, except for normal representations and warrantiés provided in sales transactions. At
December 31, 2012, we were servicing loans owned by others with a principal balance of $84:8 million. Loan servicing includes
collecting and remitting loan payments, accounting for principal and interest, contacting delinquent borrowers, supervising
foreclosures and property dispositions in the event of unremedied defaulits, making certain insurance and tax payments on behalf of the -
borrowers and generally administering the loans. We retain a portion of the interest paid by the borrower on the loans we service as
consideration for our servicing activities. For the year ended December 31, 2012, we received servicing fees of $275,000. At
December 31, 2012, substantially all of the loans serviced for Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae were performing in accordance with their
contractual terms and we believe that there are no material repurchase obligations associated with these loans. We have not entered
into loan participations in recent years. : SRR : : o : ‘

Loan Approval Procedures and Authority. Our lending activities follow written, nondiscriminatory underwriting standards and
loan origination procedures established by our Board of Directors. The loan approval process is intended to assess the borrower’s
ability to repay the loan and value of the property that will secure the loan. To assess the borrower’s ability to repay, we review the
borrower’s employment and credit history and information on the historical and projected income and expenses of the borrower.

Our policies and lqaﬁ apprOvél limits are es;a?blis’hed by the Board of Diféctofs. Aggregate lefiding reiatipnships in amounts up
to $2.0 million can be approved by designated individual officérs or officers acting together with specific lending approval authority.
Relationships in excess of $2.0 million require the approval of the Loan Committee of the Board of Directors. '

Territorial Savings Bank also uses automated underwriting systems to review one- to four-family residential mortgage loans
with balances up to $625,500. We require appraisals of all real property securing one- to fourfamily residential real estate loans, and
on property securing home equity Joans and linés of credit when the aggregate loan amount exceeds 60% of the property’s tax
assessed value or when the loan or line of credit is $250,000 or greater. All appraisers are licensed appraisers and all third-party

appraisers are approved by the Board of Directors annually.

Investments , . L _ : : ’

Our Board of Directors has primary responsibility for establishing and overseeing our investment policy. The Board-of Directors
has delegated authority to implement the investment policy to eur Investment Committee, consisting of the same members as our
Asset/Liability Management Committee. The investment policy is reviewed at least annually by the Investment Committee, and any
changes to the policy are subject to approval by the full Board of Directors. The overall objectives of the Investment Policy are to
maintain a portfolio of high quality and diversified investments to maximize interest income over the long term and to minimize risk,
to provide collateral for borrowings, to provide additional earnings when loan production is low, and to reduce our tax liability. The
policy dictates that investment decisions give consideration to the safety of principal, liquidity requirements and potential returns. Our
Senior Vice President and Treasurer executes our securities portfolio transactions as directed by the Investment Committee. All
purchase and sale transactions are reported to the Board of Directors on a monthly basis.
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Our current investment policy permits investments in securities issued by the United States Government as well as mortgage-
backed securities and direct obligations of Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac and Ginnie Mae. The investment policy also permits, with certain
limitations, investments in certificates of deposit, bank-owned life insurance, collateralized mortgage obligations, trust preferred
securities, municipal securities and stock in the Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle. We purchased stock in the Federal Home Loan
Bank of Seattle in order to obtain services such as demand deposit accounts, certificates of deposit, security safekeeping services and
borrowings in the form of advances.

Our current investment policy does not permit investment in stripped mortgage-backed securities, complex securities and
derivatives as defined in federal banking regulations and other high-risk securities. As of December 31, 2012, we held no asset-backed
securities other than mortgage-backed securities. As a federal savings bank, Territorial Savings Bank is not permitted to invest in
equity securities. This general restriction does not apply to Territorial Bancorp Inc.

Our current policies do not permit hedging activities, such as engaging in futures, options or swap transactions, or investing in
high-risk mortgage derivatives, such as collateralized mortgage obligation residual interests, real estate mortgage investment conduit
residual interests or stripped mortgage-backed securities.

The Investments—Debt and Equity Securities topic of the Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards
Codification (FASB ASC) requires that, at the time of purchase, we designate a security as either held-to-maturity, available-for-sale,
or trading, based upon our ability and intent to hold the security until maturity. Securities available for sale and trading securities are
reported at market value and securities held to maturity are reported at amortized cost. A periodic review and evaluation of the
available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities portfolios is conducted to determine if the fair value of any security has declined
below its carrying value and whether such decline is other-than-temporary. If we do not have the intent to sell a security and it is not
more likely than not that we will be required to sell a security, impairment occurs when the present value of the remaining cash flows
is less than the remaining amortized cost basis. The difference between the present value of remaining cash flows and the remaining
amortized cost basis is considered a credit loss. If a credit loss has occurred, impairment is recorded by writing down the value of a
security to its fair market value. The difference between the write down and the credit loss is considered other comprehensive loss,
which is a reduction of net worth.

Our securities held to maturity at December 31, 2012 consisted primarily of securities with the following amortized costs:
$510.0 million of mortgage-backed securities, $44.3 million of collateralized mortgage obligations and $421,000 of trust preferred
securities which were issued by pools of issuers consisting primarily of financial institution holding companies. At December 31,
2012, all of our mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations were issued by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac or
Ginnie Mae. At December 31, 2012, there were no securities classified as available-for-sale. At December 31, 2012, none of the
coliateral underlying our securities portfolio was considered subprime or Alt-A, and we did not hold any common or preferred stock
issued by Freddie Mac or Fannie Mae as of that date. See “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations—Balance Sheet Analysis—Securities™ for a discussion of the recent performance of our securities portfolio.
The fair values of our securities are based on published or securities dealers’ market values.

We purchase mortgage-backed securities insured or guaranteed by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac or Ginnie Mae. Historically, we
invested in mortgage-backed securities to achieve positive interest rate spreads with minimal administrative expense and to lower our
credit risk as a result of the guarantees provided by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac or Ginnie Mae. However, in September 2008, the
Federal Housing Finance Agency placed Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae into conservatorship. The U.S. Treasury Department has
established financing agreements to ensure that Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae meet their obligations to holders of mortgage-backed
securities that they have issued or guaranteed. These actions have not affected the markets for mortgage-backed securities issued by
Freddie Mac or Fannie Mae.

Mortgage-backed securities are securities issued in the secondary market that are collateralized by pools of mortgages. Certain
types of mortgage-backed securities are commonly referred to as “pass-through” certificates because the principal and interest of the
underlying loans is “passed through” to investors, net of certain costs, including servicing and guarantee fees. Mortgage-backed
securities typically are collateralized by pools of one- to four-family or multi-family mortgages. We invest primarily in mortgage-
backed securities backed by one- to four-family mortgages. The interest rate of the security is lower than the interest rates of the
underlying loans to allow for payment of servicing and guaranty fees. Ginnie Mae, a United States Government agency, and
government sponsored enterprises, such as Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, either guarantee the payments or guarantee the timely
payment of principal and interest to investors. Mortgage-backed securities are more liquid than individual mortgage loans since there
is an active trading market for such securities. In addition, mortgage-backed securities may be used to collateralize our borrowings.
Investments in mortgage-backed securities involve a risk that actual payments will be greater or less than the prepayment rate
estimated at the time of purchase, which may require adjustments to the amortization of any premium or accretion of any discount
relating to such interests, thereby affecting the net yield on our securities.




Sources of Funds

General. Deposits traditionally have been our primary source of funds for our investment and lending activities. We also borrow
from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle and from securities dealers through securities sold under agreements to repurchase to
supplement cash flow needs; to-lengthen the maturities of liabilities for interest rate risk management purposes and to manage our cost
of funds. Our additional sources of funds are loan repayments, maturing investments, retained earnings, income on other earning
assets and the proceeds of loan and security sales. R c

Deposits. We accept deposits primarily from the areas in which our offices are located. We rely on our competitive pricing and
products, convenient locations and quality customer service to attract and retain deposits. We offer a variety of deposit accounts with a
range of interest rates and terms. Our deposit accounts consist of passbook and statement savings accounts, certificates of deposit,
money market accounts, commercial and regular checking accounts and Super NOW accounts. Historically, we have not accepted
brokered deposits. a :

Interest rates paid, maturity terms, service fees and withdrawal penalties are established on a periodic basis. Deposit rates and
terms are based primarily on current operating strategies, market interest rates, liquidity requirements and our deposit growth goals.

- Borrowings. Our borrowings consist of funds borrowed from securities sold under agreements to repurchase and advances from
the Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle. At December 31,2012, our securities sold under agreements to repurchase:totaled $70.0.
million, or 5.2% of total liabilities, and Federal Home Loan Bank advances totaled $20.0 million, or. 1.5% of total liabilities. At
December 31, 2012, we had access to additional Federal Home Loan Bank advances of up to $370.6 million. Advances from the
Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle are secured by our investment in the common ‘stock of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle as
well as by.a blanket pledge on our assets not otherwise pledged. Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are secured by
mortgage-backed securities. , » S

Subsidiary Activities \

Through December 30, 2010, Territorial Savings Bank owned 100% of the common stock of Territorial Holdings, Inc., a
Hawaii corporation, which in turn owned 100% of the voting common stock of Territorial Realty, Inc. Territorial Realty, Inc. was a
Hawaii real estate investment trust that held mortgage loans and mortgage-backed securities. These entities enabled Territorial -
Savings Bank to segregate certain assets for management purposes, and promoted Territorial Savings Bank’s ability to raise regulatory
capital in the future through the sale of preferred stock or other capital-enhancing securities by these entities. On December 31, 2010,
Territorial Holdings, Inc. and Territorial Realty, Inc. were liquidated and their accounts and results of operations were incorporated
into Territorial Savings Bank.

Territorial Savings Bank owns 100% of the common stock of Territorial Financial Services, Inc., 2 Hawaii corporation that
engages primarily in insurance activities: At December 31, 2012, Tetritorial Savings Bank’s investment in Territorial Financial
Services, Inc. was $12,000, and Territorial Financial Services, Inc. had assets of $77,000 at that date. Territorial Savings Bank also
owns 100% of the common stock of Territorial Real Estate Co., Inc., an inactive Hawaii corporation that is authorized to manage and
dispose of troubled real estate. T o

Personnel

As of December 31, 2012, we had 264 full-time employees and 13 part-time employees. Our employees are not represented by
any collective bargaining group. Management believes that we have a good working relationship with our employees.



FEDERAL AND STATE TAXATION

Federal Taxation

General. Territorial Bancorp Inc. and Territorial Savings Bank are subject to federal income taxation in the same general
manner as other corporations, with some exceptions discussed below. The following discussion of federal taxation is intended only to
summarize material federal income tax matters and is not a comprehensive description of the tax rules applicable to Territorial
Bancorp Inc. and Territorial Savings Bank.

Method of Accounting. For federal income tax purposes, Territorial Bancorp Inc. currently reports its income and expenses on
the accrual method of accounting and uses a tax year ending December 31st for filing its consolidated federal income tax returns. The
Small Business Protection Act of 1996 eliminated the use of the reserve method of accounting for bad debt reserves by savings
institutions, effective for taxable years beginning after 1995.

Minimum Tax. The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, imposes an alternative- minimum tax at a rate of 20% on a
base of regular taxable income plus certain tax preferences, referred to as “alternative minimum taxable income.” The alternative
minimum tax is payable to the extent alternative minimum taxable income is in excess of an exemption amount. Net operating losses
can, in general, offset no more than 90% of alternative minimum taxable income. Certain payments of alternative minimum tax may
be used as credits against regular tax liabilities in future years. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, Territorial Bancorp Inc. had no
alternative minimum tax credit carryforward

Net Operating Loss Carryovers. A financial institution may carry back net operating losses to the preceding two taxable years
and forward to the succeeding 20 taxable years. However, as a result of recent legislation, subject to certain limitations, the carryback
period for net operating losses incurred in 2008 or 2009 (but not both years) has been expanded to five years. At December 31, 2012
and 2011, Territorial Savings Bank had no net operating loss carryforward for federal income tax purposes.

Corporate Dividends. We may exclude from our income 100% of dividends received from Territorial Savings Bank as a
member of the same affiliated group of corporations.

Audit of Tax Returns. Territorial Bancorp Inc.’s federal income tax returns have not been audited in the most recent five-year
period.

State Taxation

Territorial Bancorp Inc. and Territorial Savings Bank are subject to a franchise tax imposed under Hawaii law at a rate of 7.92%
of net income. The net income to which the tax rate is applied is determined in a manner consistent with the taxable income
determined for federal purposes with some adjustments. The principal adjustment to federal taxable income is the inclusion of interest
received on municipal bonds in gross income for Hawaii franchise tax purposes.

Territorial Bancorp Inc.’s state franchise tax returns have not been audited in the most recent five-year period.




SUPERVISION AND REGULATION

General -

Territorial Savings Bank is examined and supervised by the Office of'the Comptroller of the Currency and is subject to
examination by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. This regulation and supervision establishes a comprehensive framework of
activities in which an institution may engage and is intended primarily for the protection of the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation’s deposit insurance fund and depositors, and not for the protection of secutity holders. Under this system of federal
regulation, financial institutions are periodically examined to ensure that they satisfy applicable standards with respect to their capital
adequacy, assets, management, earnings, liquidity and sensitivity to market interest rates. Territorial Savings Bank also is regulated to
a lesser extent by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, or Federal Reserve Board, governing reserves to be
maintained-against deposits and other matters: The Office of the Comptroller‘of the Currency examines Territorial Savings Bank and
prepares reports for the consideration of the Bank’s-Board of Directors on any operating deficiencies. Territorial Savings Bank’s
relationship with its depositors and borrowers also is regulated to a great extent by federal law and, to-a much lesser extent, state law,
especially in matters concerning the ownership of deposit accounts and the form and content of Territorial Sayings Bank’s loan
documents. o : e = . '

- Any "éhang‘e in these laws or regulations, whether by the Federal Déposft ih§urance .Corp\or‘,é‘tion_, the Office of the Comptroller
of the Currency or Congress, could have a material adverse impact on Territorial Bancorp Inc., Territorial Savings Bank and their
~ operations. : ' : AR B o

Territorial Bancorp Inc., as a savings and loan holding company, is required to file certain reporfs with, is subject to examination
by, and otherwise must comply with the rules and regulations of the Federal Reserve Board. Territorial Bancorp Inc. is also subject to
the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission. under the.federal securities laws.

Certain of the regulatory requirements that are ap'pvlicable to Territorial .'S:évings Bank and Territorial Bancorp Inc. are described
below. This description of statutes and regulations is not intended to be a complete description of such statutes and regulations and
their effects on Territorial Savings Bank and Territorial Bancorp Inc. and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the actual statutes
and regulations. : '

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (“Dodd-Frank Act”), signed into law in 2010, eliminated our
primary federal regulator, the Office of Thrift Supervision, by merging the Office of Thrift Supervision into the Office of the.
Comptroller of the Currency (the primary federal regulator for national banks). The Office of the Comptroller of the Currency
assumed the responsibility for examining, regulating and enforcing laws and regulations against federal savings banks effective
July 21, 2011. The legislation also established a Financial Services Oversight Council and granted the Board of Governors of the
Federal Reserve System exclusive authority to regulate all bank and thrift holding companies. As a result, Territorial Bancorp Inc.
became subject to supervision by the Federal Reserve Board as opposed to the Office of Thrift Supervision. Compliance with new
regulations and being supervised by one or more new regulatory agencies could increase our expenses. o

The Dodd-Frank Act also created a new agency, the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau, as an independent bureau of the
Federal Reserve Board, to take over the implementation of federal consumer financial protection and fair lending laws from the
depository institution regulators. However, institutions with $10 billion or fewer in assets, such as Territorial Savings Bank, will
continue to be examined for compliance with such laws and regulations by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency, its primary
banking regulator, rather than the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau.

Federal Banking Regulation . o

Business Activities. A federal savings bank derives its lending and investment powers from the Home Owners’ Loan Act, as
amended, and the regulations of the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency. Under these laws and regulations, Territorial Savings
Bank may invest in- mortgage loans secured by residential and commercial real estate, commercial business and consumer loans,
certain types of investment securities and certain other assets, subject to applicable limits. Territorial Savings Bank also may establish
subsidiaries that may engage in activities not otherwise permissible for Territorial Savings Bank, including real estate investment and
securities and insurance brokerage. In addition, the Dodd-Frank Act authorized the payment of interest on commercial checking
accounts, effective July 21, 2011. . ' '

Capital Requirements. Federal regulations require savings banks to meet three minimum capital standards: a 1.5% tangible
capital ratio, a 4% leverage ratio (3% for savings banks receiving the highest rating on the CAMELS rating system) and an 8% risk-
based capital ratio. ‘ e : : o

The risk-based capital standard for savings banks requires the maintenance of Tiér 1 (core) and total capital (which is defined as
core capital and supplementary capital) to risk-weighted assets of at least 4% and 8%, respectively. In determining the amount of risk-
weighted assets, all assets, including certain off-balance sheet assets, are multiplied by a risk-weight factor of 0% to 100%, based on
the risks believed inherent in the type of asset. Core capital is defined as common stockholders’ equity (including retained earnings),
certain noncumulative perpetual preferred stock and related surplus and minority interests in equity accounts of consolidated
subsidiaries, less intangibles other than certain mortgage servicing rights and credit card relationships. The components of
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supplementary capital include cumulative preferred stock, long-term perpetual preferred stock, mandatory convertible securities,
subordinated debt and intermediate preferred stock, the allowance for loan and lease losses limited to a maximum of 1.25% of risk-
weighted assets and up to 45% of net unrealized gains on available-for-sale equity securities with readily determinable fair market
values. Overall, the amount of supplementary capital included as part of total capital cannot exceed 100% of core capital.
Additionally, a savings bank that retains credit risk in connection with an asset sale may be required to maintain additional regulatory
capital because of the recourse back to the savings bank. In assessing an institution’s capital adequacy, the Office of the Comptroller
of the Currency takes into consideration not only these numeric factors but also qualitative factors as well, and has the authority to
establish higher capital requirements for individual associations where necessary.

On June 6, 2012, the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency and the other federal bank regulatory agencies issued a series of
proposed rules to revise their risk-based and leverage capital requirements and their method for calculating risk-weighted assets to
make them consistent with the agreements that were reached by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision in “Basel III: A Global
Regulatory Framework for More Resilient Banks and Banking Systems” (“Basel 11I”). The proposed rules would apply to all
depository institutions, top-tier bank holding companies with total consolidated assets of $500 million or more, and top-tier savings
and loan holding companies (“banking organizations”). Among other things, the proposed rules establish a new common equity tier 1
minimum capital requirement and a higher minimum tier 1 capital requirement, and assign higher risk weightings (150%) to exposures
that are more than 90 days past due or are on nonaccrual status and certain commercial real estate facilities that finance the
acquisition, development or construction of real property. The proposed rules also limit a banking organization’s capital distributions
and certain discretionary bonus payments if the banking organization does not hold a “capital conservation buffer” consisting of a
specified amount of common equity tier 1 capital in addition to the amount necessary to meet its minimum risk-based capital
requirements. The proposed rules indicated that the final rules would become effective on January 1, 2013, and the changes set forth in
the final rules would be phased in from January 1, 2013 through January 1, 2019. However, the federal bank regulatory agencies have
recently indicated that, due to the volume of public comments received, the implementation of the final rule would be delayed past
January 1, 2013.

At December 31, 2012, Territorial Savings Bank’s capital exceeded all applicable requirements.

Loans-to-One Borrower. Generally, a federal savings bank may not make a loan or extend credit to a single or related group of
borrowers in excess of 15% of unimpaired capital and surplus. An additional amount may be loaned, equal to 10% of unimpaired
capital and surplus, if the loan is secured by readily marketable collateral, which generally does not include real estate. As of
December 31, 2012, Territorial Savings Bank’s largest lending relationship with a single or related group of borrowers totaled $3.5
million, which represented 1.7% of unimpaired capital and surplus. Therefore, Territorial Savings Bank was in compliance with the
loans-to-one borrower limitations.

Qualified Thrift Lender Test. As a federal savings bank, Territorial Savings Bank must satisfy the qualified thrift lender, or
“QTL,” test. Under the QTL test, Territorial Savings Bank must maintain at least 65% of its “portfolio assets” in “qualified thrift
investments” (primarily residential mortgages and related investments, including mortgage-backed securities) in at least nine months
of the most recent 12-month period. “Portfolio assets” generally means total assets of a savings institution, less the sum of specified
liquid assets up to 20% of total assets, goodwill and other intangible assets, and the value of property used in the conduct of the
savings bank’s business.

Territorial Savings Bank also may satisfy the QTL test by qualifying as a “domestic building and loan association” as defined in
the Internal Revenue Code. A savings bank that fails the qualified thrift lender test must operate under specified restrictions set forth
in the Home Owners’ Loan Act. Additionally, the Dodd-Frank Act made noncompliance with the QTL test potentially subject to
agency enforcement action for violation of law.

At December 31, 2012, Territorial Savings Bank maintained approximately 95.4% of its portfolio assets in qualified thrift
vestments and, therefore, satisfied the QTL test.

Capital Distributions. Office of the Comptroller of the Currency or Federal Reserve regulations govern capital distributions by a
federal savings bank, which include cash dividends, stock repurchases and other transactions charged to the savings bank’s capital
account. A savings bank must file an application for approval of a capital distribution if:

. the total capital distributions for the applicable calendar year exceed the sum of the savings bank’s net income for that
year to date plus the savings bank’s retained net income for the preceding two years;

. the savings bank would not be at least adequately capitalized following the distribution;

. the distribution would violate any applicable statute, regulation, agreement or Office of the Comptroller of the Currency-

imposed condition; or
. the savings bank is not eligible for expedited treatment of its filings.

10




Even if an application is not otherwise required, every savingsy bank that is a subsidiary of a holding company must still file a
notice with the Federal Reserve Board at least 30 days before the Board of Directors declares a dividend or approves a capital
distribution.

The Fedéral Reserve Board, ﬁpon consultation with the Office of the COmptroller of the Currenéy, may disapprove a notice or
application if:

o -the sa\;ings bank would be undercapitalized following the distribution;
. the proposed capital distribution raises safety and soundness concerns; or

. the capital distribution would violate a proﬁibition contained in any statute, regulation with a federal banking regulatory
agency or any formal or informal enforcément action. _ . ,

In additién, the Federal Deposit Insurance Act provides that an insured dépository institution shall not make any capital
distribution if, after making such distribution, the institution would be undercapitalized. ‘

Liguidity. A federal savings bank is required to maintain a sufficient amount of liquid assets to ensure its safe and sound
operation. Our primary source of liquidity to meet our short- and long-term funding needs are cash balances at the Federal Reserve
Bank, savings deposits, loan and security repayments, loan and security sales, securities sold under agreements to repurchase with
security dealers and borrowing lines at the Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle. At December 31, 2012, we had $182.8 million of cash
and cash equivalents. We also had the capacity to borrow up to $370.6 million from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle at
December 31, 2012, ' ’

Community Reinvestment Act and Fair Lending Laws. All savings banks have a responsibility under the Community
Reinvestment Act and related federal regulations to help meet the credit needs of their communities, including low- and moderate-
income borrowers. In connection with its examination of a federal savings bank, the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency is
required to assess the savings bank’s record of compliance with the Community Reinvestment Act. In addition, the Equal Credit
Opportunity Act and the Fair Housing Act prohibit lenders from discriminating in their lending practices on the basis of characteristics
specified in those statutes. A savings bank’s failure to comply with the provisions of the Community Reinvestment Act could, at a
minimum, result in denial of certain corporate applications such as branches or mergers, or in restrictions on its activities. The failure
to comply with the Equal Credit Opportunity Act and the Fair Housing Act could result in enforcement actions by the Office of the
Comptroller of the Currency, as well as other federal regulatory agencies and the Department of Justice. The Community
Reinvestment Act requires all Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation-insured institutions.to publicly disclose their rating. Territorial
Savings Bank received a satisfactory Community Reinvestment Act rating in its most recent federal examination.

Transactions with Related Parties. A federal savings bank’s authority to engage in transactions with its affiliates is limited by
Office of the Comptroller of the Currency regulations and by Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act and its implementing
Regulation W promulgated by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System. An affiliate is generally a company that
controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with an insured depository institution such as Territorial Savings Bank.
Territorial Bancorp Inc. is an affiliate of Territorial Savings Bank. In general, transactions between an insured depository institution
and its affiliates are subject to certain quantitative and collateral requirements. In addition, Office of the Comptroller of the Currency
regulations prohibit-a savings bank from lending to any of its affiliates that are engaged in activities that are not permissible for bank
holding companies and from purchasing the securities of any affiliate, other than a subsidiary. Finally, transactions with affiliates must
be consistent with safe and sound banking practices, not involve low-quality assets and be on terms that are as favorable to the
institution as comparable transactions with nonaffiliates. The Office of the Comptroller of the Currency requires savings banks to
maintain detailed records of all transactions with affiliates.

Territorial Savings Bank’s authority to extend credit to its directors, executive officers and 10% stockholders, as well as to
entities controlled by such persons, is currently governed by the requirements of Sections 22(g) and 22(h) of the Federal Reserve Act
and Regulation O of the Federal Reserve Board. Among other things, these provisions require that extensions of credit to insiders:

(i) - be made on terms that are substantially the same as, and follow credit underwriting procedures that are not less stringent
than, those prevailing for comparable transactions with unaffiliated persons and that do not involve more than the normal
risk of repayment or present other unfavorable features, and

(ii) . not exceed certain limitations on the amount of credit extended to such persons, individually and in the aggregate, which
. .limits are based, in part, on the amount of Territorial Savings Bank’s capital.. ,

In addition, extensions of credit in excess of certain limits must be approved by Territorial Savings Bank’s Board of Directors. -

Enforcement. The Office of the Comptroller of the Currency has primary enforcement responsibility over federal savings
institutions and has the authority to bring enforcement action against all “institution-affiliated parties,” including directors, officers,
stockholders, attorneys, appraisers and accountants who knowingly or recklessly participate in wrongful action likely to have an
adverse effect on an insured institution. Formal enforcement action by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency may range from
the issuance of a capital directive or cease and desist order to removal of officers and/or directors of the institution, and the ‘
appointment of a receiver or conservator. Civil penalties cover a wide range of violations and actions, and range up to $25,000 per
day, unless a finding of reckless disregard is made, in which case penalties may be as high as $1 million per day. The Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation also has the authority to terminate deposit insurance or to recommend to the Office of the Comptroller of the
Currency that enforcement action be taken with respect to a particular savings institution. If action is not taken by the Office of the
Comptroller of the Currency, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation has authority to take action under specified circumstances.
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The Office of the Comptroller of the Currency has assumed the Office of Thrift Supervision’s enforcement authority under the
Dodd-Frank Act regulatory restructuring.

Standards for Safety and Soundness. Federal law requires each federal banking agency to prescribe certain standards for all
insured depository institutions. These standards relate to, among other things, internal controls, information systems and audit
systems, loan documentation, credit underwriting, interest rate risk exposure, asset growth, compensation, and other operational and
managerial standards as the agency deems appropriate. Interagency guidelines set forth the safety and soundness standards that the
federal banking agencies use to identify and address problems at insured depository institutions before capital becomes impaired. If
the appropriate federal banking agency determines that an institution fails to meet any standard prescribed by the guidelines, the
agency may require the institution to submit to the agency an acceptable plan to achieve compliance with the standard. If an institution
fails to meet these standards, the appropriate federal banking agency may require the institution to implement an acceptable
compliance plan. Failure to implement such a plan can result in further enforcement action, including the issuance of a cease and
desist order or the imposition of civil money penalties.

Prompt Corrective Action Regulations. Under prompt corrective action regulatlons the Office of the Comptroller of the
Currency is authorized and, under certain circumstances, required to take supervisory actions agamst undercapitalized savings banks.
For this purpose, a savings bank is placed in one of the following five categories based on the savings bank’s capital:

. well-capitalized (at least 5% leverage capital, 6% Tier 1 risk-based capital and 10% total risk-based capital});

. adequately capitalized (at least 4% leverage capital (3% for savings banks with a composite examination rating of 1), 4%
Tier 1 risk-based capital and 8% total risk-based capital);
. undercapitalized (less than 4% leverage capital (3% for savings banks with a composite examination rating of 1), 4%

Tier 1 risk-based capital or 8% total risk-based capital);

. significantly undercapitalized (less than 3% leverage capital, 3% Tier 1 risk-based capital or 6% total risk-based capital);
and

. critically undercapitalized (less than 2% tangible capital).

Generally, the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency is required to appoint a receiver or conservator for a savings bank that
is “critically undercapitalized” within specific time frames. The regulations also provide that a capital restoration plan must be filed
with the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency within 45 days of the date a savings bank receives notice that it is
“undercapitalized,” “significantly undercapitalized” or “critically undercapitalized.” Any holding company for the savings bank
required to submit a capital restoration plan must guarantee the lesser of an amount equal to 5% of the savings bank’s assets at the
time it was notified or deemed to be undercapitalized by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency, or the amount necessary to
restore the savings bank to adequately capitalized status. This guarantee remains in place until the Office of the Comptroller of the
Currency notifies the savings bank that it has maintained adequately capitalized status for each of four consecutive calendar quarters,
and the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency has the authority to require payment and collect payment under the guarantee.
Failure by a holding company to provide the required guarantee will result in certain operating restrictions on the savings bank, such
as restrictions on the ability to declare and pay dividends, pay executive compensation and management fees, and increase assets or
expand operations. The Office of the Comptroller of the Currency may also take any one of a number of discretionary supervisory
actions against undercapitalized associations, including the issuance of a capital directive and the replacement of senior executive
officers and directors.

The recently proposed rules that would increase regulatory capital requirements would adjust the prompt corrective action
categories accordingly.

At December 31, 2012, Territorial Savings Bank met the criteria for being considered “well-capitalized.”

Insurance of Deposit Accounts. Territorial Savings Bank’s deposits are insured up to applicable limits by the Deposit Insurance
Fund of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

Under the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation’s risk-based assessment system, insured institutions are assigned to one of
four risk categories based on supervisory evaluations, regulatory capital levels and certain other factors, with less risky institutions
paying lower assessments. An institution’s assessment rate depends upon the category to which it is assigned, and certain adjustments
specified by Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation regulations. The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation may adjust the scale
uniformly, except that no adjustment can deviate more than two basis points from the base scale without notice and comment. No
institution may pay a dividend if in default of the federal deposit insurance assessment.

Assessment rates previously ranged from seven to 77.5 basis points of assessable deposits. The Dodd-Frank Act required the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation to revise its procedures to base its assessments upon total assets less tangible equity instead of
deposits. The Federal Deposit Insurance Carporation finalized a rule, effective April 1, 2011, that changed the assessment range to 2.5

to 45 basis points of total assets less tangible equity.

Due to the recent difficult economic conditions, deposit insurance per account owner has been permanently raised to $250,000.
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In addition-to the assessment for deposit insurance, institutions are required to make payments on bonds issued in the late 1980s
by the Financing Corporation to recapitalize a predecessor deposit insurance fund. That payment is established quarterly and during
“the quarter ended December 31,2012, equaled 0.66 basrs pomts of'total assets less tanglble capital. :

The Dodd- Frank Act mcreased the minimum target Deposrt Insurance Fund ratio from 1.15% of estimated insured deposits to
1.35% of estrmated insured deposrts The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporatmn must seek to achieve the 1.35% ratio by
September 30, 2020. Insured institutions 'with assets of $10 billion or more are supposed to fund the increase. The Dodd-Frank Act
ehmmated the 1.5% maximum fund ratio, instead leavrng it to the discretion of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, and the
Federal Deposrt Insurance Corporatlon has recently exercised that discretion by establrshmg a long-range fund ratio of 2%.

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation has authority to increase insurance assessments. A significant increase in insurance
premiums would likely have an adverse effect on the operating expenses and results of operatrons of the Bank. Management cannot
predict what insurance assessment rates will be in the future .

Prohrbmons Agamst T ymg Arrangements F ederal savmgs banks are prohlblted subj ect to some exceptrons from extending
credit to or offering any other service, or ﬁxrng or varying the consideration for such extension of credit or service, on the condition
that the customer obtarn some addrtronal service from the institution or its afﬁlrates or not: obtam services of a competitor of the
institution. : ‘ : : : : .

5

Federal Home Loan Bank System. Territorial Savrngs Bank isa member of the Federal Home Loan Bank System, which
consists of twélve regional Federal Home Loan Banks. The Federal Horne Loan Bank System provides a central credit facility
primarily for member institutions as well as other entities involved in home mortgage lending. As a member of the Federal Home
Loan Bank of Seattle, Territorial Savings Bank is requ1red ‘to acquire ‘and hold shares of capital stock in the Federal Home Loan Bank.
As of December 31, 2012, Terrrtorral Savings Bank held $ 12 1 mrlllon of caprtal stock in the Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle and
was in compllance w1th ‘this requlrement : , :

Other Regulatlons ) , ( . R .
Interest and other charges collected or contracted for by Terrrtorral Savings Bank are subject to state usury laws and federal laws

concerning interest rates. Territorial Savings Bank’s operations are also subject to federal laws applicable to credit transactions, such

as the:

e Truth-In- Lending Act; governing disclosures of credit terms to-consumer borrowers;

e ‘, " Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act, requrrrng - that ‘borrowers for mortgage loans for one- to four—famlly residential real
_ estate recerve various dlsclosures, including good faith estimates of settlement costs, lender servicing and escrow account
practices, and prohrbrtmg certain practices that increase the cost of settlement services;

. Home Mortgage Disclosure: Act, requiring financial institutions to provide information to enable the pubhc and public
officials to determine whether a financial institution is fulfilling its obligation to help meet the housing needs of the
community it serves;

. Equal Credit Opportumty Act, prohrbltmg drscrrmmatron on the basis of race, creed or other prohrblted factors in
extending credit;

. Fair Credrt Reportmg Act, governing the use and provrslon of information to credit reporting agencies;

. fair lendmg laws;
. Unfair or Deceptrve Acts or Practices (“UDAP”’) laws and regulations; , .
. Fair Debt Collection Act, governlng the manner in whrch consumer debts may be collected by collection agencies;

. Truth in Savmgs Act; and

. rules and regulatrons of the various federal agencies charged with the respons1b1hty of 1mplement1ng such federal laws:

The operatlons of Terrrtorral Savrngs Bank also are subject to the: ’ : ‘ e

. Right to F 1nanc1al Privacy Act, which imposes a duty to maintain conﬁdentrallty of consumer ﬁnancral records and
prescribes procedures for complying with administrative subpoenas of financial records;

. Electronic Funds Transfer Act and Regulation E promulgated thereunder, which govern automatic deposrts to and
withdrawals from deposit accounts and customers rights and lrabrhtres arising from the use of automated teller machines
- -and other electronic banking services;

. Check Clearing for the 2 e Century Act (also known as “Check 217, whrch gives “substrtute checks ” such as drgrtal
check images and copies made from that image, the same legal standing as the original paper check;
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. The USA PATRIOT Act, which requires savings banks to, among other things, establish broadened anti-money
laundering compliance programs, due diligence policies and controls to ensure the detection and reporting of money
laundering. Such required compliance programs are intended to supplement existing compliance requirements, also
applicable to financial institutions, under the Bank Secrecy Act and the Office of Foreign Assets Control regulations; and

. The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, which places limitations on the sharing of consumer financial information by financial
institutions with unaffiliated third parties. Specifically, the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act requires all financial institutions
offering financial products or services to retail customers to provide such customers with the financial institution’s privacy
policy and provide such customers the opportunity to “opt out” of the sharing of certain personal financial information
with unaffiliated third parties.

Holding Company Regulation

General . Territorial Bancorp Inc. is a nondiversified savings and loan holding company within the meaning of the Home
Owners’ Loan Act. As such, Territorial Bancorp Inc. is registered with the Federal Reserve Board and subject to Federal Reserve
Board regulations, examinations, supervision and reporting requirements. In addition, the Federal Reserve Board has enforcement
authority over Territorial Bancorp Inc. and its subsidiaries. Among other things, this authority permits the Federal Reserve Board to
restrict or prohibit activities that are determined to be a serious risk to the subsidiary savings institution. The Dodd-Frank Act
regulatory restructuring transferred the responsibility for regulating and supervising savings and loan holding companies from the
Office of Thrift Supervision to the Federal Reserve Board, effective July 21, 2011.

Permissible Activities. The business activities of Territorial Bancorp Inc. are generally limited to those activities permissible for
financial holding companies under Section 4(k) of the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended, or for multiple savings and
loan holding companies. A financial holding company may engage in activities that are financial in nature, including underwriting
equity securities and insurance as well as activities that are incidental to financial activities or complementary to a financial activity.
The Dodd-Frank Act added that any savings and loan holding company that engages in activities permissible for a financial holding
company must meet the qualitative requirements for a bank holding company to be a financial holding company and conduct the
activities in accordance with the requirements that would apply to a financial holding company’s conduct of the activity. A multiple
savings and loan holding company is generally limited to activities permissible for bank holding companies under Section 4(c)(8) of
the Bank Holding Company Act, subject to the prior approval of the Federal Reserve Board, and certain additional activities
authorized by Federal Reserve Board regulations.

Federal law prohibits a savings and loan holding company, including Territorial Bancorp Inc., directly or indirectly, or through
one or more subsidiaries, from acquiring more than 5% of another savings institution or holding company thereof, without prior
written approval of the Federal Reserve Board. It also prohibits the acquisition or retention of, with certain exceptions, more than 5%
of a nonsubsidiary company engaged in activities that are not closely related to banking or financial in nature, or acquiring or retaining
control of an institution that is not federally insured. In evaluating applications by holding companies to acquire savings institutions,
the Federal Reserve Board must consider the financial and managerial resources, future prospects of the company and institution
involved, the effect of the acquisition on the risk to the federal deposit insurance fund, the convenience and needs of the community
and competitive factors.

The Federal Reserve Board is prohibited from approving any acquisition that would result in a multiple savings and loan
holding company controlling savings institutions in more than one state, subject to two exceptions:

(i)  the approval of interstate supervisory acquisitions by savings and loan holding companies; and

(ii) the acquisition of a savings institution in another state if the laws of the state of the target savings institution specifically
permit such acquisition.

The states vary in the extent to which they permit interstate savings and loan holding company acquisitions.

Capital. Savings and loan holding companies are not currently subject to specific regulatory capital requirements. The Dodd-
Frank Act, however, requires the Federal Reserve Board to promulgate consolidated capital requirements for depository institution
holding companies that are no less stringent, both quantitatively and in terms of components of capital, than those applicable to
institutions themselves. Instruments such as cumulative preferred stock and trust preferred securities will no longer be includable as
Tier 1 capital, as is currently the case with bank holding companies. As noted above, the recently proposed capital rules would
implement the consolidated capital requirements for savings and loan holding companies. However, the proposed rules did not provide
that certain instruments issued before May 19, 2010 would remain as regulatory capital, and also did not provide for a transition
period for savings and loan holding companies. Each of these provisions was included in the Dodd-Frank Act, and it is uncertain
whether any final rule will do so.

Source of Strength. The Dodd-Frank Act also extends the “source of strength” doctrine to savings and loan holding companies.
The regulatory agencies must issue regulations requiring that all bank and savings and loan holding companies serve as a source of
strength to their subsidiary depository institutions by providing capital, liquidity and other support in times of financial stress.
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Dividends and Stock Repurchases. The Federal Reserve Board has issued a policy statement regarding the payment of
dividends and the repurchase of shares of common stock by bank holding companies that it has made applicable to savings and loan
holding companies as well. In general, the policy provides that dividends should be paid only out of current earnings and only if the
prospective rate of earnings retention by the holding company appears consistent with the organization’s capztal needs, asset quality
and overall financial condition. Regulatory guldance provides for prior regulatory review of capital distributions in certain
circumstances, such as where the company’s net income for. the past four quarters, net of dividends previously paid over. that period, is
insufficient to fully fund the dividend. The guidance also provides for prior regulatory review where the company’s overall rate of
earnings retention is inconsistent with the company’s capital needs and overall financial condition. The ability of a holding company
to pay dividends may be restricted if a subsidiary bank becomes undercapitalized. The policy statement. also provides for regulatory
review prior to a holding company redeeming or repurchasing regulatory capital instruments when the holding company is
experiencing financial weaknesses or redeeming or repurchasing common stock or perpetual preferred stock that would result in a net
reduction in the amount of such equity instruments outstanding as of the end of a quarter compared with the beginning of the quarter
in which the redemption or repurchase occurred. These regulatory policies could affect the ability of Territorial Bancorp Inc. to pay
dividends, repurchase shares of common stock or otherwise engage in capital distributions.

Change in Control Regulations

Under the Change in Bank Control Act, no person may acquire control of a savings and loan holding company such as the
Company unless the Federal Reserve Board has been given 60 days’ prior written notice and has not issued a notice disapproving the
proposed acquisition, taking into consideration certain factors, including the financial and managerial resources of the acquirer and the
competitive effects of the acquisition. Control, as defined under federal law, means ownership, control of or holding irrevocable
proxies representing more than 25% of any class of voting stock, control in any manner of the election of a majority of the company’s
directors, or a determination by the regulator that the acquiror has the power to direct, or directly or indirectly to exercise a controlling
influence over, the management or policies of the institution. Acquisition of more than 10% of any class of a savings and loan holding
company’s voting stock constitutes a rebuttable presumption of control under the regulations under certain circuristances including
where, as is the case with Territorial Bancorp Inc., the issuer has registered securities under Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934.

Federal Securities Laws

Territorial Bancorp Inic.’s common stock is’registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934. Territorial Bancorp Inc. is subject to the information, proxy solicitation, insider trading restrictions and other
requirements under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

Territorial Bancorp Inc. common stock held by persons who are affiliates (generally officers, directors and principal
shareholders) of Territorial Bancorp Inc. may not be resold without registration unless sold in accordance with certain resale
restrictions. If Territorial Bancorp Inc. meets specified current public information requirements, each affiliate of Territorial Bancorp
Inc. is able to sell in the public market, without registration, a limited number of shares in any three-month period.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 addresses; among other issues, corporate governance, auditing and accounting, executive
compensation, and enhanced and timely disclosure of corporate information. We have prepared policies, procedures and systems
designed to ensure compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and related regulations.

ITEM 1A. RiskF actors
Hlstorlcally low interest rates may adversely affect our net interest income and profitability.

During the past four years it has been the policy of the Federal Reserve Board to maintain interest rates at h1storlcally low levels
through its targeted federal funds rate and the purchase of mortgage-backed securities. As a result, market rates on the loans we have
originated and the yields on securities we have purchased have been at lower levels than available prior to 2008. As a general matter,
our mterest-bearlng liabilities reprice or mature more quickly than our interest-earning assets, which has been one factor contributing
to the increase in our interest rate spread as interest rates decreased. However, our ability to lower our interest expense will be limited
sincé our cost of funds at December 31, 2012 is relatively low while tlie average yield on our interest-earning assets may continue to
decrease as our higher yielding loans and securities are pa1d off. The Federal Reserve Board has recently indicated its intention to
maintain low interest rates until the unemployment rate is 6.5% or lower. Accordingly, our net interest income may be adversely
affected and may even decrease, which may have an adverse effect on our profitability.
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Future changes in interest rates could reduce our profits.

Our ability to make a profit largely depends on our net interest income, which could be negatively affected by changes in
interest rates. Net interest income is the difference between:

. the interest income we earn on our interest-earning assets, such as loans and securities; and

. the interest expense we pay on our interest-bearing liabilities, such as deposits and borrowings.

As a result of our focus on one- to four-family residential real estate loans and the low demand for adjustable-rate loans in our
market area, the interest rates we earn on our loans are generally fixed for long periods of time. Additionally, many of our securities
investments are of long maturities with fixed interest rates. Like many savings institutions, our focus on deposit accounts as a source
of funds, which have no stated maturity date or shorter contractual maturities than loans, results in our liabilities having a shorter
duration than our assets. For example, as of December 31, 2012, 91.5% of our loans had maturities of 15 years or longer, while 71.4%
of our certificates of deposits had maturities of one year or less. This imbalance can create significant earnings volatility, because
market interest rates change over time. In a period of rising interest rates, the interest income earned on our assets, such as loans and
investments, likely will not increase as rapidly as the interest paid on our liabilities, such as deposits. In a period of declining interest
rates, the interest income earned on our assets likely will decrease more rapidly than the interest paid on our liabilities, as borrowers
prepay mortgage loans and mortgage-backed securities, thereby requiring us to reinvest these cash flows at lower interest rates. See
“Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Management of Market Risk.”

In addition, changes in interest rates can affect the average life of loans and mortgage-backed and related securities. A reduction
in interest rates results in increased prepayments of loans and mortgage-backed and related securities, as borrowers refinance their
debt in order to reduce their borrowing costs. This creates reinvestment risk, which is the risk that we may not be able to reinvest
prepayments at rates that are comparable to the rates we earned on the prepaid loans or securities. Additionally, increases in interest
rates may decrease loan demand and/or make it more difficult for borrowers to repay adjustable-rate loans.

Changes in interest rates also affect the current fair value of our interest-earning securities portfolio. Generally, the value of
securities moves inversely with changes in interest rates. At December 31, 2012, the fair value of our investment in held-to-maturity
securities totaled $584.1 million. Net unrealized gains on these securities totaled $29.5 million at December 31, 2012.

At December 31, 2012, our “rate shock” analysis indicated that our economic value of equity (the difference between the market
value of our assets and the market value of our liabilities with adjustments made for off-balance sheet items) would increase by $7.5
million if there was an instantaneous 200 basis point increase in market interest rates. See “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Management of Market Risk.”

Our lending activities provide lower interest rates than financial institutions that originate more commercial loans.

Our principal lending activity consists of originating one- to four-family residential real estate mortgage loans. As of :
December 31, 2012, these loans totaled $741.3 million, or 94.8% of total loans as of that.date. We originate our loans with a focus on
limiting credit risk and not to generate the highest return or create the greatest difference between the yield on our interest earning
assets and our cost of funds (interest rate spread).

Residential real estate mortgage loans generally have lower interest rates than commercial business loans, commercial real
estate loans and consumer loans. As a result, we may generate lower interest rate spreads and rates of return when compared to our
competitors who originate more consumer or commercial loans than we do. We intend to continue our focus on residential real estate
lending.

We could record future losses on our holdings of trust preferred securities that we purchased from issuer pools consisting
primarily of financial institution holding companies. In addition, we may not receive full future interest payments on these
securities. ‘

We owned shares of trust preferred securities with an adjusted cost basis and fair value of $421,000 at December 31, 2012. The
trust preferred securities are debt obligations issued by two issuer pools (Preferred Term Securities XXIII, Ltd. co-marketed by Keefe,
Bruyette & Woods, Inc. and FTN Financigl Capital Markets (“PreTSL XXIII”) and Preferred Term Securities XXIV, Ltd. co-
marketed by Keefe, Bruyette & Woods, Inc, and FTN Financial Capital Markets (“PreTSL XXIV™)), consisting primarily of holding
companies for Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation-insured financial institutions. Each of these securities is a Class D security, and
was originated with a credit rating of BBB. As of December 31, 2012, both PreTSL XXIII and PreTSL XXIV were rated C by Fitch.
PreTSL XXIV has a book value of $0.

Our investment in PreTSL XXIII was determined to be other-than-temporarily impaired as the present value of cash flows was
lower than the amortized cost basis of the security. We recorded an impairment charge of $2.4 million in the year ended December 31,
2010. When the impairment charge of $2.4 million on PreTSL XXIII was recorded, the security was written down to its fair value of
$32,000. The book value of our investment in PreTSL XXIII has risen from $32,000 to $421,000 based on an increase in fair value
which has occurred with an increase in the present value of cash flows from this security. The $1.1 million difference between the
original outstanding principal balance of $3.5 million and the impairment charge of $2.4 million was reported as other comprehensive
loss and is related to noncredit factors such as an inactive trust preferred securities market.
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It is reasonably possible that the fair value of PreTSL XXIII-could decline in the near term if the overall economy and the
financial condition of some of the issuers continue to deteriorate and the liquidity of these securities remains low. As a result, there is
a risk that the Company’s remaining amortized cost basis of $1.1 million in PreTSL XXIII could be credit-related other-than-
temporarily impaired in the near term. The impairment could be material to the Company’s consolidated statement of income.

A number of factors or combinations of factors could cause us to conclude in one or more future reporting periods that an
unrealized loss that exists with respect to PreTSL XXIII constitutes an impairment that is other than temporary, which could result in
material losses to us. These factors include, but are not limited to, continued failure to make scheduled interest payments, an increase
in the seventy of the unrealized loss on a particular security, an increase in the continuous duration of the unrealized loss without an
improvement in value or changes in market conditions and/or industry or issuer specific factors that would render us unable to forecast
a full recovery in value. In addition, the fair value of PreTSL XXIII could decline if the overall economy and the financial condition of
some of the issuers continue to deteriorate and theré remains hmrted liquidity for these securities.

“'For the year ended December 31, 2012, we received no intérest payments on the trust preferred securities. The continued failure
of the trust preferred issuers to make interest payments for any quarter will reduce our earnings during that quarter.

The following table sets forth information with respect to these securities as of December 3 1,2012:

. Deferrals
Number of and
. - Financial Defaults as Excess
Unrealized Credit Institutions a% of Subordination
Pool Deal Name Book Value Fair Value Gain Rating in Pool Collateral 1) )
(Dollars in Thousands) '
PreTSL XXM ..ol $ 4218 421 8 0 °c . 10 263% $ 0
PreTSLXXIV .............................. L8 S R .03 0 o ‘ 79 "35.8% $ 0

(1) Estimated present value of future cash flows in excess of amortized cost basis, assuming that 50% of the security collateral is
called in the 10" year following issuance.

We have been negatively affected by current market and economic condltlons A continuation or worsemng of these conditions
could adversely affect our 0perat10ns, financlal condltlon and earnlngs

-Recent economic conditions have resulted in continued uncertainty in the financial markets and continued expectations of weak
general economic conditions. The resulting economic pressure on consumers and businesses has adversely affected our business,
financial condition and results-of operations. The credit quality of loan and investment securities portfolios has deteriorated at many
financial institutions and the values of real estate collateral supporting many commercial loans and home mortgages have declined and
may continue to decline. Financial companies’ stock prices have been negatively affected, as has the ability of banks and bank holding
companies to raise capital or borrow in the debt markets. A continuation or worsening of these conditions could result in reduced loan
demand and further increases in loan delinquencies, loan losses, loan loss provisions, costs associated with monitoring delinquent
loans and disposing of foreclosed property, and otherwise negatively affect our operations, financial condition and earnings. Further, a
decline in the stock market in general, or for stock of financial institutions and their holdmg compames could affect our stock
performance : o ) .

Changes in laws and regulations and the cost of regulatory compllance with new laws and regulations may adversely affect our
operations and our income. o .

In response to the developments described above, Congress has taken actions that are intended to strengthen confidence and
encourage liquidity in financial institutions, and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation has taken actions to increase insurance
coverage on deposit accounts. In addition, there have been proposals made by members of Congress and others that would reduce the
amount distressed borrowers are otherwise contractually obligated to pay under their mortgage loans and limit an institution’s ability
to foreclose on mortgage collateral. - ~

The potentlal exists for addrtronal federal or state laws and regulatrons or changes in policy, regarding lendlng and funding
practlces and liquidity standards, and bank regulatory agencies are expected to be active in responding to concerns and trends
identified in examinations, including the expected issuance of many formal enforcement orders. Bank regulatory agencies, such as the
Office of the Comptroller of the Currency and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, govern the activities in which we may
engage, primarily for the protection of depositors, and not for the protection or benefit of potential investors. In addition, new laws,
regulations and other regulatory changes may increase our costs of regulatory compliance and of doing business, and otherwise affect
our operations. New laws, regulations, and other regulatory changes may significantly affect the markets in which we do business, the
markets for and value of our loans and investments, and our ongoing operations, costs and profitability. Federal and state proposals

 limiting our rights as a creditor could result in credit losses or increased expense in pursuing our remedies as a creditor. '

)

17



The Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle has entered into a consent order with the Federal Housing Finance Agency. If our
investment in the Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle is classified as other-than-temporarily impaired or as permanently
impaired, our earnings and stockholders’ equity could decrease.

We own common stock of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle (“FHLB of Seattle™). We hold this stock to qualify for
membership in the Federal Home Loan Bank System and to be eligible to borrow funds under the FHLB of Seattle’s advance
program. The aggregate cost and fair value of our FHLB of Seattle common stock as of December 31, 2012 was $12.1 million based
on its par value. There is no market for our FHLB of Seattle common stock.

On October 25, 2010, the FHLB of Seattle entered into a consent order with the Federal Housing Finance Agency (“FHFA”™),
which requires the FHLB of Seattle to take certain specified actions related to its business and operations. In September 2012, FHFA
reclassified the FHLB of Seattle as “adequately capitalized” and the FHLB of Seattle began to repurchase a limited amount of member
capital stock at par. The FHLB of Seattle may again be in position to redeem certain capital stock from members in larger amounts
and begin paying dividends once the bank:

. achieves and maintains certain other financial and operational metrics;

. remediates certain concerns regarding its oversight and management, asset improvement program, capital adequacy and
retained earnings, risk management, compensation practices, examination findings, and information technology; and

. returns to a “safe and sound” condition as determined by the FHFA.
Any stock repurchases and redemptions and dividend payments will be subject to FHFA approval.

There continues to be a risk that the FHLB of Seattle may not be permitted to redeem certain capital stock from members and
begin paying dividends in the future, and that our investment in FHLB of Seattle common stock could be impaired at some time in the
future. If this occurs, it would cause our earnings and stockholders’ equity to decrease by the after-tax amount of the impairment
charge.

Nonresidential real estate loans and commercial business loans increase our exposure to credit risks.

At December 31, 2012, our portfolio of commercial real estate, construction and other nonresidential real estate loans totaled
$13.8 million, or 1.8% of total loans. In addition, at December 31, 2012, our portfolio of commercial business loans totaled $3.2
million, or 0.4% of total loans. These loans generally expose us to a greater risk of nonpayment and loss than residential real estate
loans because repayment of such loans often depends on the successful operations and income stream of the borrowers. Additionally,
such loans typically involve larger loan balances to single borrowers or groups of related borrowers compared to residential real estate
loans.

We target our business lending and marketing strategy towards small- to medium-sized businesses. These small- to medium-
sized businesses generally have fewer financial resources in terms of capital or borrowing capacity than larger entities. If general
economic conditions adversely affect these businesses, our results of operations and financial condition may be negatively impacted.
In addition, some of our commercial business loans are collateralized by a security interest in furniture, fixtures and equipment and the
liquidation of collateral in the event of default is often an insufficient source of repayment because the collateral may have limited use
or value.

Strong competition within our market areas may limit our growth and profitability.

Competition in the banking and financial services industry is intense. In our market areas, we compete with commercial banks,
savings institutions, mortgage brokerage firms, credit unions, finance companies, mutual funds, insurance companies, and brokerage
and investment banking firms operating locally. Some of our competitors have greater name recognition and market presence that
benefit them in attracting business, and offer certain services that we do not or cannot provide. In addition, larger competitors may be
able to price loans and deposits more aggressively than we do, which could affect our ability to grow and remain profitable on a long-
term basis. Our profitability depends upon our continued ability to successfully compete in our market areas. If we must raise interest
rates paid on deposits or lower interest rates charged on our loans, our net interest margin and profitability could be adversely affected.
For additional information see “Item 1. Business—Competition.”

If our allowance for loan losses is not sufficient to cover actual loan losses, our earnings will decrease.

We make various assumptions and judgments about the collectability of our loan portfolio, including the creditworthiness of our
borrowers and the value of the real estate and other assets serving as collateral for the repayment of many of our loans. In determining
the amount of the allowance for loan losses, we review our loans and our loss and delinquency experience, and we evaluate economic
conditions. If our assumptions are incorrect, our allowance for loan losses may not be sufficient to cover probable incurred losses in
our loan portfolio, resulting in additions to our allowance. While our allowance for loan losses was 0.2% of total loans at
December 31, 2012, material additions to our allowance could materially decrease our net income.
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. In addition, bank regulators periodically review our allowance for loan losses and may require us to increase our provision for
loan losses or recognize further loan charge-offs. Any increase in our allowance for loan losses or loan charge-offs as required by
these regulatory authorities might have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

Our employee stock ewnership plan may continue to increase our costs, which would reduce our income.

Our employee stock ownership plan purchased 8% of the total shares of common stock sold in our stock offering using funds
borrowed from Territorial Bancorp Inc. We record annual employee stock ownership plan expense in an amount equal to the fair value
of the shares of common stock released to employees over the term of the loan. If the value of the shares of common stock continues
to appreciate up to the time shares are released, compensation expense relating to the employee stock ownership plan will increase and
our net income will decline.

Our 2010 Equity Incentive Pl'a_n will increase our expenses and reduce our inco_lne; and may dilute your ownership interests.

In August 2010, our stockholders approved the Territorial Bancorp Inc. 2010 Equity Incentive Plan. Stockholders approved the
issuance of 736,434 shares of common stock pursuant to restricted stock and the issuance of 976,203 shares of common stock pursuant
to stock options. Durrng 2012, we tecognized $2.7 mrlhon in noninterest expense relating to this stock benefit plan and we expect to
incur similar expenses in the future

We may fund the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan either through open market purchases or from the issuance of authorized but
unissued shares of common stock. Our ability to repurchase shares of common stock to fund this plan will be subject to many factors,
including, but not limited to, applicable regulatory restrictions on stock repurchases, the availability of stock in the market, the tradlng
price of the stock, our capital levels, alternative uses for our capital and our financial performance. Our intention is to fund the plan
through open market purchases and we have repurchased 1,684,171 shares as of December 31, 2012. However, stockholders would
experience a reduction in ownership interest in the event newly issued shares of our common stock are used to fund stock optlons and
shares of restricted common stock beyond the shares we have already repurchased.

Concentration of loans in our prlmary marKket area, which has recently expenenced an economic downturn, may increase risk.

Our success depends primarily on the general economic conditions in the State of Hawaii, as nearly all of our loans are to
customers in the state. Accordingly, the economic conditions in the State of Hawaii have a significant impact on the ability of
borrowers to repay loans as well as our ability to originate new loans. As such; a decline in real estate valuations in this market would
lower the value of the collateral securing those loans. In addition, significant weakening in general economic conditions such as
inflation, recession, unemployment or other factors beyond our control could negatively affect our ﬁnancral results.

Our local economy relies heavrly on the tourlsm industry. Downturns in this mdustry could affect our operations and results.

Tourism is the largest sector of Hawaii’s economy. The Hawaii Tourism Authonty reported visitor arrivals and visitor spending
grew by 9.6% and 18.7%, respectively, in 2012 compared to 2011. A downturn in the tourism industry, and the related loss of jobs or
operating income for businesses, could have a significant impact on our ability to originate loans, and the ability of borrowers to repay
loans, either of which could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

Proposed reductions in defense spending by the federal government could have a detrlmental impact on Hawan S economy

Defense spendmg represents a significant portron of Hawaii’s economy. Proposals to cut defense and other general spending
could have an adverse impact on Hawaii’s economy, which could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

We are subject to extensive regulatory oversight.

We and our subsidiaries are subject to extensive regulation and supervision. Regulators have intensified their focus on bank
lending criteria and controls, and on the USA PATRIOT Act’s anti-money laundering and Bank Secrecy Act compliance
requirements. There also is increased scrutiny of our compliance practices generally and particularly with the rules enforced by the
Office of Foreign Assets Control. Our failure to comply with these and other regulatory requirements could lead to, among other
remedies, administrative enforcement actions and legal proceedmgs In addition, the Dodd-Frank Act and implementing regulations
are likely to have a significant effect on the financial services industry, which are likely to increase operating costs and reduce
profitability. Regulatory or legislative changes could make regulatory compliance more difficult or expensive for us, and could cause
us to change or limit some of our products and services, or the way we operate our business.

Severe weather, natural disasters and other external events could sngmﬁcantly affect our operatlons and results.

- Because all of our office locations are in the State of Hawaii, severe weather or natural disasters, such as tsunamis, hurricanes
and earthquakes and other adverse external events, could have a significant effect on our ability to conduct business. Such events
could affect the stability of our deposit base, impair the ability of borrowers to repay outstanding loans, impair the value of collateral
securing loans, cause significant property damage, result in loss of revenue and/or cause us to incur additional expenses. Natural
disasters, like the tsunami that occurred in Japan in 2011, could have an impact on the visitor industry in Hawaii. Accordingly, the
occurrence of any such severe weather or natural drsaster event could have a material adverse effect on our business, which, in turn,
could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations. ,
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Financial reform legislation has, among other things, eliminated the Office of Thrift Supervision, tightened capital standards
and created a new Consumer Financial Protection Bureau and will result in new laws and regulations that are expécted to
increase our costs of operations.

In 2010, Congress enacted the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the “Dodd-Frank Act”). The
Dodd-Frank Act requires various federal agencies to adopt a broad range of new implementing rules and regulations, and to prepare
numerous studies and reports for Congress. The federal agencies are given significant discretion in drafting the implementing rules
and regulations, and consequently, many of the details and much of the impact of the Dodd-Frank Act may not be known for many
months or years. ‘

As a result of the Dodd-Frank Act, the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency became the primary federal regulator for
federal thrifts (replacmg the Office of Thrift Superv1s1on), and the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System now supervises
and regulates all savings and loan holding companies that were formerly regulated by the Office of Thrift Supervision, including
Territorial Bancorp Inc.

Effective July 21,2011, a prbvision of the Dodd-Frank Act eliminated the federal prohibitions on paying interest on demand
deposits, thus allowing businesses to have interest-earning checking accounts. Depending on competitive responses, this significant
change to existing law could have an adverse effect on our interest expense.

The Dodd-Frank Act also broadened the base for Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance assessments. Assessments
are now based on the average consolidated total assets less tangible equity capital of a financial institution. The Dodd-Frank Act also
permanently increased the maximum amount of deposit insurance for banks, savings institytions and credit unions to $250,000 per
depositor.

The Dodd-Frank Act requires pubiicly-traded compahies to give stockholders a nonbinding vote on executive compensation and
so-called “golden parachute” payments. The legislation also directs the Federal Reserve Board to promulgate rules prohibiting
excessive compensation paid to bank holding company executives, regardless of whether the company is publicly traded or not.

The Dodd-Frank Act created a new Consumer Financial Protection Bureau with broad powers to supervise and enforce
consumer protection laws. The Consumer Financial Protection Bureau has broad rule-making authority for a wide range of consumer
protection laws that apply to all banks and savings institutions, including the authority to prohibit “unfair, deceptive or abusive” acts
and practices. Banks and savings institutions with $10 billion or less in assets, like Territorial Savings Bank, will be examined by their
applicable bank regulators. The Dodd-Frank Act also weakens the federal preemption rules that have been applicable for national
banks and federal savings associations, and gives state attorneys general the ability to enforce federal consumer protection laws.

It is difficult to predict at this time what specific impact the Dodd-Frank Act and the implementing rules and regulations will
have on community banks. However, it is expected that at a minimum they will increase our operatmg and compliance costs and could
increase our interest expense.

The expiration of unlimited Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance on certain non-interest-bearing transaction
accounts may increase our costs and reduce our liquidity levels.

On December 31, 2012, unlimited Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance on certain non-interest-bearing transaction
accounts expired. Unlimited insurance coverage did not apply to money market deposit accounts or negotiable order of withdrawal
accounts. The reduction in Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurarice on other types of accounts to the standard $250,000
maximum amount may cause depositors to place such funds in fully insured interest-bearing accounts, which would increase our costs
of funds and negatively affect our results of operations, or may cause depositors to withdraw their deposits and invest uninsured funds
in investments perceived as being more secure, such as securities issued by the United States Treasury. This may reduce our liquidity,
or require us to pay higher interest rates to maintain our liquidity by retaining deposits.

Our ability to originate mortgage loans may be adversely affected by the restructuring of Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae.

Both Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac are under conservatorship with the Federal Housing Finance Agency, an agency of the U.S.
government. On February 11, 2011, the Obama administration presented the U.S. Congress with a report of its proposals for reforming
America’s housing finance market with the goal of scaling back the role of the U.S. government in, and promoting the return of
private capital to, the mortgage markets and ultimately winding down Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac. Without mentioning a specific
time frame, the report calls for the reduction of the role of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac in the mortgage markets by, among other
things, reducing conforming loan limits, increasing guarantee fees and requiring larger down payments by borrowers. The report
presents three options for the long-term structure of housing finance, all of which call for the unwinding of Fannie Mae and Freddie
Mac and a reduced role of the government in the mortgage market: (i) a system with U.S. government insurance limited to a narrowly
targeted group of lower- and moderate-income borrowers; (ii) a system similar to (i) above except with an expanded guarantee during
times of crisis; and (iii) a system where the U.S. government offers reinsurance for the securities of a broad range of mortgages behind
significant private capital. We cannot be certain if or when Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac will be wound down, if or when reform of
the housing finance market will be implemented or what the future role of the U.S. government will be in the mortgage market, and,
accordingly, we will not be able to determine the impact that any such reform may have on us until a definitive reform plan is adopted.
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Government responses to economic conditions may adversely affect our operations, financial condition and earnings.

Newly enacted financial reform legislation has changed the bank regulatory framework, creating an independent consumer
protection bureau that will assume the consumer protection responsibilities of thé various federal banking agencies, and establish more
stringent capital standards for banks and bank holding companies. The legislation has resulted in new regulations affecting the
lending, funding, trading and investment activities of banks and bank holding companies. Bank regulatory agencies also have been
responding aggressively to concerns and adverse trends identified in examinations. Ongoing uncertainty and adverse developments in
the financial services industry and the domestic and international credit markets, and the effect of new legislation and regulatory
actions in response to.these conditions, may adversely affect our operations by restricting our business activities, including our ability
to Originatg or sell loans, modify loan terms, orforeclose on property securing loans. These measures are likely to increase our costs of
doing business and may have a significant adverse effect on our lending activities, financial performance and operating flexibility. In
addition, these risks could affect the performance and.value of our loan and investment securities portfolios, which also would
negatively affect our financial performance. \ , o . :

Furthermore, the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, in an attempt to help the overall economy, has, among
other things, kept interest rates low through its targeted federal funds rate and the purchase of mortgage-backed securities. If the
Federal Reserve Board increases the federal funds rate, overall interest rates will likely rise, which may negatively impact the housing
markets and the U.S. economic recovery. In addition, deflationary pressures, while possibly lowering our operating costs, could have a
significant negative effect on our borrowers; especially our business borrowers, and the values of underlying collateral securing loans,
which could negatively affect our financial performance. - - -, RRE ’

System failure or breaches. of our network security could subject us to increased operating costs as well as litigation and other
liabilities. ’ .

The computer systems and network infrastructure we use could be vulnerable to unforeseen problems. Our operations are
dependent upon our ability to protect our computer equipment against damage from physical theft, fire, power loss,
telecommunications failure or a similar catastrophic event, as well as from security breaches, denial of service attacks, viruses, worms
and other disruptive problems caused by hackers. Any damage or failure that causes an interruption in our operations could have a
material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. Computer break-ins, phishing and other disruptions could
also jeopardize the security of information stored in and transmitted through our computer systems and network infrastructure, which
may result in significant liability to us and may cause existing and potential ‘customers to refrain from doing business with us.
Although we, with the help of third-party service providers, intend to continue to implement security technology and establish
operational procedures to prevent such damage, these security measures may not be successful. In addition, advances in computer
capabilities, new discoveries in the field of cryptography or other developments could result in a compromise or breach of the
algorithms we and our third-party service providers use to encrypt and protect customer transaction data. A failure of such security
measures could hiave a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

We mitigate this risk through guidance promulgated for all financial institutions by the Federal Financial Institutions
Examination Council and the regulations issued:under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act. This guidance also requires our core data
processor to meet these standards. We regularly self-audit or review exams from auditors as well as federal banking regulators to
assure that these standards are being met, internally as well by our important data processing vendors. We also implemented firewall

and other internal controls to protect our systems from compromise.

Nevertheless, our system could be compromised and it is possible that significant amounts of time and money may be spent to
rectify the harm caused by a breach or hack. While we have general liability insurance and cyber liability insurance, we know there
are limitations on coverage as well as dollar amount. Furthermore, cyber incidents carry a greater risk of injury to our reputation.
Finally, depending on the type of incident, banking regulators can impose restrictions on our business and consumer laws may require
reimbursement of customer loss.

Our risk management framework may not be effective in mitigating risk and reducing the potential for significant losses.

Our risk management framework is designed to minimize risk and loss to us. We seek to identify, measure, monitor, report and
control our exposure to risk, including strategic, market, liquidity, compliance and operational risks. While we use a broad and
diversified set of risk monitoring and mitigation techniques, these techniques are inherently limited because they cannot anticipate the
existence or future development of currently unanticipated or unknown risks. Recent economic conditions and heightened legislative
and regulatory scrutiny of the financial services industry, among other developments, have increased our level of risk. Accordingly,
we could suffer losses as a result of our failure to properly anticipate and manage these risks.
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The corporate governance provisions in our articles of incorporation and bylaws, and the corporate governance provisions
under Maryland law, may prevent or impede the holders of our common stock from obtaining representation on our Board of
Directors and may impede takeovers of the company that our board might conclude are not in the best interest of Territorial
Bancorp Inc. or its stockholders.

Provisions in our articles of incorporation and bylaws may prevent or impede holders of our common stock from obtaining
representation on our Board of Directors and may make takeovers of Territorial Bancorp Inc. more difficult. For example, our Board
of Directors is divided into three staggered classes. A classified board makes it more difficult for stockholders to change a majority of
the directors because it generally takes at least two annual elections of directors for this to occur. Our articles of incorporation include
a provision that no person will be entitled to vote any shares of our common stock in excess of 10% of our outstanding shares of
common stock. This limitation does not apply to the purchase of shares by a tax-qualified employee stock benefit plan established by
us. In addition, our articles of incorporation and bylaws restrict who may call special meetings of stockholders and how directors may
be removed from office. Additionally, in certain instances, the Maryland General Corporation Law requires a supermajority vote of
our stockholders to approve a merger or other business combination with a large stockholder, if the proposed transaction is not
approved by a majority of our directors.

Proposed and final regulations could restrict our ability to originate and sell loans.

The Consumer Financial Protection Bureau has issued a rule designed to clarify for lenders how they can avoid legal liability
under the Dodd-Frank Act, which would hold lenders accountable for ensuring a borrower’s ability to repay a mortgage. Loans that
meet this “qualified mortgage™ definition will be presumed to have complied with the new ability-to-repay standard. Under the
Consumer Financial Protection Bureau’s rule, a “qualified mortgage” loan must not contain certain specified features, including:

. excessive upfront points and fees (those exceeding 3% of the total loan amount, less “bona fide discount points” for prime
loans);

. interest-only payments;

. negative-amortization;

. terms of longer than 30 years.

Also, to qualify as a “qualified mortgage”, a loan must be made to a borrower whose total monthly debt-to-income ratio does not
exceed 43%. Lenders must also verify and document the income and financial resources relied upon to qualify the borrower on the
loan and underwrite the loan based on a fully amortizing payment schedule and maximum interest rate during the first five years,
taking into account all applicable taxes, insurance and assessments.

In addition, the Dodd-Frank Act requires the regulatory agencies to issue regulations that require securitizers of loans to retain
“not less than 5% of the credit risk for any asset that is not a qualified residential mortgage.” The regulatory agencies have issued a
proposed rule to implement this requirement. The Dodd-Frank Act provides that the definition of “qualified residential mortgage” can
be no broader than the definition of “qualified mortgage” issued by the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau for purposes of its
regulations.

Although the final rule with respect to the retention of credit risk has not yet been issued, the final rule could have a significant
effect on the secondary market for loans and the types of loans we originate, and festrict our ability to make loans. Similarly, the
Consumer Financial Protection Bureau’s rule on qualified mortgages could limit our ability or desire to make certain types of loans or
loans to certain borrowers, which could limit our growth or profitability.

ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable.
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ITEM 2. Properties

We operate from our corporate office in Honolulu, Hawaii, and from our 27 full-service branches located in the State of Hawaii.
The net book value of our premises, land and equipment was $5.1 million at December 31, 2012. The following table sets forth
information with respect to our full-service banking offices, including the expiration date of leases with respect to leased facilities.

AINA HAINA

Aina Haina Shopping Center
820 West Hind Drive
Honolulu, Oahu 96821
4/30/2021

ALA MOANA CENTER
1450 Ala Moana Boulevard
Honolulu, Oahu 96814
12/31/2017

DOWNTOWN

1000 Bishop Street
Honolulu, Oahu' 96813
12/31/2020

HAWAII KAI

Hawaii Kai Shopping Center

377 Keahole Street
Honolulu, Oahu 96825
9/30/2013

HILO

Waiakea Center
315 Makaala Street
Hilo, Hawaii 96720
12/31/2018

KAHALA o
4819 Kilauea Avenue
Honolulu, Oahu 9681 6
3/16/2015

KAHULUI
Queen Kaahumanu Center

. KAILUA

19 Oneawa Street ‘

 Kailua, Oahu 96734

' KAIMUKI

1108 12* Avenue
Haonolulu, Oahu 96816
12/31/2018

KALIHI-KAPALAMA
1199 Dillingham Boulevard
Honolulu, Oahu 968 1 7

8/3 1/20 1 7 ’

KAMEHAMEHA

" -SHOPPING CENTER
1620 North School Street '

Honolulu, Oahu 9681 7
9/30/2015

KANEOHE

46-005 Kawa Street
Kaneohe, Oahu 96744
12/31/2014

KAPAHULU
Kilohana Square -

1016 Kapahulu Avenue
Honolulu, Oahu 96816
11/14/2013

. KAPOLEI

Ace Center at Képolei-

275 W. Kaahumanu Avenue - = 480 Kamokila Boulevard
Kahului, Maui 96732 " Kapolei, Oahu 96707
12/31/2019 7/31/2014

ITEM 3. _ Legal. Proceedings

. KAUAI
.- -Kukui Grove Shopping Center
- ‘4393 Kukui Grove Street

Lilue, Kauai 96766
2/28/2013

KIHEI

Azeka Shopping Center
1279 South Kihei Road
Kihei, Maui 96753
1/31/2019

KONA

Crossroads Shopping Center
75-1027 Henry Street =
Kailua-Kona; Hawaii 96740
8/31/2015

LAHAINA

Old Lahaina Center
'170.Papalaua Street

" Lahaina, Maui 96761

3/31/2023.

McCULLY

1111 McCully Street
Honolulu, Oahu 96826
5/31/2013

MILILANI
Town Center of Mililani
95-1249 Meheula Parkway
Mililani, Oahu 96789
10/11/2014

NUUANU

-~ Nuuanmu Shopping Center

1613 Nuuanu Avenue
Honolulu, Oahu 96817
7/22/2021

PEARL CITY . -

Pearl City Shopping Center
850 Kamehameha Highway
Pearl City, Oahu'96782
9/22/2014

PEARLRIDGE

98-084 Kamehameha Highway
Aiea, Oahu 96701

6/30/2022

PIIKOI

1159 South Beretania Street
Honolulu, Oahu 96814
12/31/2020

SALT LAKE ‘
Salt Lake Shopping Center
848 Ala Lilikoi Street '
Honoluly; Oahu 96818
1/31/2016-

. - WAIPAHU

Waipahu Town Center
94-050 Farrington Highway
Waipahu, Oahu 96797
12/31/2014 ‘

WAIPIO

Laniakea Plaza

94-1221 Ka Uka Boulevard
Waipahu, Oahu 96797
9/30/2016

‘From time to time, we are involved as plaintiff or defendant in various legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of

business. Except as prev1ous1y disclosed, at December 31, 2012, we were not mvolved in any legal proceedmgs the outcome of which
would be material to our financial condition or results of operations.

ITEM 4.
Not apphcable

Mine Safety Dlsclosures
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PART II

ITEM 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities

(a) Market, Holder and Dividend Information. Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the
symbol “TBNK.” The approximate number of holders of record of Territorial Bancorp Inc.’s common stock as of February 28, 2013
was 1,292. Certain shares of Territorial Bancorp Inc. are held in “nominee” or “street” name and, accordingly, the number of
beneficial owners of such shares is not known or included in the foregoing number. The following table presents quarterly market and
dividend information for Territorial Bancorp Inc.’s common stock for the two years ended December 31, 2012. The following
information with respect to high and low closing prices was provided by the NASDAQ Global Select Market.

Dividends
Declared Per
High Low Share

Year Ended December 31, 2012 ,
Quarter ended December 31,2012 ............ e $ 2339 $ 22.00 $ 0.22
Quarter ended September 30, 2012............. ererrrrer st $ 2432 § 2254 § 0.11
Quarter ended June 30, 2012 ....c.ccocoeiviiinninieeeeie $ 2314 $ 2087 $ 0.11
Quarter ended March 31, 2012 ...c.c.ccccouvviiiinnnncinneeennn. $ 2198 $ 1991 $ 0.10.
Year Ended December 31, 2011 .
Quarter ended December 31, 2011 ..ot $ 2031 $ 18.87 $ 0.09
Quarter ended September 30, 201 1.......coeviiivninnincennnnns $ 21.29 $ 18.96 $ 0.09
Quarter ended June 30, 2011 ... $ 2072 $ 19.27 $ 0.09
Quarter ended March 31, 2011 ..c.coocevvveciiiiiininirerica, $ 2025 $ 1891 $ 0.07

Dividend payments by Territorial Bancorp Inc. are dependent on dividends it receives from Territorial Savings Bank, because
Territorial Bancorp Inc. has no source of income other than dividends from Territorial Savings Bank, earnings from the investment of
proceeds from the sale of shares of common stock retained by Territorial Bancorp Inc. and interest payments with respect to
Territorial Bancorp Inc.’s loan to the Employee Stock Ownership Plan. See “Item 1. Business—Supervision and Regulation—Federal
Banking Regulation—Capital Distributions” and “—Holding Company Regulation—Dividends and Stock Repurchases.”

(b) Sales of Unregistered Securities. Not applicable. -
(c) Use of Proceeds. Not applicable.

(d) Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans. See “Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.”

(¢) Stock Repurchases. The following table sets forth information in connection with repurchases of our shares of common
stock during the fourth quarter of 2012: '

Total Number of Maximum Number of
Shares Purchased as Shares That May Yet
Average Price Part of Publicly be Purchased Under
Total Number of Paid per Announced Plans or the Plans or
Period Shares Purchased Share Programs Programs (1)
November 1, 2012 through November 30, 2012.... 61,865 § 22.23 61,865 216,674
December 1, 2012 through December 31, 2012..... 33,592 22.56 33,592 183,082
TOtal ..ot 95,457 $ 22.34 95,457 183,082

(1) OnDecember 9, 2011, our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to 552,000 shares of our common stock. In
accordance with this authorization, we had repurchased 368,918 shares of our common stock as of December 31, 2012. This
repurchase authorization originally expired on August 15, 2012, but on August 13, 2012, it was extended to February 15, 2013.
We have entered into a 10b5-1 plan with respect to our stock repurchase plan.

(f) Stock Performance Graph. Set forth hereunder is a stock performance graph comparing (a) the cumulative total return on
our shares of common stock between July 13, 2009 and December 31, 2012, (b) the cumulative total return on stocks included in the
Total Return Index for the NASDAQ Stock Market (US) over such period, and (c) the cumulative total return on stocks included in
the NASDAQ Bank Index over such period. Cumulative return assumes the reinvestment of dividends, and is expressed in dollars
based on an assumed investment of $100.
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There can be no assurance that the Company’s stock performance will continue in the future with the same or similar trend

depicted in the graph. The Company will not make or endorse any predictions as to future stock performance.

“Total Retum Performance
- —#—Teiorial Bancorp Inc.
175 | - i 8NL Bank and Thrift . B
—&—NASDAQComposi®e
F
E
s
100 " v e
75 b == —— —t : : ¥
aTnsng 12131109 06130710 12BNe 0613011 123111 0GSB0H2 1213112
Period Ending :
Index 07/13/09  12/31/09 06/30/10 12/31/10 06/30/11 12/31/11 06/30/12 12/31/12
Territorial Bancorp Inc. .....cccceievuenenenen. 100.00 120.41 127.06  134.55 141.17 135.79 158.10 160.98
SNL Bank and Thrift ..................z0... - 100,00 114.18 112.89 127.47 117.96 99.12 115.90 133.10
NASDAQ Comiposite............ieremrrennnense - 100.00 | 127.12 118.71 - 150.19 157.72 149.00 168.84 '175.45
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ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected consolidated financial and other data has been derived, in part, from the consolidated financial
statements and notes appearing elsewhere in this annual report.

Years Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(In thousands)
Selected Financial Condition Data:
TOtAl @SSELS....ecveereererrrereeeereeieennrenresiseerecsresnsesreans $ 1,574,627 $ 1,537,571 $ 1,443,412 $ 1,389,612 § 1,224,446
Cash and cash equivalents ............cccocvvinivinneiinnnens 182,818 131,937 194,435 135,953 11,216
Investment securities held to maturity .......cc.coceeennne 554,673 653,871 530,555 598,394 527,767
Loans receivable, Nt ......cooecvveverieiierieeeieeeeenereneine 774,876 688,095 641,790 597,700 633,160
Bank-owned life INSUTANCE .........coceveervcevererireveerernes 31,177 30,234 29,266 28,249 27,107
Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle stock, at cost ... 12,128 12,348 12,348 12,348 12,348
DEPOSILS ....oovvinrerereeeeneiercrerieeseneesieee st saeneaeene e rens 1,237,847 1,166,116 1,076,470 1,014,668 923,914
Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle advances .......... 20,000 20,000 10,000 0 35,791
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase......... 70,000 108,300 105,200 130,200 115,200
Subordinated debentures............oeceeveeerecreririniiiinens 0 0 0 0 24,221
Stockholders’ equUity .......c.coveeveererrermimsiniirinireienens 218,972 213,961 227,359 219,671 99,381
Years Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(In thousands)

Selected Operating Data:
Interest and dividend INCOME .........oovveeriereeieiirrieeeecee b sarasennes $ 60,149 $ 62,733 $ 61,115 $§ 61,525 $§ 61,220
INEETESt EXPEMSE......oveveevcririiriiriiiienitete st bss st ss e e s sa e ssanesuesnsnnas 9,229 11,285 14,828 19,984 25,247

Net INterest INCOMIE. ... .vvviieecireeeeeeeereieeeeeenereeseanseesssisrsesssssssnnns 50,920 51,448 46,287 41,541 35,973
Provision for 10an TOSSES ..........ccovviieeiieeeriieeeeeiceeeeeeeeeeenere s scsaranaeees 415 418 345 1,198 149

Net interest and dividend income after provision for loan

LOSSES weerveerereeieeieeitreeveasesssesseasrsessas e sesnesnnestnssstasssesasaesarn 50,505 51,030 45,942 40,343 35,824

NONINLETESE INCOMIE ......oecvvevreveeneereereererseereessessessessaessessessesaneasessesnessees 7,068 5,111 2,128 2,505 2,173
NONINLETESE EXPENSE ....ovveverrererenrereririiassisisreriseeseteressesessssssssesssnesssseses 34,438 34,654 31,530 29,545 27,003

Income before iNCOME taAXES.....cccevvrerereniieieineirinennesensnsessnneenns 23,135 21,487 16,540 13,303 10,994
TIICOMIE LAXES oeoeeeveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeieeeessireeeeaseseesssnsresennneesasssasesssssreassesnsnsneens 8,297 8,698 5,512 4,639 3,794

NEL INCOME ...oenvriiereirieieeciteietesre st sis st st rr s rs e b s snasanans $ 14,838 $§ 12,789 $ 11,028 $§ 8,664 § 7,200

At or For the Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Selected Financial Ratios and Other Data:
Performance Ratios:
Return on average assets (ratio of net income to average total

ASSEES) c.vievereeictiereieeieerereetetesee ettt nea s s 0.95% 0.85% 0.77% 0.66% 0.60%
Return on average equity (ratio of net income to

AVETAZE QUILY) c.voverer ittt 6.78% 5.72% 4.91% 5.50% 7.37%
Interest rate spread (1) ....ccccceovnceciiiiiiiiereeniee e 3.25% 341% 3.14% 3.04% 2.95%
Net interest Margin (2) .....cceceeeereererereniiisnisriseseneesseesienes 3.36% 3.55% 3.35% 3.26% 3.14%
Efficiency 1atio (3)...ccoevivveircmeiirciiiiiinecee et 59.39% 61.27% 65.12% 67.08% 70.79%
Noninterest expense to average total assets ..........coeeeeienennns 220% - 2.31% 2.20% 2.24% 2.25%
Average interest-earning assets to average interest-bearing

HADIILIES ...ttt 117.38% 118.21% 119.19% 114.30%  108.71%
Average equity to average total @ssets ..........cooeereviniieninenincan, 13.97% 14.91% 15.69% 11.93% 8.15%
Basic earnings per share (4) .......c.cccvvvivivvininivnieinniiinnnen $ 147 $ 1.19 $ 097 § 0.77 N/A




. At or For the Years Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Diluted earnings per Share (4)...........ccivieesieeceiiieineennn. RO ‘$ 145 § 1.17 - $ 097 § 0.77 N/A
Dividend payout ratio ................. ettt o 37.24% 29.06% 24.74% N/A N/A
Asset Quality Ratios: :
Nonperforming assets to total assets............eviveereeeeevevrerennen. : 0.28% 0.22% 0.06% 0.05% 0.02%
Nonperforming loans to total 10ans.............cceoeveveveeeerervennnnen. 0.56% 0.42% 0.12% 0.09% 0.02%
Allowance for loan losses to nonperforming loans................... 37.95% 52.65% 184.16% 323.27%  603.36%
Allowance for loan losses to total 10ans................cccvevererenrnes 0 0.22% 0.22% 0.23% 0.28% 0.14%
Capital Ratios (bank-level only):

Total capital (to risk-weighted assets).......ccovvrrrrerrreiiemcecinananin . 36.87% 38.76%: 43.06% 37.18% 24.97%
Tier I capital (to risk-weighted assets) ................... oo i - 36.57%- 38.47% 42.75% 36.85% 24.82%
Tier I capital (to total assets)........iiviiciiviveees i - 13.13% 13.07% 14.02% 13.67% 9.89%
Other Data: ‘ Lo o ’ . . ‘ : ) |
Number of full-Service 0ffiCes ............vumvmemereereerereeresrressronn. 27 27 26 25 24
Full-time equivalent employees.....c....coovvvvevericeeeemeeeeeeeennn, 271 258 252 256 250

(1) - The average interest rate spread represents the difference between the weighted-average yield on interest-earning assets and the
- .weighted-average cost ofiinterest-bearing liabilities for the year. ) -

(2)  The net interest margin represents net interest income as a percent of average interest-earning assets for the year.

(3)  The efficiency ratio represents noninterest expense divided by the sum of net interest income and noninterest income.

(4)  The number of shares for the year ended 2009 are calculated from the effective date of July 10,2009 to the period end.

ITEM 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Co’nditioﬁ and Results of Operations

The objective of this section is to help readers understand our views on our results of operations and financial condition. You
should read this discussion in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes to the consolidated financial statements
that appear elsewhere in the annual report. : : ' :

Overview

We have historically ope‘rated as a traditional thrift institution. The significant ‘majority of our assets consist of long-term, fixed-
rate residential mortgage loans and mortgage-backed securities, which we have funded primarily with deposit accounts, securities sold
under agreements to repurchase and Federal Home Loan Bank advances. This has resulted in our being particularly vulnerable to
increases in interest rates, as our interest-bearing liabilities mature or reprice more quickly than our interest-earning assets.

We have continued our focus on originating one- to four-family residential real estate loans. Our emphasis on conservative loan
underwriting has resulted in low levels of nonperforming assets at a time when many financial institutions are experiencing significant
asset quality issues. Our nonperforming assets totaled $4.4 million or 0.28% of total assets at December 31, 2012, compared to $3.3
million, or 0.22% of total assets at December 31, 2011, and $808,000, or 0.06% of total assets at December 31, 2010. As of
December 31, 2012, nonperforming-assets included 19 mortgage loans for $4.4 million. Our nonperforming loans and-loss experience
has enabled us to maintain a relatively low allowance for loan losses in relation to other peer institutions and correspondingly resulted
in low levels of provisions for loan losses. Our provisions for loan losses were $415,000, $418,000 and $345,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. . IR :

Other than our loans for the construction of one- to four-family residential homes, we do not offer “interest only” mortgage
loans on one- to four-family residential properties (where the borrower pays interest for an initial period, after which the loan converts
to a fully amortizing loan). We also do not offer loans that provide for negative amortization of principal, such as “Option ARM”
loans, where the borrower can pay less than the interest owed on their loan, resulting in an increased principal balance during the life
of the loan. We do not offer “subprime loans” (loans that generally target borrowers with weakened credit histories typically
characterized by payment delinquencies, previous charge-offs, judgments, bankruptcies, or borrowers with questionable repayment
capacity as evidenced by low credit scores or high debt-burden ratios) or Alt-A loans (traditionally defined as nonconforming loans
having less than full documentation). We also do not own any private label mortgage-backed securities that are collateralized by Alt-
A, low or no documentation or subprime mortgage loans. ‘ ' ‘

Our operations in recent years have been affected by our efforts to manage our interest rate risk position. In 2010, we obtained
$10.2 million of shorter-duration mortgage-backed securities, sold $45.1 million of fixed-rate mortgage loan production and obtained
$10.0 million of long-term, fixed-rate borrowings. In 2011, we sold $61.2 million of fixed-rate mortgage loan production and obtained
$57.0 million of long-term, fixed-rate borrowings. In 2012, we sold $107.9 million of fixed-rate mortgage loans and purchased $8.2
million of shorter-duration mortgage-backed securities. See “—Management of Market Risk” for a discussion of all of the actions we
took in 2010, 2011 and 2012 in managing interest rate risk.
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All of the Bank’s mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations have been issued by Freddie Mac, Fannie
Mae or Ginnie Mae, U.S. government-sponsored enterprises. These agencies guarantee the payment of principal and interest on the
Bank’s mortgage-backed securities. We do not own any preferred stock issued by Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac. As of December 31,
2012, our borrowing capacity at the Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle was $370.6 million compared to $361.0 million at
December 31, 2011.

Critical Accounting Policies

' We consider accounting policies that require management to exercise significant judgment or discretion or make significant
assumptions that have, or could have, a material impact on the carrying value of certam assets or on income, to be critical accounting
policies. We consider the following to be our critical accounting policies:

Allowance for Loan Losses. We maintain an allowance for loan losses at an amount estimated to equal all credit losses incurred
in our loan portfolio that are both probable and reasonable to estimate at a balance sheet date. To estimate credit losses on 1mpa1red
loans (in accordance with the Receivables topic of the FASB ASC), we evaluate numerous factors, as described below in ¢
Allowance for Loan Losses.” Based on our estimate of the level of allowance for loan losses required, we record a provision for loan
losses to maintain the allowance for loan losses at an amount that provides for all losses that are both probable and reasonable to
estimate.

Since we cannot predict with certainty the amount of loan charge-offs that will be incurred and because the eventual level of
loan charge-offs is affected by numerous conditions beyond our control, a range of loss estimates can reasonably be used to determine
the allowance for loan losses and the related provisions for loan losses. In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of
their examination processes, periodically review our allowance for loan losses. Such agencies may require that we recognize additions
to the allowance for loan losses based on their judgments about information available to them at the time of their examination.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Deterioration in the Hawaii real estate market could result in an increase in loan delinquencies, additional increases in our
allowance for loan losses and provision for loan losses, as well as an increase in loan charge-offs.

Securities Impairment. We periodically perform analyses to determine whether there has been an other-than-temporary decline
in the value of our securities. Our held-to-maturity securities consist primarily of debt securities for which we have a positive intent
and ability to hold to maturity, and are carried at amortized cost. Our available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value. We conduct
a quarterly review and evaluation of the securities portfolio to determine if the value of any security has declined below its cost or
amortized cost, and whether such decline is other-than-temporary. If such decline is deemed other-than-temporary, we would adjust
the cost basis of the security by writing down the security for any credit losses through a charge on the income statement. The market
values of our securities are affected by changes in interest rates as well as shifts in the market’s perception of the issuers. The fair
value of investment securities is usually based on quoted market prices or dealer quotes. However, if there are no observable market
inputs (for securities such as trust preferred securities), we estimate the fair value using unobservable inputs. We discount projected
cash flows using a risk-adjusted discount rate in accordance with the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures topic of the FASB
ASC.

On April 9, 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board revised the Investments—Debt and Equity Securities and the Fair
Value Measurements topics of the FASB ASC. The revisions amend the other-than-temporary impairment guidance for U.S. GAAP
for debt securities to improve the presentation and disclosure of other-than-temporary impairments on debt and equity securities in a
company’s financial statements. Before these revisions, to conclude that an impairment was not other than temporary, an entity was
required, among other considerations, to assert that it had the intent and ability to hold the security for a period of time sufficient to
allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value in accordance with Securities and Exchange Commission Staff Accounting Bulletin
Topic SM, “Other Than Temporary Impairment of Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities,” and other authoritative
literature. As a result of these revisions, an entity should assess whether the entity (a) has the intent to sell the debt security or (b) more
likely than not will be required to sell the debt security before its anticipated recovery (for example, if its cash or working capital
requirements or contractual or regulatory obligations indicate that the debt security will be required to be sold before the forecasted
recovery occurs). The revisions also change the trigger used to assess the collectability of cash flows from “probable that the investor
will be unable to collect all amounts due” to “the entity does not expect to recover the entire amortized cost basis of the security.” If
the present value of cash flows expected to be collected is less than the amortized cost basis of the security, an other-than-temporary
impairment shall have occurred. We adopted the two revisions to the FASB ASC for the quarter ended March 31, 2009.

We had previously considered our investment in PreTSL XXIV to be other-than-temporarily impaired. PreTSL XXIV has a
book value of $0. Our investment in PreTSL XXIII was determined to be other-than-temporarily impaired and we recorded an
impairment charge of $2.4 million in the year ended December 31, 2010. PreTSL XXIII has a book value of $421,000. The difference
between the book value of $421,000 and the remaining unamortized cost basis of $1.1 million is reported as other comprehensive loss
and is related to noncredit factors such as an inactive trust preferred securities market.
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See also “Item 1 A. Risk Factors” for a discussion on our investment in trust preferred securities. -

We evaluated our $12.1 million investment in FHLB stock for other-than-temporary impairment as of December 31, 2012.
Considering the long-term nature of this investment, the liquidity position of the FHLB of Seattle, the actions taken by the FHLB of
Seattle to meet its regulatory capital requirement, and our intent not to sell this investment for a period of time sufficient to recover the
par value, our FHLB stock was not considered other-than-temporarily impaired. As of December 31, 2012, the FHLB of Seattle has
met all of its regulatory capital requirements. Moody’s Investor Services and Standard and Poor’s have given the FHLB of Seattle
long-term credit ratings of Aaa and AA, respectively. Even though we did not recognize an other-than-temporary impairment loss on
our investment in FHLB stock in 2012, continued deterioration in the FHLB of Seattle’s financial position may result in future
impairment losses.

Deferred Tax Assets. Deferred tax asséts and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax effects attributable to
temporary differences and carryforwards. A valuation allowance may be required if, based on the weight of available evidence, it is
more likely than not that some portion-or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. In determining whether a valuation
allowance is necessary, we consider the level of taxable income in prior years, to the extent that carrybacks are permitted under
current tax laws, as well as estimates of future taxable income and tax . planning strategies that could be implemented to accelerate
taxable income if necessary. If our estimates of future taxable income Were materially overstated or if our assumptions regarding the
tax consequences of tax planning strategles were inaccurate, some or all of our deferred tax assets may not be realized, which would
resultin a charge to earnings.

Defined Benefit Retirement Plan. Deﬁned benefit plan obligations and related assets of our defined benefit retirement plan are
presented in Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Effective December 31, 2008, the defined benefit retirement plan was
frozen and all plan benefits were fixed as of that date. Plan assets, which consist primarily of marketable equity and debt securities, are
typically valued using market quotations. Plan obligations and the annual pension expense are determined by independent actuaries
through the use of a number of assumptions. Key assumptions in measuring the plan obligations include the discount rate and the
expected long-term rate of return on plan assets. In determining the discount rate, we utilize a yield that reflects the top 50% of the
universe of bonds, ranked in the order of the highest yield. These bonds provide cash flows that match the timing of expected benefit
payments. Asset returns are based upon the anticipated average rate of earnings expected on the invested funds of the plans.

At December 31, 2012, we used weighted-average discount rates of 4. 90% and 4.20% for calculating annual pens1on expense
and projected plan liabilities, respectively, and an expected long-term rate of return on plan assets of 7.75% for calculating annual
pensron expense. At December 31, 2011, we used a weighted-average discount rate of 5.80% and 4.90% for calculating annual
pension expense and projected plan liabilities, respectively, and an expected long-term rate of return on plan assets of 7.75% for
calculating annual pension expense. For both the discount rate and the asset return rate, a range of estimates could reasonably have
been used, which would affect the amount of pension expense and pension liability recorded

An increase in the discount rate or asset return rate would reduce pension expense in 2012, while a decrease in the discount rate
or asset return rate would have the opposite effect. A 25 basis point decrease in the discount rate assumptions would increase 2012
pension expense by $515 and year-end 2012 pension liability by $491,000, while a 25 basis point decrease in the asset return rate
would increase 2012 pension expense by $27, 000

Balance Sheet Analysis

Assets. At December 31, 2012, our assets were $1.575 billion, an increase of $37.1 million, or 2 4%, from $1.538 billion at
December 31, 2011. The increase was caused by an $86.8 million increase in loans receivable due to an increase in loan production,
and a $50.9 million increase in cash and cash equivalents. This was partially offset by a $99.2 million decrease in investment
securities, which occurred as repayments and sales of securltres exceeded purchases.

~ Cash and Cash Equzvalents At December 31, 2012, we had $182.8 million of cash and cash equivalents compared to $131.9
million at December 31, 2011. During 2012, cash and cash equivalents increased by $50.9 million due to a $71.7 million increase in
deposits, a $99.2 millioh decrease in investment securities and net income of $14.8 million. This was partially offset by an $86.8
million increase in loans receivable, the payoff of $38.3 million of securities sold under agreements to repurchase, the repurchase of
$8.0 million of common stock and the payment of $5.7 million of common stock dividends.
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Loan Portfolio Composition. The following table sets forth the composition of our loan portfolio at the dates indicated.

At December 31,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent
(Dollars in thousands)
Real estate loans:
First mortgage:
One- to four-family
residential.................. $ 741,334 9484% $ 654,412 94.13% $ 604,456 93.16% $ 555,473 91.87% $ 581,251 90.94%
Multi-family residential... 6,888 0.88 6,956 1.00 5,408 0.83 3,807 0.63 3,756 0.59
Construction, commercial
and other..........c......... 13,819 1.77 11,140 1.60 13,300 2.05 16,672 2.76 18,099 2.83
Home equity loans and lines - ’
of credit cuoeeeeeenerenennnnn. 15,202 1.94 17,253 248 20,064 3.09 21,789 3.60 29,956 4.69
Other loans.........ccccceeevrereereennen. 4,481 0.57 5,488 0.79 5,635 0.87 6,895 1.14 6,097 0.95
Total loans.........cccceveueneene 781,724 100.00% 695,249 100.00% 648,863 100.00% 604,636 100.00% 639,159 100.00%
Other items:
Unearned fees and discounts,
S (5,176) (5.613) (5,585) (5,255) (5,100)
Allowance for loan losses..... (1,672) (1,541) (1,488) (1,681) (899)
Loans receivable, net....... $ 774,876 $ 688,095 $ 641,790 $ 597,700 $ 633,160

Loan Portfolio Maturities and Yields. The following table summarizes the scheduled maturities of our loan portfolio at December 31, 2012. Demand loans, loans having no
stated repayment schedule or maturity, and overdraft loans are reported as being due in one year or less.

One- to four-family Multi-family residential Construction, commercial Home equity loans and
residential real estate real estate and other real estate lines of credit Other loans Total
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted ‘Weighted
Average Average Average Average Average Average
Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
(Dollars in thousands)
Due During the Years
Ending December 31,
. 3 18 6.02% $ 0 0.00% $ 0 0.00% $ 2 8.88% $ 1,056 6.58% § 1,076 6.57%
569 5.59 768 6.34 1,087 6.69 391 534 947 6.68 3,762 6.31
740,747 449 6,120 591 12,732 ©5.21 14,809 5.63 2,478 5.73 776,886 4.54
Total.....cccceuee.. $ 741,334 449% $ 6,888 5.96% $ 13,819 533% $ 15,202 562% $ 4,481 6.13% 4.55%

$ 781,724




are contractually due after December 31, 2013,

Real estate loans:
First mortgage:

One- to four-family residential............ ,
Multi-family residential............... A
Construction, commercial and other...
Home equity loans and lines of credit .......... ;

(071575 g [17:1 1 - JE SRR erereenrerennes

Due After December 31,2013 -

The following table sets forth the scheduled repayments of fixed- and adjustable-rate loans at December 31, 2012 that

Fixed Adjustable Total
- (In thousands)

...... $ 735583 § 5733 $ . 741316
...... 5,640 1,248 6,888
....... 11,808 2,011 13,819
...... 6,247 8,953 15,200
3,134 - 291 3,425

.......... $ 762412 $ 18236 $ 780,648

Securities. At December 31, 2012, our securities portfolio totaled $554.7 million, or 35.2% of assets. At that date, our
securities held to maturity consisted of securities with the following amortized costs: $510.0 million of mortgage-backed

securities, $44.3 million of collateralized mortgage obligations and $421,000 of trust preferred securities. All of the

mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations were issued by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac or Ginnie Mae.
At December 31, 2012, none of the underlying collateral consisted of subprime or Alt-A loans (traditionally defined as
nonconforming loans having less than full documentation). At December 31, 2012, we held no common or preferred stock of

Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, our securities portfolio decreased by $99.2 million, or 15.2%, primarily due

to repayments and sales exceeding purchases

The following table sets forth the amortized cost and estimated fair value of our securities portfolio (excluding Federal
Home Loan Bank of Seattle common stock) at the dates indicated.

At December 31,
2012 2011 2010
Amortized Amortized Amortized
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
(In thousands)
Held to Maturity:
U.S. government sponsored mortgage-backed
securities:
Fannie Mae .......cccoceevereeieveennecenncnniinnenns $124,106 $ 127,929 $ 69254 § 73,043 $ 62,174 § 65,576
Freddie Mac.......cccecevenincnvcneeneciiisinieine 348,569 371,141 462,546 486,895 301,450 310,082
Collateralized mortgage obligations (1)...... 44,302 44,698 74,548 76,408 122,209 125,427
Ginnie Mae .......coceeeereecceceenicnnenennaninnins 37,275 39,936 47,491 50,714 44,690 45,631
Total U.S. government sponsored
mortgage-backed securities ............. 554,252 583,704 653,839 687,060 530,523 546,716
Trust preferred securities.........c.occeererenverernenenes 421 32 259 . 32 128
Total ..o $554,673 $ 584,125 $ 653,871 $ 687,319 $ 530,555 $§ 546,844
Available for Sale:
U.S. government sponsored mortgage-backed
securities:
Freddie Mac .....c.oevveeveveeieveieerecreresneeeaens $ $ 0 3 0 3 0 $ 5,148 § 4,965
Ginnie Mae ....ccoeveerecrieseeneeneneeeesesnecrnnes 0 0 0 10,392 10,045
Total U.S. government sponsored
$ 0 $ 0 8 0 $ 15,540 §$ 15,010

mortgage-backed securities ............. $

(1)  All of our collateralized mortgage obligations have been issued by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac or Ginnie Mae.
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Any unrealized loss on individual mortgage-backed securities as of December 31, 2012; 2011 and 2010 was caused by
increases in current market interest rates. All of our mortgage-backed securities are guaranteed by U.S. government-
sponsored enterprises. Since the decline in market value had been attributable to changes in interest rates and not credit
quality, and we have had, and continue to have, the intent not to sell these investments, and it is not more likely than not that
we will be required to sell such investments prior to the recovery of the amortized cost basis, we have not considered these
investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired as of December 31, 2012, 2011 or 2010.

At December 31, 2012, we owned trust preferred securities with a carrying value of $421,000. This portfolio consists
of two securities, which represent investments in a pool of debt obligations issued by Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation-
insured financial institutions, insurance companies and real estate investment trusts.

The trust preferred securities market is considered to be inactive as only three transactions have occurred over the past
12 months in the same tranche of securities owned by the Company. The Company used a discounted cash flow model to
determine whether these securities are other-than-temporarily impaired. The assumptions used in preparing the discounted
cash flow model include the following: estimated discount rates, estimated deferral and default rates on collateral, and
estimated cash flows. We used a discount rate equal to three-month LIBOR plus 20.00% and provided a fair value estimate of
$11.90 per $100 of par value for PreTSL XXIII.

See also “Ttem 1A. Risk Factors” for a discussion on our investment in trust preferred securities.

At December 31, 2012, we had no investments in a single company (other than U.S. government sponsored enterprises)
or entity that had an aggregate book value in excess of 10% of our consolidated equity.
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Portfolio Maturities and Coupons. The composition and maturities of the investment securities portfolio at December 31, 2012 are summarized in the following
table. Maturities are based on the final contractual payment dates, and do not reflect the impact of prepayments or early redemptions that may occur. No tax-equivalent
adjustments have been made, as we did not hold any tax-free investment securities at December 31, 2012.

More than One Year More than Five Years
One Year or Less through Five Years through Ten Years More than Ten Years Total Securities
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
Amortized Average Amortized Average Amortized Average Amortized Average Amortized Average
Cost Coupon Cost . Coupon Cost Coupon Cost Coupon Cost Fair Value Coupon
(Dollars in thousands)
Held to Maturity:
U.S. government sponsored mortgage-
backed securities:
Fannie Mae.......ccooucermmuenunne $ 0 0.00% $ 0 0.00% $ 103 454% $§ 124,003 3.60% $ 124,106 $ 127,929 3.60%
Freddie Mac......c.ccccccrvmemnnnee. 0 0.00 0 0.00 33 4.81 348,536 4.08 348,569 371,141 4.08
Collateralized mortgage
obligations (1) .....c.cceueecee 0 0.00 309 3.75 2,852 437 41,141 4.02 44,302 44,698 4.04
Ginnie Mae........coovcccrmnnece 0 0.00 0 - 0.00 0 Q.00 37,275 4.18 37,275 39,936 4.18
Total U.S.
government
sponsored
mortgage-backed -
securities .......... 0 0.00 309 3.75 2,988 438 550,955 3.97 554,252 583,704 3.98
Trust preferred securities.................... 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 421 2.57 421 421 2.57
Total ..o $ 0 0.00% $ 309 375% § 2,988 438% $ 551,376 397% $ 554,673 $ 584,125 3.98%
E——————— E———————— ————— —_——

(1)  All of our collateralized mortgage obligations have been issued by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac or Ginnie Mae.

Bank-Owned Life Insurance. We invest in bank-owned life insurance to provide us with a funding source for our benefit plan obligations. Bank-owned life
insurance also generally provides us noninterest income that is nontaxable, Federal regulations generally limit our investment in bank-owned life insurance to 25% of our
Tier 1 capital plus our allowance for loan losses. At December 31, 2012, this limit was $52.2 million, and we had invested $31.2 million in bank-owned life insurance at
that date.



Deposits. We accept deposits primarily from the areas in which our offices are located. We rely on our competitive
pricing, convenient locations and customer service to attract and retain deposits. We offer a variety of deposit accounts with a
range of interest rates and terms. Our deposit accounts consist of passbook and statement savings accounts, certificates of
deposit, money market accounts, commercial and regular checking accounts and Super NOW accounts. Historically, we have

not accepted brokered deposits.

Interest rates paid, maturity terms, service fees and withdrawal penalties are established on a periodic basis. Deposit
rates and terms are based primarily on current operating strategies, market interest rates, liquidity requirements and our
deposit growth goals.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, our deposits grew by $71.7 million, or 6.2%. The increase was caused by
our strategy of promoting higher-than-market rates for our passbook and statement savings accounts. Savings accounts grew
by $73.2 million, or 9.1%, because of higher interest rates. We also believe that the ability to get immediate access to their
funds without incurring an early withdrawal penalty appeals to customers.

At December 31, 2012, we had a total of $205.4 million in certificates of deposit, of which $146.7 million had
remaining maturities of one year or less. Based on historical experience and our current pricing strategy, we believe we will
retain a significant portion of these accounts upon maturity.

The following tables set forth the distribution of our average total deposit accounts (including interest-bearing and
noninterest-bearing deposits), by account type, for the periods indicated.

For the Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011
Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average Average
Balance Percent Rate Balance - Percent Rate

(Dollars in thousands)

Deposit type: '
Noninterest-bearing ............coeeveienene $ 29,049 2.4% 0.00% $ 22,566 2.0% 0.00%
Savings accounts...........c.ccovererernerenns 849,945 70.3 0.51% 771,194 69.1 0.61%
Certificates of deposit..........cocceuvveenene 214,722 17.8 0.75% 215,609 19.3 0.93%
Money market.........cocovnnininniinnnnens 536 0.0 0.19% 540 0.0 0.37%
Checking and Super NOW ................ 114,913 9.5 0.03% 106,218 9.6 : 0.05%
Total deposits .........ccocevuvevennenn $ 1,209,165 100.0% 0.49% $ 1,116,127 100.0% 0.61%
For the Year Ended December 31, 2010
Weighted
Average Average
Balance Percent Rate
(Dollars in thousands)
Deposit type:
Noninterest-bearing ........ccoevevecreirininivneneeseneenens $ 18,788 1.8% 0.00%
SaVINGS ACCOUNLES....c.cevuremiriiriirirerireeereneetnsr s snesieesaeae 715,500 67.2 1.08%
Certificates of depoSit......c.cccerrvemcnirinsiiinieniisririeseesenns 228,835 21.5 1.14%
MOnEeyY MArket ........cceeveeiiverrininiiniieinrerenaeinsenneenees 19,060 1.8 0.06%
Checking and Super NOW ... 82,543 7.7 0.06%
Total depoSits .c.cocrveevirrimnririrnisierieesnieesreieanees $ 1,064,726 100.0% 0.99%
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As of December 31, 2012, the aggregate amount of outstanding certificates of deposit in amounts greater than or equal
to $100,000 was $148.5 million. The following table sets forth the maturity of those certificates as of December 31, 2012.

At

December 31,2012
, ' (Ih thonsand#_)
. Three months or less................ st ssaares $ 98,518
" “Over three months through six months................. 12,608
Over six months through one year........c.cccvvennnen. 5,924
Over one year to three years ............... eeeeenraaenan 28,079
Over three years........coccevveerenene trerreeetre et 3,358
£ e $ 148,487

Borrowings and Subordinated Debentures. Our borrowings consist of advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of
Seattle and funds borrowed under securities sold undér agreements to repurchase. At December 31, 2012, our securities sold
under agreements to repurchase totaled $70.0 million, or 5.2% of total liabilities and our Federal Home Loan Bank advances
totaled $20.0 million, or 1.5% of total liabilities. At December 31, 2012, we had the capability to borrow up to $370.6 million
in the form of advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank. :

During the year ended December 31, 2012, our borrowings decreased by $38.3 million, or 29.9%. The decrease
occurred when we paid off $38.3 million of securities sold under agreements to repurchase. Included in this total was $25.0
million of prepayments for which we incurred $321,000 of prepayment penalties. These borrowings had a weighted average
interest rate of 4.07% and were prepaid to reduce interest expense on securities sold under agreements to repurchase in future
periods. We have not required any other borrowmgs to fund our operations. Instead, we have primarily funded our operations
with the net proceeds from our stock offering, additional deposits, proceeds from loan and secunty sales and principal
repayments on loans and mortgage-backed securities.

The following table sets forth 1nformat10n concerning balances and interest rates on our Federal Home Loan Bank
advances at the dates and for the years indicated.

At or For the Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
) (Dollars in thousands) »
. Balance at.end of Year.......cccouvvueeereereeiienenreneeeseesennes $ 20000 $ 20000 $ 10,000
Average balance during Year ..........coverciereriveereerereeeerenns $ 20000 $ . 19,178 - $ 7,233
* Maximum outstanding at any month end...........ccccovunenn. $ 20,000 $ 20000 § 10,000
Weighted average interest rate at end of year................. v 2.09% 2.09% 2.12%
Average interest rate during year....... '...._. ...................... 2.09% 2.09% 2.11%

The following table sets forth information concerning balances and interest rates on our securities sold under
agreements to repurchase at the dates and for the years indicated.

At or For the Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(Dollars in thousands)
Balance at end of Year.........cocvvevsiverseeseserieressesenenns $ 70,000 $ 108,300 $ 105,200
Average balance during year ............c..co.eeeueeverrerrennn. $ 89,849 $§ 114,022 § 106,422
Maximum outstanding at any month end.................... $ 108,300 $ 122200 $ 105,200
Weighted average interest rate at end of year............. 2.86% 3.35% 3.98%
Average interest rate during year..........ccoveniveeniininn 3.20% ‘ 3.61% ' 4.02%

Stockholders’ Equity. At December 31, 2012, our stockholders’ equity was $219.0 million, an increase of $5.0 million,
or 2.3%, from $214.0 million at December 31, 2011. The increase in stockholders’ equity primarily resulted from net income
of $14.8 million, a $2.7 million increase in paid-in-capital related to share-based compensation awards and a $1.1 million
increase due. to the allocation of ESOP shares. This was partially offset by the repurchase of 370,643 shares of our common
stock for $8.0 million and the declaration of $5.7 million of dividends during the year ended December 31, 2012.
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Average Balances and Yields

The following tables set forth average balance sheets, average yields and rates, and certain other information for the
years indicated. No tax-equivalent yield adjustments were made, as the effect thereof was not material. All average balances
are daily average balances. Nonaccrual loans were included in the computation of average balances, but have been reflected
in the table as loans carrying a zero yield. The yields set forth below include the effect of net deferred costs, discounts and
premiums that are amortized or accreted to interest income.

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2012
Average
Outstanding
Balance Interest Yield/Rate
(Dollars in thousands)
Interest-earning assets:
Loans:
Real estate loans:
First mortgage: '
One- to four-family residential (1)................ $ 694,146 § 34,251 4.93%
Multi-family residential ................coccovvemnnnne 6,784 416 6.13
Construction, commercial and other ............. 12,072 669 5.54
Home equity loans and lines of credit ................. -1 15,850 922 - 5.82
OthET 10ANS c..eeivvieeeereeeeteereereesee s e eesas e rae e nr e ' 5,006 308 4 6.15
TOLAl LOANS.......ooonmarereessreeeesnseceneessmecnesanneseses 733,858 36,566 4.98
Investment securities:
U.S. government sponsored mortgage-backed
SECUITHES (1) vevvvervinersneerersecssesseesersesscnssessssssnsannaserans ‘ 616,627 23,224 3.77
Trust preferred securities...........ovevenenrncsneennneneniiins 107 0 0.00
Total SECUMITIES ... evveevreirrnrreerereerereesreeessneenas ‘ 616,734 23,224 3.77
[0 1111, RO SO OO PERUR P OT R OUOTOPPOTOR 163,569 359 0.22
Total interest-earning assets ............ceeereveereeccienss 1,514,161 60,149 3.97
Non-interest-earning assets. .........ccvvvrervrererienrerrinnmnisisesis e - 52,169
Total aSSets ........ccoerveererererenes rervesteenttearrennressaeesrarans $ 1,566,330
Interest-bearing liabilities:
SAVINES ACCOUNLS.......vveerievimiiriirssiesesese s eresssssssassssasasesaeas $ 849,945 4,295 0.51%
Certificates 0f depOSit......ccovrvirieniinnriniireseneiessess e 214,722 1,604 0.75
Money market aCCOUNES........cceviiiriiniiriniireririeese e 536 1 0.19
Checking and Super NOW accounts ..........ceceivrerennsssnsrsnnnsienenes 114,913 36 0.03
Total interest-bearing deposits........c.cceverviviiiiennnnns 1,180,116 5,936 0.50
Federal Home Loan Bank advances ........ccccoecvvereveiiienniceennnnnn 20,000 418 2.09
Other DOITOWINES .....vveveereerereririeiesirieniesssisnssssssssnssssesssnssssenas 89,876 2,875 3.20
Total interest-bearing liabilities SRR , 1,289,992 9,229 0.72
Non-interest-bearing iabilities ..., 57,591
Total liabilities.........cccevvevreereeneenreriennrrinieerncseene 1,347,583
StocKhOlders” EQUILY «.....ccveieriiniinireieiiiniiesnesaesrssnestesrne s 218,747
Total liabilities and stockholders’
EQUILY «voerereeeececmeeeeeremsarearassesens SRR $ 1,566,330
Net interest iNCOME.......c.coveerirurisuerenenrernevenns JESURUTOOO . $ 50920
Net interest rate Spread (2).....ccccvvevverenrirvereniiniesnneniessisennennes 3.25%
Net interest-earning assets (3).....cocoeeereererersivnsrinsrsririesessananns $ 224,169
Net interest Margin (4)......cccceeeervenirierrnnieeierieinisearesnenes 3.36%
Interest-earning assets to interest-bearing liabilities.................. 117.38%

(footnotes on following page)
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For the Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010
Average Average
Outstanding Outstanding
Balance Interest Yield/Rate Balance Interest _Y |d/Rate
(Dollars in thousands) )
Interest-earning assets:
Loans:
Real estate loans:
First mortgage: '
One- to four-family ‘
residential (1)....ccoceevenenee. $ 620,971  $32,872 529% $ 574,924  $31,879 5.54%
Multi-family residential........ 6,183 394 6.37 4,733 321 6.78
Construction, commercial
and other .........ccoccevereenen. 13,868 828 597 16,653 1,058 6.35
Home equity loans and lines of
credit.......oeennen reeereeeeseesrenrees 18,367 1,117 6.08 20,815 1,303 6.26
Other 10anS.......c.covvveveereeeereeeeeeerereeeneenes 5,451 346 6.35 6,243 398 6.38
Total loans.......cccccceienneee 664,840 - 35,557 5.35 623,368 34,959 5.61
Investment securities:
U.S. government sponsored mortgage-
backed securities (1) .....ccccveveereeeenennnne. 635,587 26,851 422 577,221 25,754 446
Trust preferred securities..........ccoeeennene. 32 0 0.00 888 0 0.00
Total securities........cccevvervenee 635,619 26,851 422 578,109 25,754 445
Other ............... Areerseraesseseassneseesereensreseesseesaeneans 149,668 325 0.22 180,658 402 0.22
Total interest-earning assets........... 1,450,127 62,733 433 1,382,135 61,115 442
Non-interest-earning assets ..........cocceceerervecenenes 50,284 48,102
Total assets.....cocervvverreccreeeneerseennenas $1,500,411 $1,430,237
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Savings acCoUntS ........cccvervcrervniisinienienninnens $ 771,194 4,707 0.61% $ 715,500 7,722 1.08%
Certificates of deposit ........ccooeveerecineiciiinninins 215,609 2,013 0.93 228,835 2,614 1.14
Money market aCCOUNLS ........ccvvverirircrenrisiesinnens 540 2 0.37 19,060 12 0.06
Checking and Super NOW accounts................. 106,218 48 0.05 82,543 47 0.06
Total interest-bearing deposits ....... 1,093,561 6,770 0.62 1,045,938 10,395 0.99
Federal Home Loan Bank advances.................. 19,178 401 2.09 7,233 153 2.12
Other BOITOWINGS ....o.coveererreneeneecrcneieiseaenes 114,022 4,114 3.61 106,422 4,280 4.02
Total interest-bearing liabilities ..... 1,226,761 11,285 0.92 1,159,593 14,828 1.28
Non-interest-bearing liabilities........c..coeeenuenenn 49,980 46,224
Total liabilities ............... eeemereerenens 1,276,741 1,205,817
Stockholders’ equity........cccoveeercemecererernereserinnns 223,670 224,420
Total liabilities and stockholders’
EQUILY .overererenieeeere et reeeneeeas $1,500,411 $1,430,237
Net interest iNCOME .......ueevveeceereeeererreceeeeennee $51,448 $46,287
Net interest rate spread (2) ....c.cccoceevvenvvininciiinnnns 3.41% 3.14%
Net interest-earning assets (3).....cc.cecevevrernnne - 3§ 223366 . $ 222,542
Net interest margin (4) ......ccccoccevvrieeinccennennnns 3.55% 3.35%
Interest-earning assets to interest-bearing
Labilities ..ceveeieeieeceeeeeeee e 118.21% 119.19%
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(1)  Average balance includes loans or investments available for sale.

(2) Net interest rate spread represents the difference between the yield on average interest-earning assets and the cost of
average interest- beanng liabilities.

(3) Net interest-earning assets represent total interest-earning assets less total 1nterest-bear1ng liabilities.

(4) Net interest margin represents net interest income divided by average total interest-earning assets.

Rate/Volume Analysis

The following table presents the effects of changing rates and volumes on our net interest income for the years
indicated. The rate column shows the effects attributable to changes in rate (changes in rate multiplied by prior volume). The
volume column shows the effects attributable to changes in volume (changes in volume multiplied by prior rate). The total
column represents the sum of the prior columns. For purposes of this table, changes attributable to both rate and volume,
which cannot be segregated, have been allocated proportionately based on the changes due to rate and the changes due to
volume.

Years Ended December 31, Years Ended December 31,
2012 vs. 2011 ’ 2011 vs. 2010
Increase (Decrease) Total Increase (Decrease) Total
Due to Increase Due to Increase
Volume Rate (Decrease) Volume Rate (Decrease)
(In thousands)
Interest-earning assets:
Loans:
Real estate loans:
First mortgage:
One- to four-family residential......... $3,253 $(1,874) $ 1,379 $ 2,287 $(1,294) $ 993
Multi-family residential.................... 36 (14) 22 91 (18) 73
Construction, commercial and other (102) (57) (159) (169) (61) (230)
Home equity loans and lines of credit........ (148) 47) (195) (150) (36) (186)
Other 10ans .........ccooeeienenvciieieeccneccree e (28) (10) (38) (50) 2) (52)
Total 10ans........ccoceeveevrverenrcieninenins 3,011 (2,002) 1,009 2,009 (1,411) 598
U.S. government sponsored mortgage-backed
SECUTIEIES ..eveereriieereeeeeteneeereeeete s eeresarenrasees (782) (2,845) (3,627) 2,312 (1,215) 1,097
OtheT ..ottt 30 4 34 67) (10) a7
Total interest-earning assets ... 2,259 (4,843) (2,584) 4,254 (2,636) 1,618
Interest-bearing liabilities:
SaVINGS ACCOUNLS......c.ceverreereereiererieeereseeeeessessanesaeneens 601 (1,013) (412) 658 (3,673) (3,015)
Certificates of deposit.........cccueveerevireereeeeirreerecreeeeenens €)) (401) (409) (144) 457) (601)
Money market aCCOUNtS........cceeeueeeeeeceeeieecieeieeie e 0 1) (N 2 (12) (10)
Checking and Super NOW accounts..........cccccecervenrenen. 4 (16) (12) 4 3) 1
Total interest-bearing deposits................... 597 (1,431) (834) 520 (4,145) (3,625)
Federal Home Loan Bank advances .............c..cccon...... 17 0 17 250 ) 248
Other BOITOWINES .....ccvevveviriiciierenreieriiseestesseeeeesreeaeanens (807) (432) (1,239) 377 (543) (166)

........................................... (193) (1,863) (2,056) 1,147  (4,690) (3,543)

Change in net interest income............coeeveeveveeeererrnnne. $2,452 $(2,980) $ (528) $ 3,107 $2,054 $ 5,161

38




Comparison of Operating Results for the Years Ended December 31,2012, 2011 and 2010

General. Net income increased by $2.0 million, or 16.0%, to $14.8 million for the year ended Deécember 31, 2012 from.
$12.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2011. The increase in net income was caused by a $2.1 million decrease in
interest expense due to lower market interest rates, a $2.0 million increase in noninterest income due to an increase in gains
on sale of loans and securities, @ $401,000 decrease in income taxes and a $216,000 decrease in noninterest expense. This
was partially offset by a $2.6 million decrease in interest and dividend income due to lower market interest rates and a lower -
average securities balance. o \ ’ ‘ ! :

Net income increased by $1.8 million, or 16.0%, to $12.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 from $11.0
million for the year ended December 31, 2010. The increase in net income was primarily caused by a $3.5 ‘million decrease in
interest expense, a $3.0 million increase in noninterest income and a $1.6 million increase in interest and dividend income.
These changes were partially offset by a $3.1 million increase in noninterest expense and a $3.2 million increase in income
taxes. o ' ‘ : . '

Net Interest Iicome. Net interest income decreased by $528,000, or 1.0%, to $50.9 million for the yeaf ended
December 31, 2012 from $51.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2011. Interest and dividend income decreased by
$2.6 million, or 4.1%, to $60.1 million for the year ended December 31,2012 from $62.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2011. The decrease in interest and dividend income occurred primarily because of a 36 basis point decrease in
the average asset yield that was partially offset by a $64.0 million increase in the average balance. Interest expense decreased
by $2.1 million, or 18.2%, to $9.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 from $11.3 million for the-year ended
December 31, 2011. The decrease in interest expense is primarily due to a 20 basis point decrease in the average cost of
interest-bearing liabilities. The interest rate spread and net interest margin were.3.25% and 3.36%, respectively, for the year
ended December 31, 2012, compared to 3.41% and 3.55% for 2011. The 16 basis point decrease in the net interest rate spread
is due to a'36 basis point decrease in the average.yield on interest-earning assets that was partially offset by a 20 basis point
decrease in the cost of interest-bearing liabilities. The decrease in the cost of interest-bearing liabilities resulted from lower
market interest rates. : : ERTAE R - '

Net interest income increased by $5.2 million, or 11.1%, to $51.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 from
$46.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. Interest and dividend income increased by $1.6 million, or 2.6%, to
$62.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 from $61.1 million for the year ended December 31,2010. The increase
in interest income is due primarily to a'$68.0 million increase in the average balance that was partially offset by a nine basis
point decrease in the average yield on interest-earning assets. Interest expense decreased by $3.5 million, or 23.9%, to $11.3
million for the year ended December 31, 2011 from $14.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. The decrease in
interest expense is due to a 36 basis point decrease in the average cost of interest-bearing liabilities that was partially offset
by a $67.2 million increase in the average balance of interest-bearing liabilities. The interest rate spread and net interest.
margin were 3.41% and 3.55%, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to.3.14% and 3:35% for 2010.
The 27 basis point increase in the net interest rate spread is due to a 36 basis point decrease in the cost of interest-bearing
liabilities that was partially offset by a nine basis point.decrease in the average yield on interest-earning assets.

Interest and Dividend Income. Interest and dividend income decreased by $2.6 million, or 4.1%, to $60.1 million for
the year ended December 31, 2012 from $62.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2011. Interest income on investment
securities decreased by $3.6 million, or 13.5%, to $23.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 from $26.9 million for
the year ended December 31, 2011. The decrease in interest income on securities occurred primarily because of a 45 basis
point decrease in the average securities yield and an $18.9 million decrease in the average securities balance. The decline in
the average yield and balance occurred because of an increase in repayments on higher yielding mortgage-backed securities.
A portion of these repayments were reinvested in securities with lower yields. Interest income on loans increased by $1.0
million, or 2.8%, to $36.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 from $35.6 million for the year ended December 31,
2011. The increase in interest income on loans occurred because the average balance of loans grew by $69.0 million, or .
10.4%, as new loan originations exceeded loan repayments and loan sales. This increase in interest income was partially
offset by a 37 basis point decline in the average loan yield to 4.98% for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to
5.35% for the year ended December 31, 2011. The decline in the average yield on loans occurred because of an increase in
repayments on higher-yielding loans and additions of new loans with lower yields to the loan portfolio.

Tnterest and dividend income increased by $1.6 million, or 2.6%, to $62.7 million for the year ended December 3 1,
2011 from $61.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. Interest income on securities grew by $1.1 million, or 4.3%,
to $26.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 from $25.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. The
increase in interest income on securities was primarily due to-a $57.5 million increase in the average securities balance,
which was partially offset by a 23 basis point decrease in the average securities yield. Interest income on loans increased by
$598,000, or 1.7%; to $35.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2011- from $35.0 -million for the year ended
December 31, 2010. The increase in interest income on loans primarily occurred because the average balance of loans grew
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by $41.5 million, or 6.7%, as new loan originations exceeded loan repayments and loan sales. This increase in interest
income was partially offset by a 26 basis point decrease in the average loan yield to 5.35% for the year ended December 31,
2011 from 5.61% for the year ended December 31, 2010. The decline in the average yield on loans occurred because of an
increase in repayments on higher-yielding loans and additions of new loans with lower yields to the loan portfolio.

Interest Expense. Interest expense decreased by $2.1 million, or 18.2%, to $9.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2012 from $11.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2011. Interest expense on securities sold under
agreements to repurchase decreased by $1.2 million, or 30.1%, during the year ended December 31, 2012. This decrease was
caused by a $24.1 million, or 21.2%, decrease in the average outstanding balance and a 41 basis point decrease in the average
interest rate to 3.20% for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to 3.61% for the year ended December 31, 2011. The
decrease in the average outstanding balance was due to the repayment of $13.3 million of maturing borrowings and
prepayment of $25.0 million of borrowings during the year ended December 31, 2012. Interest expense on deposits decreased
by $834,000, or 12.3%, to $5.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 from $6.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2011. During the year ended December 31, 2012, interest expense on certificates of deposit and savings
accounts declined by $409,000 and $412,000, respectively, due to a decrease in the average interest rates of 18 and 10 basis
points, respectively. We lowered the rates we pay on certificates of deposit and savings accounts due to declining market
interest rates and increased liquidity from principal repayments on loans and mortgage-backed securities. However, the
interest rates on our savings accounts are still higher than market interest rates. The decrease in the average interest rate on
deposits was partially offset by an $86.6 million, or 7.9%, increase in the average balance of deposit accounts.

Interest expense decreased by $3.5 million, or 23.9%, to $11.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 from
$14.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. Interest expense on deposits decreased by $3.6 million, or 34.9%, to
$6.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to $10.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. The
decline in interest expense on deposits was primarily caused by a 47 basis point decrease in the average rate paid on savings
accounts. The decrease in the rate was partially offset by a $55.7 million, or 7.8%, increase in the average balance of savings
accounts. We lowered the rates we pay on deposits due to declining market interest rates and increased liquidity from
principal repayments on loans and mortgage-backed securities. However, the interest rates on our savings accounts are still
higher than market interest rates. Interest expense on Federal Home Loan Bank advances increased by $248,000, or 162.1%,
during the year ended December 31, 2011 as we obtained a $10.0 million advance during the three months ended March 31,
2011 to control our interest rate risk. Interest expense on securities sold under agreements to repurchase decreased by
$166,000, or 3.9%, because the average interest rate on these borrowings decreased by 41 basis points, or 10.2%, during the
year ended December 31, 2011. This decrease was partially offset by a $7.6 million increase in the average outstanding
balance of these borrowings to $114.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Provision for Loan Losses. Based on our analysis of the factors described in “—Allowance for Loan Losses,” we
recorded provisions for loan losses of $415,000, $418,000 and $345,000 for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010, respectively. The provisions for loan losses reflected net charge-offs of $284,000, $365,000 and $538,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The provisions recorded resulted in ratios of the allowance for loan
losses to total loans of 0.22%, 0.22% and 0.23% at December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Nonaccrual loans
totaled $4.4 million, $2.9 million and $808,000 at December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. To the best of our
knowledge, we have provided for all losses that are both probable and reasonable to estimate at December 31, 2012, 2011

and 2010.

Noninterest Income. The following table summarizes changes in noninterest income for the years ended December 31,
2012, 2011 and 2010.

Years Ended December 31, Change 2012/2011 Change 2011/2010
2012 2011 2010 $ Change % Change $ Change % Change

(Dollars in thousands)

Service fees on loan and

deposit accounts................. $ 2044 $ 2284 § 2401 $ (240) 105% $ (117) (4.9)%
Income on bank-owned life

INSUrance .........occevereerennnne 942 968 1,017 (26) 2.7% (49) (4.8)%
Gain on sale of investment

SECUTTIES .ovvevrerrerrerrereennes 1,234 451 350 783 173.6% 101 28.9%
Gain on sale of loans.............. 2,411 711 442 1,700 239.1% 269 60.9%
Other-than-temporary _,

impairment losses.............. 0 0 (2,404) 0 0.0% 2,404 100.0%
Other....cooeeeeeeeeeeeeecrreeeeenen. 437 697 322 (260) (37.3)% 375 116.5%

Total .....coveeereerrerierenns $§ 7,068 $ 5,111 $ 2,128 § 1,957 383% $ 2,983 140.2%
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Noninterest income increased by $2.0 million for the year-ended December.31, 2012 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2011. During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, we sold $107 9 million and $61.2 million,
respectively, of mortgage loans held for sale and recognlzed gains of $2.4 million and $711,000, respectively. During the
years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, we also sold $16.0 million and $3.5 mﬂhon, respectlvely, of held-to-maturity
investment securities and recogmzed gains of $1.2 million and $261,000, respectively. The sale of these securities, for which
the Company had already received a substantial portion of the outstandmg principal (at least 85%)), is in accordance with the
Investment topic of the FASB ASC and will not aﬁ‘ect the h1stor1ca1 cost bas1s used to account for the remaining securities in
the held-to-maturity portfoho . L

Noninterest income 1ncreased by $3.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2010. We recognized a $2.4 million loss for other-than-temporary impairment on our investments in trust .
preferred securities for the year ended 2010. During the year ended December 31, 2011, we did not incur any other-than-
temporary impairment loss on our investments. Our investment in frust preferred securltles is further discussed in “Item 1A.
Risk Factors.” Other noninterest income increased by $375,000 for the year ended December 31, 2011. This increase was
primarily due to‘a legal settlement of an insurance claim i the amount of $194,000 during the year ended December 31;

2011 and an increase in financial service commissions of $171,000: During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 we
sold $61.2 million and $45:1 mllhon respectlvely, of mortgage loans held for sale and recognized galns of $711,000 and
$442,000, respectively. : :

Noninterest Expense. The following table summarizes changes in nomnterest expense for the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010. , ‘ R

Years Ended December 31, . Change 2012/2011 . Change 2011/2010

2012 . 2011 2010 { $ Change ... % Change $ Change % Change
) ’ " (Dollars in thousands) ‘

Salaries and employee benefits...... $ 20,609 $ 21,621 $ 18,793 $ (1,012) 4% $ 2,828 1 15.0%

Occupancy ....icoceereecrucsaiuererercnnnns - 5,246 4988 - 4,719 .« 258 -5.2% S269  5.7%
Equipment..........coceiveenniverinaesennens 3,269 3,191 - 2,963 78 2.4% 228 7.7%
Loss on extinguishment of debt... 321 TN ) B 0 321 . na - . .0 0.0%
Federal deposit insurance
premiums ............. ieerienrenresbin : © 767 865 ... 1,195 < (98) (11.3)% (330) (27.6)%
Other general and admlmstratlve _ '
EXPEIISES -.cvverererrreererrenerennenonens 4,226 3,989 3,860 237 5.9% 129 3.3%
Total...covciniiiieicniinee $ 34438 $ 34,654 -$ 31,530 $ (216) 0.6)% . § 3,124 9.9%

Noninterest expense decreased by $216,000 to $34.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 from $34.7 million
for the year ended December 31, 2011. Salaries and employee benefits decreased by $1.0 million during the year ended
December 31, 2012 primarily because the Company recognized $696,000 of share-based compensation expenses in the year
ended December 31, 2011 when a director passed away that resulted in the immediate vesting of restricted stock and stock
options. In addition, the Company recognized a $762,000 increase in the credit to compensation expense for the cost of
originating new mortgage loaiis because of an increase in new loan originations. The Receivables topic of the FASB ASC
allows financial institutions to take a credit against compensation expense for the direct cost of originating loans. This was
partially offset by a bank-wide budgeted salary increase of approximately 2.0%, which was effective July 1, 2012, and higher
cash bonuses. During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company prepaid $25.0 million of securities sold under
agreements to repurchase, which had a weighted-average interest rate of 4.07%, and incurred $321,000 of prepayment
penalties, which is reported as loss on extinguishment of debt. The prepayment of this borrowing will reduce interest expense
in future periods on securities sold under agreements to repurchase.

Noninterest expense rose by $3.1 million to $34.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 from $31.5 million
for the year ended December 31, 2010. Salaries and employee benefits increased by $2.8 million to $21.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2011 from $18 8 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. The increase in salaries and employee
benefits was prlmarlly due to a $2.5 million increase in- expenses accrued for the equity incentive plan, which was approved
by stockholders in August 2010. Included in the $2.5 million increase is $696,000 of share-based compensation expenses that
the Company recognized when a director passed away, which resulted in the immediate vesting of stock awards. In addition,
the Company incurred a bank-wide budgeted salary increase of approximately 2.0%, which was effective July 1, 2011, higher
cash bonus accruals, a $122,000 increase in payroll taxes and a $70,000 increase in health insurance expenses. These
increases for salaries and employee benefits were partially offset by a $445,000 decrease in supplemental executive -
retirement plan expenses. Federal deposit insurance premium expense declined by $330,000 to $865,000 for the year-ended
December 31, 2011 from $1.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. The decrease in federal deposit insurance
premium expense is primarily due to a decline in the premium rate.

41



Income Tax Expense. Income taxes were $8.3 million for 2012, reflecting an effective tax rate of 35.9%, $8.7 million
for 2011, reﬂectmg an effective tax rate of 40.5%, and $5.5 million for 2010, reﬂectmg an effective tax rate of 33.3%. The
effectivé tax rate in 2012 was lower than the tax rate in 2011 primarily due to an increase in permanent tax benefits related to
our share-based compensation plans and a one-time reduction in defetred taxes related to prepaid expenses. The effective tax
rate in 2011 was higher than the tax rate in 2010 primarily due to a $1.0 million tax refund from the State of Hawaii, which
was recorded in 2010 as settlement of a tax case involving dividend received deductions. The refund was subject to federal
and state income taxes. The amount of income from bank-owned life insurance relative to the lower amounts of income
before taxes in 2010 also caused the 2010 effective tax rate to be lower than the 2011 effective tax rate.

Nonperforming and Problem Assets

When a residential mortgage loan or home equity line of credit is 15 days past due, we attempt personal, direct contact
with the borrower to determine when payment will be made. On the first day of the following month, we mail a letter
reminding the borrower of the delinquency, and will send an additional letter when a loan is 60 days or more past due. If
necessary, subsequent late charges are issued and the account will be monitored on a regular basis thereafter. By the 75* day
of delinquency, unless the borrower has made arrangements to bring the loan current, we will refer the loan to legal counsel
to commence foreclosure proceedings. Upon the recommendation of our Vice President of Mortgage Loan Servicing, our
Senior Vice President of Special Credits can shorten these time frames.

Commercial business loans, commercial real estate loans and consumer loans are generally handled in the same manner
as residential mortgage loans or home equity lines of credit. All commercial business loans that are 15 days past due are
immediately referred to our senior lending officer. In addition, we generate past due notices and attempt direct contact with a
borrower when a consumer loan is 10 days past due. Because of the nature of the collateral securing consumer loans, we may
commence collection procedures earlier for consumer loans than for residential mortgage loans or home equity lines of credit.

Loans are placed on nonaccrual status when payment of principal or interest is more than 90 days delinquent. Loans are
also placed on nonaccrual status if collection of principal or interest in full is in doubt. When loans are placed on a nonaccrual
status, unpaid accrued interest is fully reversed. The loan may be returned to accrual status if both principal and interest
payments are brought current and full payment of principal and interest is expected.

Nonperforming Assets. The table below sets forth the amounts and categories of our nonperforming assets at the dates
indicated.

At December 31,

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

(Dollars in thousands)

Nonaccrual loans:
Real estate loans:

First mortgage:
One- to four-family residential........................... $ 4246 §$ 2582 §$ 801 §$ 517 § 0
Construction, commercial and other.................. 0 184 2 0 0
Home equity loans and lines of credit......................... 160 158 0 0 149
Other 10ans.......cccvveeininiiiiii e 0 3 5 3 0
Total nonaccrual 10ans...........cccoveevvveevveereennens 4,406 2,927 808 520 149

Real estate owned:
Real estate loans:

First mortgage: ‘
One- to four-family residential ...........c.ccccoeueene. 0 408 0 159 131
Total real estate owned ........ccccoveeevimreicnninciennn. 0 408 0 159 131
Total nonperforming assets..........c.ccoecerernrineenee ‘ 4,406 3,335 808 679 280

Loans delinquent 90-days or greater and still accruing
INEETESE....vevcreerereieeecieeesteercreert e ceneresn e reneneone 0 0 0 0 0
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At December 31,

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

. . (Dollars in thousands)
Restructured loans still accruing interest:’
Real estate loans:

First mortgage: o o
One- to four-family residential ...........ccoeueennn.n. 2,529 2,345 . 2,600 - 2,724 309
Total restructured loans still accruing interest ... 2,529 2,345 2,600 2,724 ‘ 309

Total nonperforming assets, accruing loans delinquent
for 90 days or more and restructured loans still

ACCTUING INLETESE ......ooveveerererereneenneres e reeeeianns $ 6935 $ 5680 $ 3408 $ 3403 $ 589
Ratios: S
Nonperforming loans to total loans............................. 0.56% 0.42% 0.12% 0.09% 0.02%

Nonperforming assets to total assets .......... v 0.28% 0.22% 0.06% 0.05% 0.02%

For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008, gross interest income that would have been
recorded had our nonaccruing loans been current in accordance with their original terms was $219,000, $127,000,.$36,000,
$27,000 and $3,000, respectively. For the years ended December 3 1,2012, 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008, we recognized
$105,000, $32,000, $0, $5,000 and $3,000, respectively, of interest income on such nonaccruing loans on a cash basis during
the year. For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008, gross interest income due and collected on our
accruing restructured loans was $111,000, $119,000, $42,000, $73,000 and $0, respectively. ‘

The Company had 20 troubled debt restructurings totaling $5.2 million as of December 31 , 2012 that were considered
to be impaired. This total included 19 one- to four-family residential mortgage loans totaling $5.1 million and one home
equity loan for $160,000. Eight of the loans, totaling $2.5 million, are performing in accordance with their restructured terms
and accruing interest at December 31, 2012. 11 of the loans, totaling $2.4 million, are performing in accordance with their
restructured terms but not accruing interest as of December 31, 2012. One of the loans, for $329,000, is 150 days or more
delinquent and not accruing interest as of December 31, 2012. There were 11 troubled debt restructurings totaling $2.9
million as of December 31, 2011 that were considered to be impaired. There were ten one-to four-family residential mortgage
loans totaling $2.8 million and one home equity loan for $159,000. Eight of the loans, totaling $2.3 million, are performing in
accordance with their restructured terms and accruing interest at December 31, 2011. Two of the loans, totaling $344,000, are
performing in accordance with their restructured terms but not accruing interest at December 31, 2011. One of the loans, for
$248,000, is 59 days delinquent and not accruing interest at December 31, 2011. The increase in troubled debt restructurings
in 2012 occurred when, in consultation with the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency, Territorial Savings Bank’s '
primary regulator, we classified $3.7 million of mortgage loans, which had been modified to provide for interest only
payments, as troubled debt restructurings. Restructurings include deferrals of interest and/or principal payments and
temporary or permanent reductions in interest rates due to the financial difficulties of the borrowers. :

Delinquent Loans. The following table sets forth our Iban, delinquencies by type and by amount at the dates indicated.

Loans Delinquent For

60-89 Days . 90 Days and Over Total

Number Amount Nuinbéy Amount  Number Amount
! S ‘ (Dollars in thoﬁéand/k)
At December 31, 2012
Real estate loans:
First mortgage: o o ‘ S . ’
' One- to four-family residential ................ 1§ 152 8 $ 2,044 9.8 2,19
Other loans................... ettt saes ' I 2 0 0 1 2
Total loans 29 154 8 $ 2,044 10 $§ 2,198
At December 31, 2011 - IS ' PR
Real estate loans: co o
" First mortgage: ’ ' ST , - ' o
One- to four-family residential ............. 0-%$ 0 7 %8 2,148 7 $ 2,148
Construction, commercial and other-........ 0 0 1 184 - 1 184
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Loans Delinquent For

60-89 Days 90 Days and Over Total

Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount

(Dollars in thousands)

Other 10anS..........covvveeivieerieeecireceeccreeetr e creeerreeeseneees 0 1 3 1 3
Total 10anS .....covveveveerereerreerveeire e eeeenaen 09 0 9 $ 2335 9 $ 2335
At December 31, 2010
Real estate loans:
First mortgage:
One- to four-family residential ................ 03 0 5 § 801 5 8§ 801
Construction, commercial and other ........ 0 0 1 2 1 2
Other 10ANS.......c.vveiieeeiieeceeer e eeeeeeeeeerreeeerebraeaeens 3 8 1 5 4 13
Total 10ANS .....ovveeeeeineiirerceereererereerrerens 3 8 8 -7 $ 808 100 § 816
At December 31, 2009
Real estate loans:
First mortgage:
One- to four-family residential ................ 0 $ 1§ 274 1§ 274
Other 10anS..........oiiciiiiiieeeeeeeeeceeeeereeetreesaeseeseea e 1 1 3 4
Total 1OANS ....eevvvevieveeeeeee et 1§ 1 593 277 6 $ 278
At December 31, 2008 .
Real estate loans: :
First mortgage: ,
One- to four-family residential ................ 3 8§ 871 0§ 0 3% 87
Other loans.........ccceeevveeerinneee bobestnasesinnaensnes Preveresrenennene 1 3 0 0 1 3
4 $ 874

Total loans ........ etreteriee et eeseesaeiaenrene e 4 $ 874 0 $ 0 ’

Real Estate Owned. Real estate acquired by us as a result of foreclosure or by deed in lieu of foreclosure is classified
as real estate owned. When property is acquired it is recorded at estimated fair value at the date of foreclosure less the cost to
sell, establishing a new cost basis. Estimated fair value generally represents the sale price a buyer would be wjlling to pay on
the basis of current market conditions, including normal terms from other financial institutions. Holding costs and declines in
estimated fair value result in charges to expense after acquisition. At December 31, 2012, 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008 we had
real estate owned of $0, $408,000, $0, $159,000 and $131,000, respectively.

Classification of Assets. Our policies, consistent with regulatory guidelines, provide for the classification of loans and
other assets that are considered to be of lesser quality as substandard, doubtful, or loss assets. An asset is considered
substandard if it is inadequately protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of the obligor or of the collateral
pledged, if any. Substandard assets include those assets characterized by the distinct possibility that we will sustain some loss
if the deficiencies are not corrected. Assets classified as doubtful have all of the weaknesses inherent in those classified
substandard with the added characteristic that the weaknesses present make collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of
currently existing facts, conditions and values, highly questionable and improbable. Assets (or portions of assets) classified as
loss are those considered uncollectible and of such little value that their continuance as assets is not warranted. Assets that do
not expose us to risk sufficient t6 warrant classification in one of the aforementioned categories, but which possess potential
weaknesses that deserve our close attention, are required to be designated as special mention.

We maintain an allowance for loan losses at an amount estimated to equal all credit losses incurred in our loan portfolio
that are both probable and reasonable to estimate at a balance sheet date. Our determination as to the classification of our
assets and the amount of our loss allowances is subject to review by our principal federal regulator, the Office of the
Comptroller of the Currency, which can require that we establish additional loss allowances. We regularly review our asset
portfolio to determine whether any assets require classification in accordance with applicable regulations. On the basis of our
review of our assets at December 31, 2012, classified assets consisted of substandard assets of $7.3 million, special mention
assets of $2.6 million and no doubtful or loss assets. The classified assets total at December 31, 2012 was $9.9 million and
included $4.5 million of troubled debt restructurings, $4.3 million of nonperforming loans and $1.1 million of trust preferred
securities. Effective December 31, 2012, we will automatically designate any loan that is 30 to 59 days delinquent as special
mention and will automatically classify any loan that is delinquent 60 to 89 days as substandard. Loans which have been
delinquent for fewer days can be classified in these categories.
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Allowance for Loan Losses

: We provide for loan losses based upon the consistent apphcatlon of our documented allowance for loan loss
methodology. All loan losses are charged to the allowance for loan losses and all recoveries are credited to it. Additions to
the allowance for loan losses are provided by charges to income based on various factors which, in our judgment, deserve
current recognition in estimating probable losses. We regularly review the loan portfolio and make provisions for loan losses
in order to maintain the allowance for loan losses in accordance with GAAP. ,

General allowances are established for loan losses on a portfolio basis for loans that do not meet the definition of
impaired in accordance with current accounting standards. The portfolio is grouped into similar risk characteristics, primarily
loan type and delinquency status. We apply an estimated loss rate to each loan group. The loss rates applied are based upon
our loss experience adjusted, as appropriate, for the environmental factors discussed below. This evaluation is inherently
subjective, as it requires material estimates that may be susceptible to significant revisions based upon changes in economic
and real estate market conditions. Actual loan losses may be significantly more than the allowance for loan losses we have
established, whlch could have a material negatwe effect on our financial results. ERE

’

Residential mortgage loans represent the largest segment of our loan portfolio. All of the residential mortgage loans are
secured by a first mortgage on residential real estate in Hawaii, consist primarily of fixed-rate mortgage loans that have been
underwritten to Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae guidelines and have similar risk characteristics. The loan loss allowance is
determined by first calculating the historical loss rate for this segment of the portfolio. The loss rate may be adjusted for
qualitative and environmental factors. The allowance for loan loss is calculated by multiplying the adjusted loss rate by the
total loans in this segment of the portfolio.

The adjustments to historical loss experience are based on an evaluation of several qualitative and environmental
factors, including:

. changes in lending policies and procedures, 1nclud1ng changes in underwntmg standards and collections, charge-
“off and recovery practices;

. changes in international, national, and local economic trends;

. changes in the types of loans in the loan portfolio;

. changes in the experience and ability of personnel in the mortgage loan origination and loan serv1c1ng

departments;

. changes in the number and amount of delinquent loans and classified assets;

. changes in the type and volume of loans being originated;

. changes in the value of underlying collateral for collateral dependent loans

. changes in any concentration of credit; and

. external factors such:as competition, legal and regulatory requlrements on the level of estimated credit losses in

the ex1st1ng loan portfoho

We also use hlstoncal loss rates adjusted for quahtatlve and envxronmental factors to establish loan loss allowances for
the following portfolio segments: - : . :

. home equity loans and lines of credlt and

. consumer and other loans.

We have a limited loss experience for the construction, commercial and other mortgage segment of the loan portfolio.
The loan loss allowance on this portfolio segment is determined using the loan loss rate of other financial institutions in the
State of Hawaii. The allowance for loan loss is calculated by multiplying the loan loss rate of other financial institutions in
the state by the total loans in this segment of the loan portfolio.

Generally, when the loan portfolio increases, absent other factors, the allowance for loan loss methodology resuits in a
higher dollar amount of estimated probable losses than would be the case without the increase. Generally, when the loan
portfolio decreases, absent other factors, the allowance for loan loss methodology results in a lower dollar amount of
estimated probable losses than would be the case without the decrease. The unallocated allowance is established to provide
for probable losses that have been incurred as of the reporting date but are not reflected in the allocated allowance.

We evaluate our loan portfolio on a quarterly basis and the allowance is adjusted accordingly. While we use the best
information available to make evaluations, future adjustments to the allowance may be necessary if conditions differ
substantially from the information used in making the evaluations. In addition, as an integral part of their examination
process, the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency will periodically review the allowance for loan losses. The Office of
the Comptroller of the Currency may require us to increase the allowance based on their analysis of information available at
the time of their examination.
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The following table sets forth activity in our allowance for loan losses for the years indicated.

At or For the Years Ended December 31,

2012 201 2010 2009 2008
(Dollars in thousands)
Balance at beginning of year ............cccoviviniiniiinnnnennn $ 1541 $ 1488 $§ 1681 §$ 899 § 768
Charge-offs:
Real estate loans:
First mortgage:
One- to four-family residential .................... 333 188 238 268 0
Construction, commercial and other............. 8 54 41 0 0
Home equity loans and lines of credit................... 3 9 0 149 0
Other 0aNS.....cccveriiieiiee ettt 48 164 376 9 23
Total charge-offs.......ccccocecmininnininnnnnnnnn. 392 415 655 426 23
Recoveries:
Real estate loans:
First mortgage:
One- to four-family residential .................... 79 28 99 0 0
Construction, commercial and other............. 8 0 7 0 0
Home equity loans and lines of credit.................... 5 0 0 0 0
Other 10ans.......cccocereeeenieeenceisienineenne oo 16 22 11 10 5
Total rECOVETIEs .....coueecrriirireiiiicrccrienes 108 50 117 10 5
Net charge-offs ........cccoveererenrcniiiinns (284) (365) (538) (416) (18)
Provision for 10an 10SSes ........ccccevveervienierecrrencenniceenne 415 418 345 1,198 149
Balance at end of year..........ccccecemviiiivininiinininnininnenn, $ 1672 $ 1541 $ 1488 §$§ 1681 § 899
Ratios: ,
Net charge-offs to average loans outstanding................. 0.04% 0.06% 0.09% 0.07% 0.00%
Allowance for loan losses to nonperforming loans at
eNd Of YEAT ...eovvvenecrenicrciicircc s 37.95% 52.65% 184.16% 323.27% 603.36%
Allowance for loan losses to total loans at end of year... 0.22% 0.22% 0.23% 0.28% 0.14%

The ratio of allowance for loan losses to nonperforming loans decreased to 37.95% at December 31, 2012 from 52.65%
at December 31, 2011. This occurred when, in consultation with the Office of Comptroller of the Currency, Territorial
Savings Bank’s primary regulator, we classified $2.2 million of mortgage loans as nonperforming. We do not believe this had
a material effect on our allowance for loan losses.
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Allocation of Allowance for Loan Losses. The following tables set forth the allowance for loan losses allocated by
loan category and the percent of loans in each category to total loans at the dates indicated. The allowance for loan losses
allocated to each’ category is not necessarily indicative of future losses in any partlcular category The allowance for loan
losses for each category is affected by the national and Hawaii economies and interest rates as well as other factors.

At December 31,
2012 - Cco2om o010
Percent of ' Percentof . Percent of
Loans in Each Loans in’ Each Loans in Each.
Allowance for Category to Allowance for Category to Allowance for Category to

Loan Losses " Total Loans _ Loan Losses ... “Total Loans .. Loan Losses Total Loans

(Dollars in thousands)

Real estate loans:

First mortgage: o ) ! '
One- to four-family residential... $ - 585 94.84% $ 624 93.90% $ 577 92.99%
Multi-family residential ............. 5 0.88 ‘ 7 1.00. 6. - 0.83
Construction, commercial and ; N P ,
Other ...cocvmeeccicieteteereceaes ' 818 1.77 .. 285 1.83 . 277 - 222
Home equity loans and hnes of ‘ - _ , ? ' ; ' .
CIEdit oot “ 35 1.94 258 248 305 . 3.09
Other 10ans......cccoevevreeienienereceenne 107 0.57 291 0.79 208 0.87
Total allocated allowance ........ e 1,550 100.00 . : 1,465 ~100.00 1,373 100.00
Unallocated.........cccccovueennee reaeidi odans 122 -0.00 S 760 0,00 o115 : 0.00
L) R .8 L6 100.00%  § 1,541 100:00% $ 1488 100.00%
At December 31,
2009 . 2008
l"ercentof .. ~Percent of -
Loans in Loans in
Each e Each

Allowance for  Categoryto  Allowance for  Category to
Loan Losses.- - Total Loans - Loan Losses  Total Loans

(Dollars.in thousands)
Real estate loans:
First .mortgage: : _ o :
One- to four-family residential...... $ 536 91.25% $ 53 90.52%
Multi-family residential................ 14 . - 063 5 0.58
Construction, commercial and . . ] L
other.......... erteerenne e ste s eaee 183 3.41 “171 3.28
Home equity loans and lines of credit... S 573 358 405 4.67
Other 10ans .....c.ccociveevnieieninereeressieeeresesenanes 219 1.13 C222 - 095
Total allocated allowance....................... 1,525 100.00 ‘856 100.00
.Unallocated...........c.ccu... SO S -~ 156 0.00 ©. 43 . 0.00

Total....... Elurtieesaseselessenefeensesebensudarenss <% 71,681 100.00% % 899 - 100.00%

The Company revised the qualltatlve factors that were used to determine the allowance for loan Iosses on construct1on
commercial and other mortgage loans, home equity loans and lines of credit and other loans. As a result of these’
modifications, the Company increased the portion of the allowance for loan Tossés attributable to construction, commercial
and other mortgage loans and decreased the portion of the allowance for loan losses atiributable to home equity loans and
lines ‘'of credit and other loans. The allocation-of a portlon of the allowance ‘to‘one categor}f of loans does not preclude its
availability to absorb losses in other categories. ' :
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Management of Market Risk

General . Our most significant form of market risk is interest rate risk because, as a financial institution, the majority of
our assets and liabilities are sensitive to changes in interest rates. Therefore, a principal part of our operations is to manage
interest rate risk and limit the exposure of our net interest income to changes in market interest rates. Our Board of Directors
has established an Asset/Liability Management Committee, which is responsible for evaluating the interest rate risk inherent
in our assets and liabilities, for determining the level of risk that is appropriate, given our business strategy, operating
environment, capital, liquidity and performance objectives, and for managing this risk consistent with the guidelines
approved by the Board of Directors.

Because we have historically operated as a traditional thrift institution, the significant majority of our assets consist of
long-term, fixed-rate residential mortgage loans and mortgage-backed securities, which we have funded primarily with
checking and savings accounts and short-term borrowings. In addition, there is little demand for adjustable-rate mortgage
loans in the Hawaii market area. This has resulted in our being particularly vulnerable to increases in interest rates, as our
interest-bearing liabilities mature or reprice more quickly than our interest-earning assets.

In 2007, our Board of Directors adopted an Interest Rate Risk Reduction Plan to assist us in reversing this trend and the
negative effect on our net income. We hired an outside third-party consultant to assist us in formulating strategies to ’
restructure our balance sheet and reduce our interest rate risk. Following our review of the consultant’s suggestions, we
implemented strategies to manage our interest rate risk which included the sale of fixed-rate mortgage loans and extending
the maturity of our liabilities.

We continued our efforts to reduce interest rate risk in 2010 by purchasing $10.2 million of shorter-duration mortgage-
backed securities, selling $45.1 million of fixed-rate mortgage loan originations and obtaining $10.0 million of long-term,
fixed-rate borrowings. In 2011, we sold $61.2 million of fixed-rate mortgage loan production and obtained $57.0 million of
long-term, fixed-rate borrowings. In 2012, we purchased $8.2 million of shorter-duration mortgage-backed securities and
sold $107.9 million of fixed-rate mortgage loan production. In addition, we may utilize the following strategies to further
reduce our interest rate risk:

. Continuing our efforts to increase our personal and business checking accounts, which are less rate-sensitive than
certificates of deposit and which provide us with a stable, low-cost source of funds;

. Continuing to repay short-term borrowings;

. Maintaining overnight cash balances at the Federal Reserve Bank or a portfolio of short-term investments;

. Purchasing mortgage-backed securities with shorter durations;

. Subject to the maintenance of our credit quality standards, originating commercial loans and home equity lines of
credit, which have adjustable interest rates and shorter average lives than first mortgage loans; and

. Maintaining relatively high regﬁlatory capital ratios.

Our policies do not permit hedging activities, such as engaging in futures, options or swap transactions, or investing in
high-risk mortgage derivatives, such as collateralized mortgage obligation residual interests, real estate mortgage investment
conduit residual interests or stripped mortgage-backed securities. We have no current intention to sell additional loans
classified as held-for-investment at this time.

Economic Value of Equity. We use an interest rate sensitivity analysis that computes changes in the economic value of
equity (EVE) of our cash flows from assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items in the event of a range of assumed changes
in market interest rates. EVE represents the market value of portfolio equity and is equal to the present value of assets minus
the present value of liabilities, with adjustments made for off-balance sheet items. This analysis assesses the risk of loss in
market-risk-sensitive instruments in the event of a sudden and sustained 100 to 400 basis point increase or a 100 basis point
decrease in market interest rates with no effect given to any steps that we might take to counter the effect of that interest rate
movement. A basis point equals one-hundredth of one percent, and 100 basis points equals one percent. An increase in
interest rates from 3% to 4% would mean, for example, a 100 basis point increase in the “Change in Interest Rates” column
below. Given the current relatively low level of market interest rates, an EVE calculation for an interest rate decrease of
greater than 100 basis points has not been prepared.
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The following table presents our internal calculations of the estimated changes in our EVE as of December 31, 2012
that would result from the designated instantaneous changes in the interest rate yield curve. -

C

Increase
: (Decrease) in
~Estimated EVE Ratioas a EVE Ratio as a
Y . 7 Increase T " Percentof Percent of
Estimated .. (Decrease)in . Percentage; ' Present Value ' Present value of
Change in Interest Rates (bp) (1) EVE (2) EVE Change in EVE of Assets (3)(4) Assets (3)(4)
. ) ; _(Dollars in thousands)
F400.. oo, et 0§ 226724 $  (24,941) C99)% 14.28% S 118)%
300 e, regeneretiasienssianes $ 242,772 § (8,893) . - (3.53)% 15.10% (0.36)%
F200 e $.259,154 $ 7489 . 298% 15.92% - 0.46%
F100 v $ 267,628 .8 = 15963  6.34% 16.32% 0.86%
0 . $ 251,665 % 0 - 0.00% 15.46% , 0.00%
[ L0) DU— eevesseessess $.212,454. % (39211) - . - (15.58)% 13.37% (2.09%

(1) = Assumes an instantaneous uniform change in interest rates at all maturities. -

(2) EVE is the difference between the present value of an institution’s assets-and liabilities.

(3) - Present value of assets represents the discounted present value of incoming cash flows on mterest~eammg assets.
(4) EVE Ratio represents EVE divided by the present value of assets.

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the methodologies used in determining interest rate risk through changes in EVE.
Modeling changes in EVE requires making certain assumptions that may or may not reflect the manner in which actual yields
and costs respond to changes in market interest rates. In this regard, the EVE tables presented assume that the composition of
our interest-sensitive assets and liabilities existing at the beginning of a period remains constant over the period being
measured and assurne that a particular change in interest rates is reflected uniformly across the yield curve regardless of the
duration or repricing of specific assets and liabilities. Accordingly, although the EVE tables provide an indication of our
interest rate risk exposure at a particular point in time, such measurements are not interided to and do not provide a precise
forecast of the effect of changes in market interest rates on our EVE and net interest income and will differ from actual

results.

Liquidity and Capital Resources | , t

Liquidity is the ability to meet current and future ﬁnanc1a1 obligations. Our primary sources of funds consist of deposit
inflows, cash balancesat the Federal Reserve Bank, loan repayments, advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle,
securities sold under agreements to repurchase, proceeds from loan and security sales and principal repayments on securities.
While maturities and scheduled amortization of loans and securities are predictable sources of funds, deposit flows and
mortgage prepayments are greatly influenced by general interest rates, economic conditions and competition. We have
established an Asset/Liability Management Committee, consisting of our President and Chief Executive Officer, our Vice
Chairman and Co-Chief Operating Officer; our Senior Vice President and Treasurer and our Vice President and Controller,
which is responsible for establishing and monitoring our liquidity targets and strategies in order to ensure that sufficient
liquidity exists for meeting the borrowing needs and deposit withdrawals-of our customers as well as unanticipated
contingencies. We believe that we have enough sources of 11qu1d1ty to satisfy out short- and long-term liquidity needs as of
December 31, 201 2 ,

We regularly monitor and ad_]ust our 1nvestments in hqu1d assets based upon our assessment of:
@) expected loan demand B

(ii) expected deposit flows and borrowing maturities;

(iii) yields available on interest-earning deposits and securities; and

(iv) the objectives of our asset/liability management program.

Excess liquid assets are invested generally in lnterest-earnmg dep051ts orsecurities and may also be used to pay off
short-term borrowmgs
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Our most liquid asset is cash. The level of this asset is dependent on our operating, financing, lending and investing
activities during any given period. At December 31, 2012, cash and cash equivalents totaled $182.8 million. On that date, we
had $70.0 million in securities sold under agreements to repurchase outstanding and $20.0 million of Federal Home Loan
Bank advances outstanding with the ability to borrow an additional $370.6 million under Federal Home Loan Bank advances.

Our cash flows are derived from operating activities, investing activities and financing activities as reported in our
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows included in our Consolidated Financial Statements.

At December 31, 2012, we had $39.3 million in loan commitments outstanding, most of which were for fixed-rate
loans. In addition to commitments to originate loans, we had $22.0 million in unused lines of credit to borrowers. Certificates
of deposit due within one year of December 31, 2012 totaled $146.7 million, or 11.8% of total deposits. If these deposits do
not remain with us, we may be required to seek other sources of funds, including loan sales, brokered deposits, securities sold
under agreements to repurchase and Federal Home Loan Bank advances. Depending on market conditions, we may be
required to pay higher rates on such deposits or other borrowings than we currently pay on the certificates of deposit due on
or before December 31, 2013. We believe, however, based on past experience that a significant portion of such deposits will
remain with us. We have the ability to attract and retain deposits by adjusting the interest rates offered.

Our primary investing activities are originating loans and purchasing mortgage-backed securities. During the years
ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, we originated $371.5 million, $251.0 million and $203.6 million of loans,
respectively. During these years, we purchased $148.0 million, $297.9 million and $185.1 million of securities, respectively.

Financing activities consist primarily of activity in deposit accounts, Federal Home Loan Bank advances and securities
sold under agreements to repurchase. We experienced net increases in deposits of $71.7 million and $89.6 million for the
years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Deposit flows are affected by the overall level of interest rates, the
interest rates and products offered by us and our local competitors, and by other factors.

Liquidity management is both a daily and long-term function of business management. If we require funds beyond our
ability to generate them internally, borrowing agreements exist with the Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle, which provide
an additional source of funds. We also. utilize securities sold under agreements to repurchase as another borrowing source. At
December 31, 2012, we had the ability to borrow up to an additional $370.6 million from the Federal Home Loan Bank of -
Seattle. Securities sold under agreements to repurchase decreased by $38.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2012.

In 2011 and 2010, the Company adopted common stock repurchase programs. Shares repurchased will reduce the
amount of shares issued and outstanding. The repurchased shares may be reissued in connection with share-based ‘
compensation plans and for general corporate purposes. During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company
repurchased 347,196 and 1,281,268 shares, respectively, of the total 1,867,253 shares authorized by the Board of Directors.
For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, the shares were repurchased at an average cost of $21.52 and $19.52,
respectively.

Territorial Savings Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements, including a risk-based capital measure.
The risk-based capital guidelines include both a definition of capital and a framework for calculating risk-weighted assets by
assigning balance sheet assets and off-balance sheet items to broad risk categories. At December 31, 2012, Territorial
Savings Bank exceeded all regulatory capital requirements. Territorial Savings Bank is considered “well capitalized” under
regulatory guidelines. See Note 21 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The net proceeds from the stock offering significantly increased our liquidity and capital resources. Over time, the
initial level of liquidity will be reduced as net proceeds from the stock offering are used for general corporate purposes,
including the funding of loans. Our financial condition and results of operations were enhanced by the net proceeds from the
stock offering, resulting in increased net interest-earning assets and net interest income. However, due to the increase in
equity resulting from the net proceeds raised in the stock offering, our return on equity has been adversely affected following
the stock offering.

-l

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Aggregate Contractual Obligations

Commitments. As a financial services provider, we routinely are a party to various financial instruments with off-
balance-sheet risks, such as commitments to extend credit and unused lines of credit. While these contractual obligations
represent our potential future cash requirements, a significant portion of commitments to extend credit may expire without
being drawn upon. Such commitments are subject to the same credit policies and approval process accorded to loans we
make. In addition, we enter into commitments to sell mortgage loans. For additional information, see Note 20 of the Notes to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Contractual Obligations. In the ordinary course of our operations, we enter into certain contractual obligations. Such -
obligations include operating leases for premises and equipment, agreements with respect to borrowed funds and deposit
liabilities and agreements with respect to investments.

The following table summarizes our significant ﬁied and determinable contractual obligations and other funding needs
by payment date at December 31, 2012. The payment amounts represent those amounts due to the recipient and do not
include any unamortized premiums or discounts or other similar carrying amount adjustments.

Payments Due by Period
- ; More than . More than
One year one year to three years to More than )
Contractual Obligations or less three years fivé years five years Total
(In thousands) _
LONG-I dEDE .....ooceeceeeeeeeier e reeerese i $ 33,000 $ 57,000 $ 0 $ 0 $ 90,000
Operating 1eases..........cocovevmisiiirimsninnesriniecesninennnnnas 2,354 4,067 3,165 2,729 12,315
" Capitalized 1€aSeS........oceuerererercreiricicisiensncianieans 0 0 0 0 0
Purchase obligations .........c.cccceevivinininiiinesnevereans 2,072 3,808 3,536 0 . 9,416
Certificates of depoSit......coccerercreemreriniisniciininnnnens 146,674 49,274 9,433 0 205,381
Other long-term liabilities..........ccoovviveenrrnrieeeinnnnn 0 0 0 0 0
TOtal .ot $ 184,100 $ 114,149 $ 16,134 $ 2,729 $§ 317,112

Commitments to extend credit........ceecvervveererereiveeee $ 39333 $ 03%. 0 S 0 $ 39,333

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

- In April 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) amended the Transfers and Servicing topic of the
FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC). The amendment modified the criteria used to determine whether a
repurchase agreement is accounted for as a sale or as a secured borrowing. The amendment was effective for interim or
annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2011. Early adoption was not permitted. We adopted this amendment on
January 1, 2012, and the adoption did not have any effect on our consolidated financial statements.

In May 2011, the FASB amended the Fair Value-Measurement topic of the FASB ASC. The amendment results in
common fair value measurement and disclosure requirements in U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and
International Financial Reporting Standards. The amendment both clarifies the intent about existing fair value measurements
as well as changes the principle or requirement for measuring fair value or disclosing fair value information. The amendment
was effective for interim or annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011. Early application was not permitted. We
adopted this amendment on January 1, 2012, and the adoption did not have a material effect on our consolidated financial
statements.

In June 2011, the FASB amended the Comprehensive Income topic of the FASB ASC. The amendment eliminated the
option of presenting components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of changes in stockholders’ equity.
Nonowner changes in stockholders’ equity must be presented either in a continuous statement of comprehensive income or in
two separate but consecutive statements. The amendment was effective for interim or annual periods beginning after
December 15, 2011, with early adoption permitted. In December 2011, the FASB deferred the effective date of the part of
this amendment requiring reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income to be shown on the face of the
financial statements to allow time for further deliberation. Until final reporting requirements are effective, previous disclosure
requirements will remain in effect. We adopted this amendment on January 1, 2012, and other than the location of disclosures
related to other comprehensive income, the adoption did not have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements.
In February 2013, the FASB finalized the reporting requirements for reclassifications out of accumulated other
comprehensive income. When an amount reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income is required to be
reported in net income in its entirety, the effect on income statement items must be disclosed. When an amount reclassified
out of accumulated other comprehensive income is not required to be reported in net income in its entirety in the same period,
cross references to other required disclosures providing information about the transaction are required. This amendment is
effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2012. We do not expect the adoption of this amendment to have
a material effect on our consolidated financial statements.

In December 2011, the FASB amended the Balance Sheet topic of the FASB ASC. The amendment requires
disclosures about the gross and net information related to instruments and transactions eligible for offset in the statement of
financial position. The disclosures are meant to assist users of financial statements to more easily compare information that is
presented based on the differing offsetting requirements of U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and International
Financial Reporting Standards. The amendment is effective for interim and annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2013. We do not expect the adoption of this amendment to have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements.
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Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

Our consolidated financial statements and related notes have been prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. U.S.
GAAP generally requires the measurement of financial position and operating results in terms of historical dollars without
consideration of changes in the relative purchasing power of money over time due to inflation. The impact of inflation is
reflected in the increased cost of our operations. Unlike industrial companies, our assets and liabilities are primarily monetary
in nature. As a result, changes in market interest rates have a greater impact on performance than the effects of inflation.

ITEM 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Information required by this item is included in “ITEM 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations,” above.

ITEM 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Territorial Bancorp Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Territorial Bancorp Inc. and subsidiaries as of

December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, stockholders’
equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2012.
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Territorial Bancorp Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2012, in conformity with

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
Territorial Bancorp Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012, based on criteria established in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO), and our report dated March 15, 2013 expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Honolulu, Hawaii
March 15, 2013
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Territorial Bancorp Inc.:

We have audited Territorial Bancorp Inc.’s (the Company’s) internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2012, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting,
included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. ‘

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material réspects. Our audit included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. ’ ' " -

A company’s internal control-over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of récords that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of ‘management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect nﬁsstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Territorial Bancorp Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2012, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. :

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
the consolidated balance sheets of Territorial Bancorp Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the
related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income, and cash
flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2012, and our report dated March 15, 2013 expressed
an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements. ' ' ’

/s/ KPMG LLP

Honolulu, Hawaii
Match' 15, 2013
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TERRITORIAL BANCORP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2012 and 2011
(Dollars in thousands, except share data)

2012 2011
ASSETS
Cash and cash €qQUIVALENLES ..........c.cc.cururiecuierriereriieic i $ 182818 § 131,937
Investment securities held to maturity, at amortized cost (fair value of $584,125 and
$687,319 at December 31, 2012 anid 2011, respectively) ......ccccvcerrvnreinricniiecincinnencnn 554,673 653,871
Federal Home Loan Bank StOCK, t COSt ..........ecvvieivreriieiirrirenneeereressesssessessseseessesssenessnensenne 12,128 12,348
Loans held for sale.........ccoeverneeueenen. e s rerteereeeereaneeneesaaane 2,220 3,231
LOANS FECEIVADIE, NEL ....ovvecevienreiiiererecreetenreeereeerter e rreesbesssesnseessesssesennesnssotessessnsasssssssassssss 774,876 688,095
Accrued interest FECEIVADIE.........oiviiviirininiiiniii et nens 4,367 4,780
Premises and QUIPIENE, NIEL .....ccccverercrrereereeieerirrrersieresentsess et ssest st s st s s s ssenssreanssessnens 5,056 5,450
Real €StAte OWIIEM .......vevuriveeieeieeeirereeitetenteestesesteesesbeesteseeshaessesanessesaseneesanesesnsssessesanensessnsseons : 0 408
Bank-0Wned e INSUTANCE ........oocveiriieeeeirierieeesreeeieessesseeseesasaesesssesssneressssesssersseessesssesssensn 31,177 30,234
Deferred income taxes reCeivable.......covviieriiiiiiiercniiereie et 3,580 2,648
Prepaid expenses and Other aSSets.........c..ccoviviiiiiiiinierseere i 3,732 4,569
TOLAL @SSELS .uvvveeereeerrreeereeressesseersesteesaeasessssassstonsssenseresuessmessuessesssasossesnssssssnss $ 1,574,627 $ 1,537,571
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Liabilities: .
DIEPOSIES...veeurverersesivrsseseseseesesesesssesesessesaeasseesranassstssstastsar e b tRe es s b b e RS b R Ra bbb en $ 1,237.847 $ 1,166,116
Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank ...........c.cccovevvvieenvereccennniecieeneeccencnenens 20,000 20,000
Securities sold under agreements tO TEPUIChASE ........c.coivviirrmininniiensereesesnenens 70,000 108,300
Accounts payable and accrued EXPEnSes..........couvirreerinieniiiiinniiee e 23,017 22,816
Current income taxes Payable ...t s 1,152 3,114
Advance payments by borrowers for taxes and inSurance..............coeconevinirninninienins 3,639 3,264
Total Habilities........ccecruercierererrerereenes eeereterretere st te et e e st ete e e erenee s e e erent 1,355,655 1,323,610
Stockholders’ Equity: :
Preferred stock, $.01 par value; authorized 50,000,000 shares, no shares issued or

OULSEANAING ....cuvveerertrieiereetree ettt st s b bebs 0 0
Common stock, $.01 par value; authorized 100,000,000 shares; issued and

outstanding 10,806,248 and 11,022,309 shares at December 31, 2012 and 2011,

TESPECHIVELY ... eeeerieeiereteeeetne sttt ettt bbb bbb 108 110
Additional paid-in capital.........cc.cccovieininiiiinii e 93,616 97,640
Unearned ESOP Shares..........coveveverererernenncneieietinie it ssesnossossesenns (7,829) (8,319)
Retained EarniNgs ........ccccvreererirerererrrierrrereteteereseseseesees s seseesessesrrssessesisiesassaesaosesaeses 137,410 128,300
Accumulated other comprehensive 1oSS ......c.cccceeeevcrerecenrcnrnennii s (4,333) (3,770)

Total StOCKhOIAErS” EQUILY ...c.coveevereeeeiererenreteeee et eere e sasasassenes 218,972 213,961
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity .........cccccecveerveenieervernerscrsecrennncs $ 1,574627 $ 1,537,571

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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‘TERRITORIAL BANCORP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
- Consolidated Statements of Incoxe '
For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 ‘and 2010
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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; . 2012 2011 2010
Interest and dividend income: - ‘

" INVESHMENt SECUIILIES ...ccveviirrerecrerreeseeresrerieeeesiseseeesesresestensessesenenes 23,224 $ 26,851 $ 25,754
LOans ......ooeevverrnnennnie eeetrereerueesrearteebe e b e s r e e te e e e te s ra e e taeneaeaaanee 36,566 35,557 34,959
Other INVESHITIENES. ....eveeeveeeeerrreeeeeierieseiorreseeseteaessssesaresessareeessssusees 359 - 325 402

Total interest and dividend iNCOME..............c.ocovrevvrererrrirrivenes 60,149 62,733 61,115
Interest expense: | : » N . S
Deposits.......... fvieeateaeetesitet e e et e tes s et et et er e et e et e eete st e s art et eaaeanebennanen 5,936 6,770 10,395
Advances from the F ederal Home Loan Bank ..........cccccevevervrenennnne . 418 - 401 - 153
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase........... SRR - 2,875 4,114 4,280
Total INtErest EXPENSE ...vevrreererrirereereerererearerereeesiererresseneesins 9,229 11,285 14,828
Net INTEreSt INCOMIE ....uvvvreiieerereeererreerirreeernrreeeesersasssessasesens 50,920 51,448 . 46,287
Provision fOr 10An 10SSES ......c.cveurmieiirirrerirerreeessessesenssessvenesssssesessesssnanes 415 418 345
Net interest income after provision for loan losses............... . 50,50’5 51,030 45,942
Noninterest income: _
Service fees on loan and deposit aCCOUNLS ........cvvvrereerersvirierennes 2,044 2,284 2,401
Income on bank-owned life iNSULANCE.........cccovererrereereeriierresernenens 942 968 1,017
Gain on sale of INVEStMENt SECUTILIES ....cvivvereeriureeeeiinrecerrriveererenaens 1,234 451 350
Gain on 5ale Of I0ANS .....cocoomiieieie et 2,411 711 442
Other-than-temporary impairment 1088€s ........cccovvviiviriiinnieinnnns 0 0 (2,404)
1 11312 OO USRS SRS 437 697 322
Total NONINLErESt INCOME .....c.evvvveeerreeeeenreeeerererereereeeseaveeas 7,068 5,111 2,128
Nomnterest expense:
* Salaries and employee benefits .......ccccevevvninnvniinininnieniiiinn, 20,609 21,621 18,793
OCCUPANCY .....overeriresnseecseesesstaescssenessresesessesesanseesssssesesseassssssenssas 5,246 4,988 4,719
EQUIPIMENE ...cocovecierieiericreeteneeiiirect st rssisaers s a s ss 3,269 3,191 2,963
Loss on extinguishment of debt..........cceeeriiincneininererinieneinnnenes 321 0 0
Federal deposit insurance premiums............coeevene. [T 767 865 1,195
Other general and administrative €Xpenses ..........cueeververevssiirneenens 4,226 3,989 3,860
Total NONINLETESt EXPENSE ...vveuvrrrermrrercrerrerserreraneioreseseveeenens 34,438 34,654 31,530
Income BEfOre INCOME LAXES ...uvveeeerrrreeerriereierrerreiierreeesrereesessserenesissenasens 23,135 21,487 16,540
TEICOTIIE £AXES «evveviiieeeeeiereceieeeteeesseeecseeaesseeesanrsssesrataasnseessseassesnasassessnsasaen 8,297 8,698 5,512
NEE INCOMIE.c..evevvieririreeeeraeereeseessessestrsessessesnsesssrsnesessenss 14,838 § 12,789 § 11,028
Basic €armings Per SHare ........co.vveveeveeerrimnerereieemisesesissisessssessesnesessins 147 $ 1.19 $ 0.97
Diluted earnings per Share ..........ccoccveereriiereciinninnrccnnes e 145 $ 1.17 $ 0.97
Cash dividends declared per common Share ............cooceeervereeererecrseeeneas 054 § 034 § 0.24
Basic weighted-average shares outstanding..........ccocevevevceveiniinnnennnnne 10,113,453 10,777,417 11,322,798
Diluted weighted-average shares outstanding..........cocevveireuviniinninnecnnne. 10,213,190 10,936,632 11,369,161



TERRITORIAL BANCORP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010

. (Dollars in thousands)

2012 2011 2010
NEL ICOMNE ... eeeeeeeereteeeereseeseteetereeesesestsbeae s ebestebe e s enssaeusstsrararan et s seeba e st s n s e b san s esbanens $ 14,838 $ 12,789 §$§ 11,028
Change in unfunded pension liability...........ccominininiin (826) (1,462) (445)
Change in unrealized 10SS ON SECUTILIES .......ovuvvriierrieriiiniises 29 197 (322)
Noncredit related gains (losses) on securities not expected to be sold............... 234 0 (679)
Other comprehensive 10SS.........ccovvririiiiiinieninnn s (563) (1,265) (1,446)
COMPIENENSIVE INCOME. ......vucvriciirriirerieie st $ 14275 $ 11,524 $§ 9,582

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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TERRITORIAL BANCORP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
‘ -“And Comprehensive Income B
For the years ended December 31,2012, 2011 and 2010
(Dollars in thousands, except share data)

Accumulated -

_ Additional Unearned Other Total
Common  Paid-in ESOP " Retained Comprehensive  Stockholders’
Stock ‘Capital ‘Shares -~ Earnings Loss’ Equity
Balances at December 31, 2009 ...... $ 122 118,823 (9,297) 111,082 (1,059) 219,671
Net income ........ reieeerierensanes . 0 0 0 11,028 - 0 11,028
Other comprehensive loss...... 0 0 0 0 - (1,446) (1,446)
Cash dividends declared......... 0 0 0 (2,713) 0 (2,713)
Share-based compensation .... 0 939 0 0 S | I 939
Allocation of 48,932 ESOP » : :
shares ......c.coeeevne reeeeeaeeens 0 418 489 0 . 0 907
Repurchase of 55,707 shares :
of company common . P » :
SEOCK cuvevrevneretesrerrerreeeaneens 0 (1,027) 0 o 0. - (1,027)
Balances at December 31, 2010...... $ 122 119,153 (8,808) 119,397 (2,505) 227,359
Net inCOME ....covveevrveerreeeerenns . 0 o O 12,789 0 12,789
Other comprehensive loss...... 0 0 0 0 (1,265) (1,265)
Cash dividends declared......... 0 0 0 (3,886) 0 (3,886)
Share-based compensation .... 1 3,460 - 0 0 0 3,461
Allocation of 48,933 ESOP ~
shares .......... eeeeeeeteerenaeeneen 0 478 489 0 0 967
Repurchase of 1,281,268 ‘
shares of company common -
SEOCK ...veeurerierereiveneeianeeens (13) (25,451) 0 0 0 (25,464)
. -Balances at December 31, 2011 ....... $ 110 97,640 (8,319) = 128,300 3,770) 213,961
Net iNCOME ...ovvnrvninmerererenees 0 0 o0 14,838 - 0 14,838
, Other comprehensive loss...... 0 0 0 0 (563) (563)
® Cash dividends declared........ -0 0 0 (5,728) 0 (5,728)
Share-based compensation ... 1 2,690 0 0 0 2,691

Allocation of 48,932 ESOP
Shares ....coveveerireerreeererenns 0 592 490 0 0 1,082

Repurchase of 370,643 shares
of company common

SEOCK v rverreseerreseerees @) (8022 0 0o 0 (8025

Exercise of 41,275 options on ' : o : S
cOmmon StOCK........vcrevnns ‘ 0 716 0 0 . 0 716
 Balances at December 31, 2012...... $ 108 93,616 . (7,829) 137,410 4,333) 218,972

See accbmpanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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TERRITORIAL BANCORP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
(Dollars in thousands)

2012 2011 2010

Cash flows from operating activities:
INEEIDCOIMIE ..evevieeenreerieseeerereeereeseese e s essessesaseaseseessbesasassesatssneansnsensasasasanss $ 14,838 $ 12,789 § 11,028

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities: ’ ‘

Provision for 10an 10SSES.........cccecererrvririiiiinieniiiieiee et 415 418 345
Depreciation and amortization............coeeererencnenenssnnsiiesiininns 1,137 1,124 1,010
Deferred income tax benefit .........ccocveviriiveneiiniiininniiene e (592) (1,745) (1,769)
Amortization of fees, discounts, and premiums...........ccceeeerreiverinennes 383 (163) 91
Origination of loans held for sale..........cooooivininiiinnniie (105,953) (60,470)  (47,863)
Proceeds from sales of loans held for sale.......ccccooevvvcvenrircencrinncnns 109,375 61,184 45,071
Gain on sale 0f 10ans, NEL........cceecreevrercerneinrerieie e 2,411) (711) (442)
Net gain on sale of real estate OWDEd..........ccoceirirniinnneccncninnns 6) (18) )
Other-than-temporary impairment loss on investment ...........c.cc...... 0 0 2,404
Purchases of investment securities held for trading............ccoouvvenenne 0 (41,156)  (18,143)
Proceeds from sale of investment securities held for trading............. 0 41,334 18,244
Gain on sale of investment securities held for trading....................... 0 (178) (101)
Gain on sale of investment securities available for sale .................... 0 0 (249)
Gain on sale of investment securities held to maturity ............cc.c...... (1,234) (273) 0
Loss on extinguishment of debt..........c.oooiviininiiinis 321 0 0
Net (gain) loss on sale of premises and equipment............o..c.cocoeueee. 9 o) 68
ESOP EXPENSE. .....vvrrrerereremcnrrerensasiisinsssssiisesssssssenssasasssassssessassssssssses 1,082 967 907
Share-based compensation EXPENSE ..........ccverrireriririesieineienisessesensenes 2,690 3,461 939
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation ...............c.ce.e.e. (54) 0 0
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest receivable ..........coovevrvinececs 413 (244) 245
Net increase in bank-owned life insurance ..........ccoeeeveevveeinnniiinicenns (943) (968) (1,017)
Net (increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets............ 837 2,221 (341)
Net increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses .. (1,140) (81) 869
Net increase (decrease) in federal and state income taxes, net .......... (1,962) 2,537 93)
Net cash provided by operating activities ..........c.coevrrerunerencns 17,205 20,023 11,202
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of investment securities held to maturity.........ccocvevveiniiniinienne (148,043) (256,721) (102,139)
Purchases of investment securities available for sale...........cccovvvenivennennne 0 0 (64,774)
Principal repayments on investment securities held to maturity ................. 229,696 143,526 165,291
Principal repayments on investment securities available for sale................ 0 525 114
Proceeds from sale of investment securities held to maturity ..............c.c.... 17,206 3,815 0
Proceeds from sale of investment securities available for sale.................... 0 0 49,365
Loan originations, net of principal repayments on loans receivable ........... (85,744)  (45,987)  (42,261)
Proceeds from redemption of FHLB stock........ccccooiiiiiniiiiciiiiiiins , 220 0 0
Proceeds from sale of real estate OWned.........cooocevvimviiniinieninineveneeessenenas 590 180 160
Purchases of premises and eqUIPMENt.........ccoevivieniinrinnnnreeteenennnncens (752) (1,148) (2,009)
Proceeds from disposals of premises and equipment ...........c..cooevnniriennnnas 0 5 0
Net cash provided (used in) by investing activities.................. 13,173  (155,805) 3,747
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2012 2011 2010

Cash flows from financing activities:

Net increase in depoSits............oevervireerseriosssenssssenssseses e berns $ 71,731 $ 89,646 $61,802
Proceeds from advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank .................. 100 10,000 10,000
Repayments of advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank.................. . (100) 0 0
Proceeds from securities sold under agreements to repurchase................ ' 0 47,000 1,136
Repayments of securities sold under agreements to repurchase....v ........... (38,621)  (43,900)  (26,136)
Purchases of Fed Funds............cctuveuveniornensnissincrnnnnns g ' C 100 10 10
Sales of Fed Funds .......... e SO SPT— - (10) (10) (10)
~ Net increase (decrease) in advance payments by borrowers for taxes and
IDSUTAIICE ...c.uvveeierieereaereessueeeessssssessassnsassssssssanssssgsessnssssesssssasassasssassssns 375 (1 12)‘ 471
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensatlon ................................. 54 0 0
_ Proceeds from.i issuance of common stock, net of COStS.......oveerercururennee ‘ 717 0. 0
Purchases ofcompany SEOCK v escvernertimeriinerecssinssnis revensirines repesessaneseone : (8,025) = (25,464) (1,027)
Cash dividends paid ........ccoceeeveererrerirennrrenerenenieeerees eeeserneeeassenions (5,728) (3;886) (2,713)
Net cash provided by financing ac’tivitie‘s 20,503 73,284 43,533
_ ‘Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equlvalents.......;.... 50,881 (62,498’) 58,482
Cash and cash equ1valents at beginning ofthe VOAT..cciiveentnirrieniantarionass baessenes o 131,937 194,435 - 135,953
Cash and cash equwalents at end of the year .................... . $182;'818 $131,937 $194,435
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
~ Cash paid for: . . A o
Interest on dep0s1ts and DOITOWINGS .....oovvverererenrererirereeenerseeseseresens $ 9403 $ 11,385 §14,965
INCOME tAXES .ovevieeeiiciiiinreaeeereeeciserrseraaseseasssnanemssennaaeesssessenmassreseaeses 10,851 7,906 8,374

Supplemental disclosure of noncash investing activities: .
Loans transferred to real estate owned........c...ccceevecveiccrinninnncenicncinnnne $ 176 -~ $ 570 8§ 0

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

61



TERRITORIAL BANCORP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010

(1) Organization

On November 4, 2008, the Board of Directors of Territorial Mutual Holding Company approved a plan of
conversion and reorganization under which the Company would convert from a mutual holding company to a
stock holding company. The conversion to a stock holding company was approved by the depositors and
borrowers of Territorial Savings Bank and the Office of Thrift Supervision (OTS) and included the filing of a
registration statement with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission. Upon the completion of the
conversion and reorganization on July 10, 2009, Territorial Mutual Holding Company and Territorial Savings
Group, Inc. ceased to exist as separate legal entities and Territorial Bancorp Inc. became the holding company for
Territorial Savings Bank. A total of 12,233,125 shares were issued in the conversion at $10 per share, raising
$122.3 million of gross proceeds. Approximately $3.7 million of conversion expenses have been offset against
the gross proceeds. Territorial Bancorp Inc.’s common stock began trading on the NASDAQ Global Select
Market under the symbol “TBNK” on July 13, 2009.

Upon completion of the conversion and reorganization, a special “liquidation account” was established in an
amount equal to the total equity of Territorial Mutual Holding Company as of December 31, 2008. The
liquidation account is to provide eligible account holders and supplemental eligible account holders who
maintain their deposit accounts with Territorial Savings Bank after the conversion with a liquidation interest in
the unlikely event of the complete liquidation of Territorial Savings Bank after the conversion. The liquidation
account will be reduced annually to the extent that eligible account holders and supplemental eligible account
holders have reduced their qualifying deposits. Subsequent increases will not restore an eligible account holder’s
or supplemental eligible account holder’s interest in the liquidation account. In the event of a complete
liquidation of Territorial Savings Bank, and only in such event, each account holder will be entitled to receive a
distribution from the liquidation account in an amount proportionate to the adjusted qualifying account balances
then held. : ‘

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Description of Business

The Company provides loan and deposit products and services primarily to individual customers through
27 branches located throughout Hawaii. We deal primarily in residential mortgage loans in the State of
Hawaii. The Company’s earnings depend primarily on its net interest income, which is the difference
between the interest income earned on interest-earning assets (loans receivable and investments) and the
interest expense incurred on interest-bearing liabilities (deposit liabilities and borrowings). Deposits
traditionally have been the principal source of the Bank’s funds for use in lending, meeting liquidity
requirements, and making investments. The Company also derives funds from receipt of interest and
principal on outstanding loans receivable and investments, borrowings from the Federal Home Loan
Bank (FHLB) of Seattle, securities sold under agreements to repurchase, and proceeds from issuance of
common stock.

(b) Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts and results of operations of Territorial
Bancorp Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries, Territorial Savings Bank, Territorial Real Estate Co.,
Inc., Territorial Financial Services, Inc., and Territorial Holdings, Inc. Territorial Holdings, Inc. includes
the accounts and results of operations of Territorial Realty, Inc. Significant intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

As of December 31, 2010, Territorial Holdings, Inc. and Territorial Realty, Inc. were liquidated and their
accounts and results of operations were incorporated into Territorial Savings Bank.

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash and due from banks, interest-bearing deposits in other banks,
federal funds sold, and short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less.
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‘Investment Securttles

The Company classifies and accounts for its mvestment securltles as follows: (1) held-to-maturity debt
securities in which the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are reported at
amortized cost; (2) trading securities that are purchased for the purpose of selling in the near term are
reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses included in current earnings; and (3) available-for-
sale securities not classified as either held-to-maturity or trading securities are reported at fair value, with
unrealized gains and losses excluded from current earnings and reported as a separate component of
equity. At December 31 2012 and 2011, the Company clas31ﬁed all of its 1nvestments as held-to-
maturity.

A decline in the market value of any available-for-sale or held-to-maturity security below.cost, that is
deemed to be other than temporary, results in an impairment to reduce the carrying amount to fair value.

‘To determine whether impairment is other than temporary, the Company considers whether it has the

intent and ability not to sell-and would not be required to. sell for a sufficient penod of time to recover the
remaining amortized cost basis. :

Gams or losses on the sale of 1nvestment securltles are computed using the specific-identification method.
The Company amortizes premiums and accretes discounts associated with investment securities using the
interest method over the contractual life of the respective investment security. Such amortization and
accretion is included in the interest and dividend income line item in the consolidated statements of
income. Dividend and interest income are recognized when earned.

Loans Receivable

This pohcy applies to all loan classes Loans rece1vab1e are stated at the principal amount outstandmg,
less the allowance for loan losses, loan origination fees and costs, and commitment fees. Interest on loans
recelvable is accrued as earned. The Company has a policy of placing loans on a ‘nonaccrual basis when
more than 90 days contractually delinquent or when, in the opinion of management, collection of all or
part of the principal balance appears doubtful. Interest, net deferred fees, and discounts on loans classified
as nonaccrual are generally recognized on a cash basis or when the loan becomes current. The Company,

'consulermg current information and events regarding the borrowers” ability to repay their obligations,
considers a loan to be impaired when it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect all

amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. When a loan is considered to be
impaired, the amount of the impairment is measured based on the present value of expected future cash
flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate or, if the loan is considered to be collateral
dependent, based on the fair value of the collateral less estimated costs to sell. Impairment losses are
written off through a charge to the provision for loan losses. Interest, net deferred fees, and discounts on
impaired loans are recognized on a cash basis or when the loan is no longer.impaired. A nonaccrual loan
may be restored to an accrual basis when principal and interést payments are current and full payment of
principal and interest is expected.

Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale are stated at the lower of aggregate cost or market value Net fees and costs of
originating loans held for sale are deferred and are included in the basis for determining the gain or loss

~ on sales of loans held for sale.

Deferred Loan Origination Fees and Unearned Loan Discounts

Loan orlgmatlon and commitment fees and certain direct loan origination costs are being deferred, and
the net amount is recogmzed over the life of the related loan as an adjustment to yield. Net deferred loan
fees are amortized using the interest method over the contractual term of the loan, adjusted for actual
prepayments. Net unamortized fees on loans pald in full are recognized as a component of interest
income. :

Real Estate Owned

Real estate owned is valued at the time of foreclosure at fa1r value, less estlmated cost to sell, thereby
establishing a new cost basis. The Company obtains appralsals based on recent comparable sales to assist
management in estimating the fair value of real estate owned. Subsequent to acquisition, real estate
owned is valued at the lower of cost or fair value, less estimated cost to sell. Declines in value are
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charged to expense through a direct writedown of the asset. Costs related to holding real estate are
charged to expense while costs related to development and improvements are capitalized.

Profits from the sale of real estate are recognized when title has passed, minimum down payment
requirements are met, the terms of any notes received are such as to satisfy continuing investment
requirements, and the Company is relieved of any requirements for continued involvement with the
properties. If the minimum down payment or the continuing investment is not adequate to meet the
criteria specified in the Property, Plant and Equipment topic of the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC), the Company will defer income recognition and
account for such sales using alternative methods, such as installment, deposit, or cost recovery.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company’s allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level considered adequate to provide for
losses that can be estimated based upon specific and general conditions. All loan losses are charged, and
all recoveries are credited, to the allowance for loan losses. Additions to the allowance for loan losses are
provided by charges to income based on various factors, which, in the Company’s judgment, deserve
current recognition in estimating probable losses. Charge-offs to the allowance are made when
management determines that collectability of all or a portion of a loan is doubtful and available collateral
is insufficient to repay the loan.

General allowances are established for loan losses on a portfolio basis for loans that do not meet the
definition of impaired, in accordance with the Receivables topic of the FASB ASC. The portfolio is
grouped into similar risk characteristics, primarily loan type and delinquency status. The Company
applies an estimated loss rate to each loan group. The loss rates applied are based upon its loss experience
adjusted, as appropriate, for environmental factors discussed below. This evaluation is inherently
subjective, as it requires material estimates that may be susceptible to significant revisions based upon
changes in economic and real estate market conditions. Actual loan losses may be significantly more than
the allowance for loan losses the Company has established, which could have a material negative effect
on its financial results.

Residential mortgage loans represent the largest segment of the Company’s loan portfolio. All of the
residential mortgage loans are secured by a first mortgage on residential real estate in Hawaii and consist
primarily of fixed-rate mortgage loans which have been underwritten to Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae
guidelines and have similar risk characteristics. The loan loss allowance is determined by first calculating
the historical loss rate for this segment of the portfolio. The loss rate may be adjusted for qualitative and
environmental factors. The allowance for loan loss is calculated by multiplying the adjusted loss rate by
the total loans in this segment of the portfolio.

The adjustments to historical loss experience are based on an evaluation of several qualitative and
environmental factors, including:

« changes in lending policies and procedures, including changes in underwriting standards and
collections, charge-off and recovery practices;

+ changes in international, national, and local economic trends;
« changes in the types of loans in the loan portfolio;

« changes in the experience and ability of personnel in the mortgage loan origination and loan servicing
departments;

+ changes in the number and amount of delinquent loans and classified assets;
» changes in the type and volume of loans being originated;

« changes in the value of underlying collateral for collateral dependent loans;
« changes in any concentration of credit; and

« external factors such as competition, legal and regulatory requirements on the level of estimated credit
losses in the existing loan portfolio.

The Company also uses historical loss rates adjusted for qualitative and environmental factors to establish
loan loss allowances for the following portfolio segments:

» home equity loans and lines of credit; and

» consumer and other loans.
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The:Company has a limited loss experience for the construction, commercial and other mortgage segment

‘of the loan portfolio: The loan loss allowance on this portfolio segment is determined using the loan loss

rate of other financial institutions in the State of Hawaii. The allowarnce for loan loss is calculated by
multiplying the loan loss rate of other financial institutions in the state.by the total loans in this segment
of the Company’s loan portfolio. .

In addition, the unallocated allowance is estabhshed to prov1de for probable losses that have been
incurred as of the reporting date but are not reflected in the allocated allowance.

While the Company uses the best information available to make evaluations, future adjustments to the

. allowance may be necessary if conditions differ substantially from the information used in making the
; evaluations. In addition, as an integral part of their examination process, the Office of the Comptroller of
the Currency will periodi‘cally review the allowance for loan losses. The Office of the Comptroller of the

Currency may require the Company to increase the allowance based on thelr analysrs of information

: avarlable at‘the time of their examination. -

T ransfer of Fi inancial Assets

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control is surrendered. Control is
surrendered when the assets have been isolated from the Company, the transferee obtains the right to

- pledge or exchange the assets without constraint, and the Company does not maintain effective control

over the transferred assets. Mortgage loans sold for cash are accounted for as sales as the above criteria

. have been met.

‘Mortgage loans may also be packaged into securities that are issued and guaranteed by U.S. government-
* sponsoréd enterprises. The Company recerves 100% of the mortgage-backed securities issued.
‘Securitizations are not accounted for as sales and no gain or loss is recognized. The mortgage-backed

securities received in securitizations are valued at amortized cost and classified as held-to-maturity.

Mortgage loan transfers accounted for as sales and securitizations are without recourse and the Company
may retain the related rights to service the loans. Thé retained servicing rights create mortgage servicing

~ assets that are accounted for in accordance with the Transfers and Servicing topic of the FASB ASC.

Mortgage servicing assets are initially valued at fair value and subsequently at the lower of cost or fair
value and are amortized-in proportion to and over the-périod of estimated net servicing income. The
Company uses a discounted-cash flow model to determine the fair value of retained mortgage servicing
rights. Prior to 2010, we retained the servicing rights on residential mortgage loans sold In 2010, we
began selling loans primarily on a servicing-released basis. .

,Premtses anquulpment e

Premises and equipment are stated 4t cost less accumulated deprecratlon and amortization. Depreciation

- is principally computed on’the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective

assets. The estimated useful life of buildings and improvements is 30 years, furniture, fixtures, and
equipment is 3 to 10 years, and automobiles are 3 years. Leasehold improvements-are’amortized on a

_straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term or estimated useful life of the asset.

Income Taxes . e o )
The Company files consolidated federal incoine tax and'consolidated state franchise tax returns.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized using the asset and l1ab111ty method of accounting for the
future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of
existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and net operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates expected to
apply totaxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or

- settled. The effect on deferred tax-assets and liabilities of a change In tax rates is recogmzed in income in

the period that includes the enactment date.

We ‘éstablish ificome tax contmgency reserves for potentlal tax hablhtles related to uncertain tax
positions. A liability for income tax uncertainties would be recorded for unrecognized tax benefits related
to uncertain tax positions where it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained upon
examination by a taxing authority.
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As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company has not recognized a liability for income tax
uncertainties in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Management concluded that a liability for
income tax uncertainties is not expected to be recorded within the next 12 months.

Tax years 2009 to 2011 currently remain subjéct to examination by the Internal Revenue Service and by
the Department of Taxation of the State of Hawaii.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets, such as premises and equipment, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an
asset to estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized by the amount by
which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. Assets to be disposed of would
be separately presented in the consolidated balance sheets and reported at the lower of the carrying
amount or fair value less costs to sell, and are no longer depreciated.

Pension Plan

Pension benefit costs (returns) are charged (credited) to salaries and employee benefits expense, and the
corresponding prepaid (accrued) pension cost is recorded in prepaid expenses and other assets or accounts
payable and accrued expenses in the consolidated balance sheets. The Company’s policy is to fund

pension costs in amounts that will not be less than the minimum funding requirements of the Employee

Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 and will not exceed the maximum tax-deductible amounts. The
Company generally funds at least the net periodic pension cost, subject to limits and targeted funded
status as determined with the consulting actuary.

Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP)

The cost of shares issued to the ESOP, but not yet.allocated to participants, is shown as a reduction of
stockholders’ equity. Compensation expense is based on the market price of shares as they are committed
to be released to participant accounts. Dividends on allocated ESOP shares reduce retained earnings;
dividends on unearned ESOP shares reduce debt and accrued interest.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earning per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of common
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by
the sum of the weighted-average number of shares outstanding plus the dilutive effect of stock options
and restricted stock. ESOP shares not committed to be released are not considered outstanding.

Common Stock Repurchase Program

In 2011 and 2010, the Company adopted common stock repurchase programs in which shares
repurchased reduce the amount of shares issued and outstanding. The repurchased shares may be reissued
in connection with share-based compensation plans and for general corporate purposes. As of

December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company had accumulated repurchases of 1,684,171 and 1,336,975
shares, respectively, of the total 1,867,253 shares authorized by the Board of Directors. During 2012 and
2011, shares were repurchased at an average cost of $21.52 and $19.52, respectively.

Bank-Owned Life Insurance

The Company’s investment in bank-owned life insurance is based on cash surrender value. The Company
invests in bank-owned life insurance to provide a funding source for benefit plan obligations. Bank-
owned life insurance also generally provides noninterest income that is nontaxable. Federal regulations
generally limit the investment in bank-owned life insurance to 25% of the Company’s Tier | capital plus
the allowance for loan losses. At December 31, 2012, this limit was $52.2 million, and the Company had
invested $31.2 million in bank-owned life insurance at that date.
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements tequires management to make a number of
estimates and assumptions relating to the reported amount of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported
amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Significant items subject to-such estimates
and assumptions include the allowance for loan losses; valuation of certain investment securities and
determination as to whether declines in fair value below amortized cost are other than temporary;
valuation allowances for deferred income tax assets; mortgage servicing assets; and assets and obligations
related to employee benefit plans. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

‘Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In April 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) amended the Transfers and Servicing
topic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC). The amendment modified the criteria used
to determine whether a repurchase agreement is accounted for as a sale or as a secured borrowing. The
amendment was effective for interim or annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2011. Early
adoption was-not permitted. The Company adopted this amendment on J anuary 1, 2012, and the adoption
did not have any effect on its consolidated financial statements. : o

In May 2011, the FASB amended the Fair Value Measurement topic of the FASB ASC. The amendment
results in common fair value measurement and disclosure requirements in U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles and International Financial Réporting Standards. The amendment both clarifies the
intent about existing fair value measurements as well as changes the principle or requirement for

- measuring fair value or disclosing fair value information. The ameﬁdment 'was effective for interim or
~ annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011. Early application was not permitted. The Company

adopted this amendment on January 1, 2012, and the adoption did not have a material effect on its
consolidated financial statements. ~ :

In June 2011, the FASB amended the Comprehensive Income topic of the FASB ASC. The amendment
eliminated the option of presenting components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement
of changes in stockholders” equity. Nonowner changes in stockholders’ equity must be presented either in
a continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statéments. The
amendment was effective for interim or annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011, with early

~ adoption permitted. In December 2011, the FASB deferred the effective date of the part of this

amendment requiring reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income to be shown on

-the face of the financial statements to allow time for further deliberation. Until final reporting:

requirements are effective, previous disclosure requirements will remain in effect. The Company adopted
this amendment on January 1, 2012, and other than the location of disclosures related to other

~ comprehensive income, the adoption did not have a material effect on its consolidated financial

statements. In February 2013, the FASB finalized the reporting requirements for reclassifications out of
accumulated other comprehensive income. When an amount reclassified out of accumulated other

_compiehensive income is required to be reported in net income in its entirety, the effect on income

statement items must be disclosed. When an amount reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive
income is not required to be reported in net income in its entirety in the same period, cross references to

. other required disclosures providing information about the transaction are required. This amendment is
-effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2012. The Company does not expect the

adoption of this amendment to have a material effect on its consolidated financial statements.

In December 2011, the FASB amended the Balance Sheet topic of the FASB ASC. The amendment
requires disclosures about the gross and net information related to instruments and transactions eligible
for offset in the statement of financial position. The disclosures are meant to assist users of financial
statements to more easily compare information that is presented based on the differing offsetting
requirements of U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and International Financial Reporting
Standards. In January 2013, the FASB issued a clarification that stated the amendment applies only to
certain derivatives, repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements, and securities borrowing and
securities lending transactions that are either offset or subject to an enforceable master netting
arrangement or similar agreement. The amendment is effective for interim and annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2013. The Company does not expect the adoption of this amendment to have a
material effect on its consolidated financial statements.
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(3) Cash and Cash Equivalents
The table below presents the balances of cash and cash equivalents:

December 31, '

(Dollars in thousands) 2012 ‘ 2011
 Cash and due from banks............cceeeveeemmseereenmisesisesiannssisssinses $ 10574 $ 8,692

Interest-earning deposits in other banks ..o 172,244 123,245

Cash and cash eqUIVAIENLS ...........ccouvvvivmerniirerirnrennisneeeneessnes $ 182,818 $ 131,937

Interest-earning deposits in other banks consist primarily of deposits at the Federal Reserve Bank.

(49) Investment Securities
The carrying and fair values of investment securities are as follows:

Gross unrealized

Carrying Estimated
(Dollars in thousands) value ) Gains Losses fair value
December 31, 2012:
Held to maturity: _
U.S. government-sponsored mortgage-backed ‘
SECUTTLIES «.uvevererererrereseseesermsreressssssmssssessesennes $§ 554,252 29,706 (254) § 583,704
Trust preferred securities .................................. 421 0 0 421
TOtAL...coverereerrenimeeresnciicinere s $ 554,673 29,706 © (254) $ 584,125
December 31, 2011:
Held to maturity:
U.S. government-sponsored mortgage-backed ; . .
SECUITHIES ...vvevrecrsitieraninssessenseaessesasesenensasins $ 653,839 33,490 (269) $ 687,060
Trust preferred SECUrities ........coeeveversennirsiinne 32 - 227 0 259
TOtAl....ovirerrecereiiire s $ 653,871 33,717 (269) $§ 687,319

$15.0 million of U.S. government-sponsored mortgage-backed securities were reclassified from available-for-

sale to held-to-maturity during the three months ended June 30, 2011. Management considers the held-to-

maturity classification of these securities to be appropriate as the Company has the positive intent and ability to

hold these securities to maturity.

The carrying value and estimated fait value of investment securities at December 31, 2012 are shown below.
Incorporated in the maturity schedule are mortgage-backed and trust preferred securities, which are allocated
using the contractual maturity as a basis. Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because
issuers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Carrying Estimated
(Dollars in thousands) Value fair value
Held to maturity: (
Due after 5 years-through 10 years......... rerererearaese et nes $ 3,298 $ 3,359
Due after 10 Years .......c.coccvvervvinnncnisivesinieinnnnesnseeeesecs 551,375 580,766

Total....ccociriiiiiiineiniiene, vt et $ 554,673 $ 584,125
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Realized galns and losses and the proceeds from sales of securities available for sale, held to maturity and trading

are shown in the table below. All sales of securltles were U.S. government-sponsored mortgage-backed
¥

securltles ‘ )
) 2012 2011 2010
(Dollars in thousands) .
Proceeds from Sales .........coovvveecivoenesiiionn, s B0 17,206 8 45,149 $ - 67,609
GIOSS ZAINS -..eoveeereieriieie et se st e et 1,234 451 350
GIOSS 10SSES ..uvevireieierientenreeeeriee et bt e e e et e b esessenn 0 .0 0

In 2012, the Company received proceeds of $17.2 million from the sale of $16.0 million of held-to-maturity debt
securities, resulting in gross realized gains of $1.2 million. In 2011, the Company received proceeds of $3.8
million from the sale of $3.5 million of held-to-maturity debt securities, resulting in gross realized gains of
$261,000. The sale of these securities, for which the Company had already collected a substantial portion of the
outstandmg principal (at least 85%), is in accordance with the Investment topic of the FASB"ASC and will not
affect the historical cost basis used to account for the remaining securltles in the held- to-maturlty portfolio. There
were no sales of held-to-maturity securities during 2010.

Investment securities with carrying values of $221.3 million and $281.0 million at December 31,2012 and 2011,
respectively, were pledged to secure public deposits, securities sold under agreements to repurchase and
transaction clearing accounts.

Provided below is a summary of investment securities, which were in an unrealized loss position at

December 31,2012 and 2011. The Company does not intend to sell these securities until such time as the value
recovers or the securities mature and it is not more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell the
securities prior to recovery of value or the securities mature.

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer . Total

’ . ‘Unrealized C Unrealized .~ Number of ’ " Unrealized
Description of securities - . . . Fairvalue - losses; Fair value Losses ... securities Fair value . Losses
(Dollars in thousands) !

December 31,2012
Mortgage-backed - e S i N
securities ... § 329218 23 % 47 $ 1 21§ 32968°$ 254
December 31, 2011
Mortgage-backed y e .
securities............... $ 17,697 §$ 268 $ 122 $ 1 o 7 $ 17 819 $ 269

Mortgage-Backed Securities. The unrealized losses on the Company s investment in mongage-backed securities
were caused by increases in current market interest rates. All of the mortgage-backed securities are guaranteed by
Freddie Mac, Fannie Mae, or Ginnie Mae, which are U.S. government-sponsored enterprises. Since the decline in
market value is attrlbutable to changes in interest rates and not credit quality, and the Company does not intend to
sell these investments until maturity and it is not more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell
such investments prior to recovery of its amortized cost basis, the Company does not consider these investments
to be other-than-temporarily impaired as of December 31, 2012 and 2011. ,

Trust Preferred Securities. At December 31, 2012, the Company owns two trust preferred securities, PreTSL
XXIII and XXIV. The trust preferred securmes represent investments in a pool of debt obligations issued
primarily. by holding compames for Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation-insured financial institutions. Both of
these securities are classified in the Bank’s held-to-maturity investment portfolio.

The trust preferred securities market is considered to be inactive as only three transactions have occurred over the
past 12 months in the same tranche of securities owned by the Company. The Company used a discounted cash
flow model to determine whether these securities are other-than-temporarily impaired.- The assumptions used in
preparing the discounted cash flow model include the following: estimated discount rates, estimated deferral and
default rates on collateral, and estimated cash flows.

Based on the Company’s review, the Company’s investment in trust preferred securities incurred a ) credit-related
1mpa1rment loss of $2.4 million during the year endmg December 31, 2010.

PreTSL XXIV has a book value of $0. PreTSL XXIII has a book value of $421, 000 The dlfference between the
book value of $421,000 and the remaining amortized cost basis of $1.1 million is reported as other
comprehenswe loss.and i is related to noncredit factors.such as the trust preferred securities market being inactive.
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It is reasonably possible that the fair values of the trust preferred securities could decline in the near term if the
overall economy and the financial condition of some of the issuers continue to deteriorate and the liquidity of
these securities remains low. As a result, there is a risk that the Company’s remaining amortized cost basis of
$1.1 million on its trust preferred securities could be credit-related other-than-temporarily impaired in the near
term. The impairment could be material to the Company’s consolidated statements of income.

The table below provides a cumulative roll forward of credit losses recognized in earnings for debt securities
held and not intended to be sold:

2012 2011
(Dollars in thousands)
Balance at JAnUary 1 ........c.cccccevevienemrricnereennenecmeceensinenensnssssisssnenes $ 5885 $ 5,885
Credit losses on debt securities for which other-than-temporary
impairment was not previously recognized...........c.covevviciiininininnns 0 0
Balance at DECemDbET 31 ......ocvvcveeieiieinieeeiereeesereeessesaneeeeeseesessanne $ 5885 §$§ 5,885

The table below shows the components of comprehensive loss, net of taxes, resulting from other-than-
temporarily impaired securities:

December 31,
2012 2011
(Dollars in thousands)
Noncredit losses on other-than-temporarily impaired securities, net of
BAXES .v.vvevereeeeeesesesasessasesessesesessesesessesastesranesesrasabasestesetetenesensereseneanens $ 445 $§ 679

(5) Federal Home Loan Bank Stock

The Company evaluated its investment in FHLB stock for other-than-temporary impairment as of December 31,
2012, consistent with its accounting policies. Based on the Company’s evaluation of the underlying investment,
including the long-term nature of the investment, the liquidity position of the FHLB of Seattle, the actions being
taken by the FHLB of Seattle to address its regulatory capital situation and the Company’s intent not to sell the
investment for a sufficient period of time to recover the par value, the Company did not consider its FHLB stock
other-than-temporarily impaired. As of December 31, 2012, the FHLB of Seattle has met all of its regulatory
capital requirements. Moody’s Investor Service and Standard and Poor’s Rating Services have given the FHLB
of Seattle credit ratings of Aaa and AA, respectively. Even though the Company did not recognize an other-than-
temporary impairment loss on its investment in FHLB stock in 2012, continued deterioration in the FHLB of
Seattle’s financial position may result in future impairment losses.

(6) Loans Receivable and Allowance for Loan Losses
The components of loans receivable are as follows:

December 31,
) 2012 2011
(Dollars in thousands)
Real estate loans:
First mortgages:
One- to four-family residential ...........ccccevererrerueenene $ 741,334 $ 654,412
Multi-family residential ..........ccceoveeevrvrvenrinrccniennene. . 6,888 6,956
Construction, commercial, and other....................... 13,819 11,140
Home equity loans and lines of credit...........coccvvvrernneee 15,202 17,253
" Total real estate 10ans...............coooeerrreeueeernnne 777,243 689,761
Other loans:
Loans on deposit aCCOUNES.........cererrereerercrermecrererrenerennenes 493 756
Consumer and other 10ans .........c.cccocervireeerrrencrnrsiceeencnenns 3,988 4,732
Total other 10ans.......c..cceevveiecriinreieeeireenninennane 4,481 5,488
Less:
Net unearned fees and discounts ............ccocoevveivniniinnnenn (5,176) (5,613)
Allowance for 10an 10SSes ..o, (1,672) (1,541)
. (6,848) (7,154)
Loans receivable, NEt .........cccoocvvvveeieeiereienciereeeeceeeseesseeseesnnenes $ 774876 $ 688,095
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- The activity'in the allowance for loan losses onloans receivable-is-as follows:-

- For the year ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) ] 2012, 2011, : 2010
Balance, beginning of year ............ SRR SOTRU TN % 1,541 $ 1,488 § 1,681
Provision for10an l0ses .........c.....luiiveriveninnicn. SRR 415 418 345
| 1,956 1906 2,026
ChATGE-OFES......ovoverveeeeveceerressssessessesaesassaeseesas s seesasssesanens (392) T (415)  (655)
Recoveries......coouenveveececcnnennnns PBEPNE A SHR T IE 108 - 50 . 117
.. Net charge-offs ..o...ccccieniienenenn SRR ATUN SR (284) - (365) (538)
Balance, end Of Year ............cocccccummmseerressssisnmmsssereoees SO $ 1,672 °$ 1,541 '$ 1488
The table below presents the activitj; in the allowance for loan lo’sses.by poitfolio segment:
» Constructlon, ‘ H‘ome’
...: Commercial - Equity
and Other Loans and }
Residential _ .. :- Mortgage Lines of . Consumer
(Dollars in thousands) . Mortgage ... Loans . -Credit ... - .and Other Unallocated Totals
2012: ' — '
Balance, beginning of year......... $ 631 § 285 % 258 $ 291 $ 76 $ 1,541
Provision (reversal of B o o o L '
allowance) for loan =~ - S SR e C o :
10SSES v 213 533 - (225) (152) : 46 415
T - 844, . 818 33 . 139 122 195
"Charge-offs ........cooveeivis (333) = - ®8) e @y 0 (392)
‘Recoveries .............. Veieeieds S QT g 5 716 108
Net charge-offs........ (254) 0 2 32) (284)
Balance, end of year......... e $. 590 $ .. 818 $. . 35 8 107 8. 122 $ 1,672
2011: PR o
Balance, beginning of year......... 8 583§ 277 $ 305§ ....208. § 115 1,488
Provision (reversal of o o EREE It : Cos o
allowance) for loan S o e
1OSSES cvvvenveeniienienieieaanes 208 62 (3% 225 B9 . 418
791 339 267 433 - 76 1,906
Charge-offs......ccoevvennnee. _ (188) 54) ) (164) 0 415)
RECOVETIES ... 28 0 0 .22 50
Net charge-offs........ (160) (54) ) (142) (365)
Balance, end of year ................ $ 631 § 285 § . 258 % 291§ 76 1,541
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In 2012, the Company enhanced its methodology for reviewing its loan portfolio when calculating the general
portion of the allowance for loan losses. The modification consisted of additional segmentation of the residential mortgage
loan portfolio by items such as year of origination, loan-to-value ratios, owner or nonowner occupancy status and the purpose
of the loan (purchase, cash-out refinance, no cash-out refinance or construction). As under our prior methodology, the
allowance for loan loss for each segment of the.loan portfolio is determined by calculating the historical loss of each segment
for a two- to three-year look-back period and adding a qualitative adjustment for the following factors:

+  Changes in lending policies and procedures;
»  Changes in economic trends;
»  Changes in types of loans in the loan portfolio;

*  Changes inexperience and ability of personnel in the loan origination and loan servicing
departments;

*  Changes in the numiber and amount of delinquent loans and classified assets;
+  Changes in our internal loan review system;

¢ Changes in the value of underlying collateral for collateral dependent loans;
*  Changes in any concentrations of cfedif and

«  External factors such as competition, legal and regulatory requirements on the level of estimated
credit losses in the existing loan portfolio.

The Company also revised the qualitative factors that were used to determine the allowance for loan losses on
construction, commercial and other mortgage loans, home equity loans and lines of credit and consumer and other loans. As a
result of these modifications, the Company increased the portion of the allowance for loan losses attributable to construction,
commercial and other mortgage loans and decreased the portion of the allowance for loan losses attributable to residential
mortgages, home equity loans and lines of credit and consumer and other loans. The allocation of a portion of the allowance
to one category of loans does not preclude its availability to absorb losses in other categories. The unallocated allowance is
established for probable losses that have been 1ncurred as of the reporting date but are not reflected in the allocated
allowance.

Management considers the allowance for loan losses at December 31, 2012 to be at an appropriate level to
provide for probable losses that can be estimated based on general and specific conditions. While the Company uses the best
information it has available to make evaluations, future adjustments to the allowance may be necessary if conditions differ
substantially from the information used in making the evaluations. To the extent actual outcomes differ from the estimates,
additional provisions for credit losses may be required that would reduce future earnings. In addition, as an integral part of
their examination process, the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency will periodically review the allowance for loan
losses. The Office of the Comptroller of the Currency may require the Company to increase the alowance based on their
analysis of information available at the time of their examination.
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The table below presents the’ balance in the allowance for loan losses and the recorded investment in loans by

portfolio segment and based on impairment method:

Construction Home
Commercial Equity
and Other Loans and
Residential Mortgage Lines of  Consumer
(Dollars in thousands) Mortg_age _ Loans Credit and Other Unallocated Totals
December 31, 2012:
Allowance for loan losses:
Ending allowance balance: . )
Individually evaluated for impairment........ $ 0 S 0 8§ 0 S 0 3 03 0
Collectively evaluated for impairment........ 590 818 35 107 122 1,672
Total ending-allowance balance......... $ 590§ 818 $ 35 8 107 $§ 122 $ 1,672
Loans: :
Ending loan balance: A '
Individually evaluated for impairment........ $ 6,775 % 0 $ 160 § 0 $ 0 $§ 6,935
Collectively evaluated for impairment........ - 736,297 13,784 15,051 4,481 0 769,613
Total ending loan balance ................. $743,072 $1 3,784 $15211 §$4481 § 0 $776,548
December 31, 2011:
Allowance for loan losses:
Ending allowance balance:
Individually evaluated for impairment........ § 0% 0 % 0 $ 03 0 $ 0
Collectively evaluated for impairment........ 631 285 258 291 76 1,541
Total ending allowance balance......... $ 631 $ 285 $§ 258 $ 291 § 76§ 1,541
Loans:
Ending loan balance:
Individually evaluated for impairment........ $ 4926 $§ 184 $ 159 § 38 0 $ 5272
Collectively evaluated for impairment........ 650,901 10,872 17,105 5,486 0 684,364
Total ending loan balance ................. $655,827 $11,056 $17,264 $ 5489 § 0 $689,636

The table below presents the balance of impaired loans and the related amount of allocated loan loss allowances:

2011

(Dollars iﬁ thouéands) . 2012
Loans with no allocated allowance for loan losses................ eressanasse $ 6,935
Loans with allocated allowance for loan 10SS€S ..........ccccoeevveeereennenn. 0

$

5,272

0

$ 6935 § 5272

Total impaired 10ans...........ccecereerienienieenee e e cae e

Amount of allocated loan loss allowance ... iiivivcionnincieene. $ 0
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The table below presents the balance of impaired loans individually evaluated for impairment by class of loans:

Unpaid
Recorded Principal
(Dollars in thousands) Investment Balance
December 31, 2012:
With no related allowance recorded: -
One- to four-family residential mortgages ............ccoevrvinune $ 6,775 § 7,175
Home equity loans and lines of credit ... 160 165
TOtAL ettt et s $ 6,935 $§ 7,340
December 31, 2011:
With no related allowance recorded:
One- to four-family residential mortgages .........ccccccovrurnne $ 4926 $ 5,206
Construction, commercial and other mortgages.................. 184 241
Home equity loans and lines of credit........cccoevvviiivivnnnns 159 165
Consumer and Other ..........c.cooiviiiiiiieeieeececer e e 3 3
TOtAl..ceeieeeeeeirec ettt ettt st st e ne $ 5272 § 5,615
December 31, 2010:
With no related allowance recorded:
One- to four-family residential mortgages ............ccccevennen. $ 3,401 § 3,413
Construction, commercial and other mortgages.................. 2 2
Consumer and Other ...........cooiieiieiiiirircecee e e e 5. 5
TOALeceeieeeeeie ettt ere e e e ae s e e eraseneens $ 3408 $ 3,420

The table below presents the average recorded investment and interest income recognized on impaired loans by
class of loans:

Average
Recorded Interest Income
(Dollars in thousands) Investment Recognized
2012:
With no related allowance recorded:
One- to four-family residential mortgages ................ $ 6,924 § 210
Home equity loans and lines of credit............co.eune. 159 6
TOtaL ..o $ 7,083 $ 216
2011:
With no related allowance recorded:
One- to four-family residential mortgages ................ $ 5,009 $ 150
Construction, commercial and other mortgages........ 211 0
Home equity loans and lines of credit...........ccccece. 163 0
Consumer and Other ........c.ccoveveevverinninicncrnninnenne 4 1
TOAL caeeee e $ 5387 §$ 151
2010:
With no related allowance recorded:
One- to four-family residential mortgages ................ $ 3471 § 131
Construction, commercial and other mortgages........ 22 0
Consumer and Other ...........coceveverrcnrceneerenecrennnens 5 0
TOtAL ..o e eeae s $ 3,498 $ 131
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There were no loans ihdividually evaluated for impairment with a related allowance for loan loss as of
December 31, 2012, 2011 or 2010. Loans individually evaluated for impairment do not have an allocated
allowance for loan losses because they are written down to fair value.

The table below presents the aging of loans and accrual status by class of loans:

Loans
More Than
90 Days
30-59 60-89 90 Days or Past Due
Days Past Days Past Greater Total Past Leans Not Total Nonaccrual  and Still
(Dollars in thousénds) ’ Due Due PastDue  Due Past Due Loans Loans  Accruing
December 31, 2012: '
One- to four-family residential B o ‘
MOIZAZES :.envveerercerrarercrnrans $2298 $ 152 $ 2,044 $4,494 $731,730 $736,224 $4,246 § 0
Multi-family residential . ;
mortgages .....c...... et 0 0 0 0 6,848 6,848 -0 0
Construction, commercial and , . : S
. other mortgages ...........cec.ou: 0 0 0 0 13,784 13,784 0 0
Home equity loans and lines. of o R g
~eredit...eeeeneniee rieerasieesneni 44 0 0 . 44 15,167 : 15;211 160 0
Loans on deposit accounts........ 0. 0 0 0 - 493 . .. 493 0 0
Consumer and other .......... eeees 78 2 .0 -80 - 3,908 - 3,988 0 0
Total.......crveeeennne. S $2,420 $ 154 $2,044 $4,618 $771,930 $776,548 $4,406 $ 0
December 31, 2011:
‘One- to four-famlly res1dent1al ‘ . ’ ,
MOTEZAZES vovevevrcerererereenneens s 499 $ 0 $2,148 $2,647 $646,268 $648,915 $2,582 § 0
Multi-family residential o .
MOTLZAZES ..vovvrvvecrsererarineons 0 0 0 0 6912 6,912 0 0
Construction, commercial and ' - o ' . =
" other MOrtgages .......coveveveew. 0 "0 184 184~ 10,872 11,056 184 0
'Home equity loans and lines of , ‘ ’ o B
U eredite.eniereiee e 168 0 0 168 17,096 17,264 159 0
Loans on deposit accounts........ : 0 0 0 -0 - 756° 756 0 0
Consumer and other ................. . 11 2 3 16" 4717 4733 -3 0
Total....ccoierieeriecieennie $ 678 $ 2 $2,335 $3,015 $686,621 $689,636 ‘$2,928 § 0

The Company primarily uses the aging of loans and accrual status to monitor the credit quality of its loan
portfolio. When a mortgage loan becomes seriously delinquent (90 days or more contractually past due), it
dlsplays weaknesses that may result in a loss. As a loan-becomes more delinquent, the likelihood of the borrower
repaying the loan decreases and the loan becomes more collateral-dependent. A mortgage loan becomes
collateral-dependent when the proceeds for repayment can be expected to come only from the sale or operation
of the collateral and not from borrower repayments. Generally, appraisals are obtained after a loan becomes
collateral-dependent or is five months delinquent. The ¢arrying value of collateral-dependent loans is adjusted to
the fair value of the collateral less selling costs. Any commercial real estate, commercial, construction or equity
loans which have a loan balance in excess of a specified amount is also periodically reviewed to determine
whether the loan exhibits any weaknesses and are performing in accordance with its contractual terms.

The Company had 19 nonaccrual loans with a book value of $4.4 million at December 31, 2012 and 12
nonaccrual loans with a book value of $2.9 million as of December 31, 2011. The Company collected or
recognized interest income on nonaccrual loans of $105,000, $32,000, and $0 during 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. The Company would have recognized additional interest income of $115,000, $95,000 and $36,000
during 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, had the loans been accruing interest. The Company did not have any
loans more than 90 days past due and still accruing interest as of December 31, 2012 or 2011.
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The table below presents information about the Company’s new troubled debt restructurings by class of loans:

2012 2011
Pre- Post- Pre- Post-
Modification Modification Modification Modification
Number of Recorded Recorded Number of Recorded Recorded
(Dollars in thousands) Loans Investment Investment Loans Investment Investment
December 31:
One- to four-family residential .... 12 § 3,694 §$ 3,694 2 $ 357§ 337
Total .oeeeeeveeieerrcrinenneeans 12 $ 3,694 $ 3,694 2 3 357 § 337

There were no new troubled debt restructurings within the past 12 months that subsequently defaulted.

The Company had 20 troubled debt restructurings totaling $5.2 million as of December 31, 2012 that were
considered to be impaired. This total included 19 one- to four-family residential mortgage loans totaling $5.1
million and one home equity loan for $160,000. Eight of the loans, totaling $2.5 million, are performing in
accordance with their restructured terms and accruing interest at December 31, 2012. 11 of the loans, totaling
$2.4 million, are performing in accordance with their restructured terms but not accruing interest at

December 31, 2012. One of the loans, for $329,000, is 150 days or more delinquent and not accruing interest as
of December 31, 2012. There were 11 troubled debt restructured totaling $2.9 million as of December 31, 2011
that were considered to be impaired. There were ten one- to four-family residential mortgage loans totaling $2.8
million and one home equity loan for $159,000. Eight of the loans, totaling $2.3 million, were performing in
accordance with their restructured terms and accruing interest at December 31, 2011. Two of the loans, totaling
$344,000, were performing in accordance with their restructured terms but not accruing interest at December 31,
2011. One of the loans, for $248,000, was 59 days delinquent and not accruing interest at December 31, 2011.
The increase in troubled debt restructurings primarily occurred when, in consultation with the Office of the
Comptroller of the Currency, Territorial Savings Bank’s primary regulator, we classified 12 loans that had been
modified to provide interest-only payments, totaling $3.7 million, as troubled debt restructurings during the
quarter ended September 30, 2012. The increase in troubled debt restructuring has not had an effect on the
adequacy of the Bank’s loan loss allowance. Management considers the allowance for loan losses at

December 31, 2012 to be at an appropriate level to provide for probable losses that can be estimated.
Restructurings include deferrals of interest and/or principal payments and temporary or permanent reductions in
interest rates due to the financial difficulties of the borrowers. We have no commitments to lend any additional
funds to these borrowers.

Nearly all of our real estate loans are collateralized by real estate located in the State of Hawaii. Loan-to-value
ratios on these real estate loans generally do not exceed 80% at the time of origination.

During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company sold $107.9 million and $61.2 million,
respectively, of mortgage loans held for sale and recognized gains of $2.4 million and $711,000, respectively.
The Company had six loans held for sale totaling $2.2 million at December 31, 2012 and 12 loans held for sale
totaling $3.2 million at December 31, 2011.

The Company serviced loans for others of $84.8 million, $115.3 million, and $131.6 million at December 31,
2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively. Of these amounts, $5.1 million, $6.2 million, and $8.1 million relate to
securitizations for which the Company continues to hold the related mortgage-backed securities at December 31,
2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively. The amount of contractually specified servicing fees earned was $275,000,
$348,000, and $396,000 for 2012, 2011, and.2010, respectively. The fees are reported in service fees on loan and
deposit accounts in the consolidated statements of income.

In the normal course of business, the Company has made loans to certain directors and executive officers under
terms which management believes are consistent with the Company’s general lending policies. Loans to directors
and executive officers amounted to $1.7 million at December 31, 2012 and $1.6 million at December 31, 2011.
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Accrued Interest Receivable ‘
The eompbnefnts of accrued interest receivable are as follows:

December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2012 - 2011
INVEStMENt SECUTTEIES .veeveruverrerrirenereeiaereovesinesaesssesuessainnensaineisnastonnes w080 1,822 $ 2,351
.Loans receivable .......... eevireennes iuseisrdenieesthanseissasdrnassassseeesens teenaess 2,524 - 2,416
Interest-bearing deposits ' ; : 21. © 13
TOtAl oo et nae S % 4367 $ 4,780

Mortgage Servicing Assets

‘Mortgage servicing assets are created when the' Company sells mortgage loans and retains the rights to service
the loans. Mortgage servicing assets are accounted for'in accordance with the Transfers and Servicing topic of
the FASB ASC and are initially valued at fair value and subsequently at the lower of cost or fair value. We
amortize mortgage servicing assets in proportion to and over the period of estimated net servicing income. All
servicing assets are grouped into categories based on the-interest rate and original term of the loan sold.
Mortgage servicing assets related to loan sales are recorded as a gain on sale of loans and totaled $28,000 and
$9,000 for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The table below presents the changes in our mortgage servicing .assets for the years ended December 31, 2012

and 2011: .
(Dollars in thousands) 2012 _ 2011
Balance at beginning of YEar .........cocccevevecreerirrnnrnnniiinnins $ 970 $ 1,137
AdditionS.........oeveeiiiiiieeiiie e e erreteesena—rterarrarornraratan - 28 9
IMPAITMENTS.....corerrreeireeereeeeerrerereerettrrrsesscsinnes e, . ~(220) (34)
N AMOTHZALION «...veveevceeeieer vt eeeaeneene et . (132) . (142).
Balance at end of year................. etereeeien et et esae e e sae e et saesaeneene 8 646§ 970

The table below presents the gross carrying values, accumulated amortization, and net carrying values of our
mortgage servicing assets at December 31, 2012 and 2011:

(Dollars in thousands) _ 2012 _ 201
Gross CarTying VAlUE ...co.ceveveereeeeetennreninnet et sareneeaebe s $ 1317 § 1,510

~ Accumulated amortization........c.cocvevieviriieenneininniniiinini s (671) (540)
Net carrying valte............oviviveveerevererresseseeeanes reeeeniiresiniaeseseessesnaes $ 646 $ 970

The estimated amortization expense for our mortgage sérvicing assets for the next five years and all years
thereafter are as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

2003 e et ee e re et e s et e et e et e e eae e ae e bnasaeases e et e e r e e e e aaearesbeataanen $ 131
2004 oot e e e et e e eas et e et e e vt e s e e aesne e raestaeresaresnaenen 89
2005 ettt et et esre et e e r e e eae et s e eaas e s reenareneenteesdearestaenen 75
20T6 ettt ettt e stb e s e bt e teerbre s reene s bearte et e s teasaesraeenrenreesrearnns 62
20707 ettt et e b ete e b s it e e beea e b e s neeae e st aaat et ensteenteent e raeeneennnen 52
TREIEATIET ....eec it e erbee e e er e e s s rea e e sbrne e e s s bee e e e snaeeesmnneeeeas 237

TOAL ..ttt ebe e s s ebete e et e e s ebeas s sasabenaneetese et eteinarenens $ 646
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The Company uses a discounted cash flow model to determine the fair value of retained mortgage servicing
assets. The discounted cash flow model is also used to assess impairment of servicing assets. Impairments are
recorded as adjustments to amortization expense and included in service fees on loan and deposit accounts in the
statements of income. Critical assumptions used in the discounted cash flow model include mortgage prepayment
speeds, discount rates, cost of servicing and ancillary income.

Prepayment speed may be affected by economic factors such as home price appreciation, market interest rates,
the availability of other loan products to our borrowers and customer payment patterns. Prepayment speeds
include the impact of all borrower prepayments, including full payoffs, additional principal payments and the
impact of loans paid off due to foreclosure liquidations. As market interest rates decline, prepayment speeds will
generally increase as customers refinance existing mortgage loans under more favorable interest rate terms and
anticipated cash flows will generally decline resulting in a potential reduction, or impairment, to the fair value of
the mortgage servicing assets. Alternatively, an increase in market interest rates may cause a decrease in
prepayment speeds and therefore an increase in the fair value of mortgage servicing assets.

The table below presents the fair values and key assumptions used in determining the fair values of our mortgage
servicing assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011:

(Dollars in thousands) 2012 2011
Fair value, beginning of year et $ 977 § 1,366
Fair value, end of year 651 977
Weighted average discount rate...............cccocvmniiennnn. 10.00% 10.00%
Weighted average prepayment speed assumption (PSA

prepayment SPEEd) .........co.eeeererererieesientien it 207.4 PSA 193.6 PSA

The PSA prepayment model assumes increasing prepayment rates for the first 30 months of a loan’s term and
constant prepayment rates thereafter.

(9) Interest Rate Lock and Forward Loan Sale Commitments

The Company may enter into interest rate lock commitments with borrowers on loans intended to be sold. To
manage interest rate risk on the lock commitments, the Company may also enter into forward loan sale
commitments. The interest rate lock commitments and forward loan sale commitments are treated as derivatives
and are recorded at their fair values in prepaid expenses and other assets or in accounts payable and accrued
expenses. Changes in fair value are recorded in current earnings. At December 31, 2012, interest rate locks and
forward loan sale commitments on loans held for sale amounted to $11.6 million and $13.8 million, respectively.

The table below presents the location of assets and liabilities related to derivatives:

Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives
Fair Value at  Fair Valueat Fair Valueat Fair Value at
Location on December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) Balance Sheet 2012 2011 2012 2011
Interest rate contracts................ Prepaid expenses and other assets $ 124 § 156 § 0 S 0
Interest rate contracts................. Accounts payable and accrued expenses 0 0 111 139
Total derivatives ....................... $ 124 § 156 § 111 § 139

The table below presents the location of gains and losses related to derivatives:

Location of
Loss on
(Dollars in thousands) Statement of Income 2012 2011
Interest rate CONIactS.......couevveieerereereenens Gain on sale of loans $ ) § (125
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(10) Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are as follows:

December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) N v 2012 ' 2011
LaN ... rirreieieiriiriieeeteisansseseesessssssssessessssssssesesesseressessanasans $ 585 $ 585
Buildings and improvements ............coeeevereeisineeinianenisnnienienens 596 596
Leasehold improvements ..........c..cocoveuiveiininnisioininiesescninnnnnes - 10,892 10,728
" Furniture, fixtures and equipment........... s 4,784 " 5,079
AUtOMODILES.....o.vvvriiiie e, et nen s 113 113
S 16970 . 17,101
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization ...................... (12,183) (11,867)
‘ L , S 4,787 5,234
CONSIUCHION 1N PTOBTESS ...evervrereeeerereerenrererrenererrraerereosnesenrencrees 269 . 216
S D § 505 § 5450

Depreciation expense was $1.1 million, $1 1 million and $1.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010, respectively.

(11) © Deposits

" Deposit accounts by type are summarized with their respective weighted-average interest rates as follows:

December 31,
2012 T 2011

(Dollars in thousands) i Amount Rate Ameount Rate
Noninterest bearing.........cc.cceecevveeceennene. ............... . $ 31,426 0.00% $ — 28,281 0.00%
Savings accounts...........covueerieuincenns .. , 875,365 . 0.42 - 802,155 -0.58
Certificates of depos1t : ‘ e 205,381  0.66 223,751 0.84
Money market..,........ccooevvvenes e , 663 025 .434 . 025
Checking and Super NOW ......... s SO R 125,012 - - 0.03 111,495 -0.03

TOtAL ..ottt e $ 1 ,237,847 . 041% $ 1,166,116 ‘ 0.57%

The maturity of certificate of deposit accounts at December 31, 2012 is as follows (dollars in thousands):

Maturing in: Lo "
p 1) & TSRO $ 146,674
2014................. vesererersanrransrsrseneraserarrnrnniio 22,287
2015 et er e aenes 26,987
2006 eseseere e enenenenens 4413
2017 e 5,020
TOtal. oot $ 205,381

Certificates of deposit with baiances greater than or equal to $100,000 totaled $148.5 million and $153.3 million
at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Accounts in the Bank are insured by the FDIC, generally uptoa
maximum of $250 000.
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Interest expense by type of deposit is as follows:

(Dollars in thousands) 2012 2011 2010

SAVINES.....ooerimmriieriserisererse s $ 4294 § 4,708 $ 7,722
Certificates of deposit and money market...........c.cccccvvieiiiiinnenn, 1,606 2,014 2,626
Checking and Super NOW .......cccocevvininrennininincinicinenennnens 36 48 47
TOtAL vt $ 5936 § 6,770 § 10,395

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, overdrawn deposit accounts totaled $93,000 and $85,000, respectively, and
have been reclassified as loans in the consolidated balance sheets.

(12) Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank

The FHLB advances are secured by a blanket pledge on the Bank’s assets. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the
Company had available additional unused FHLB advances of approximately $370.6 million and $361.0 million,
respectively.

Advances outstanding consisted of the following:

December 31,

2012 2011 2010

Weighted Weighted Weighted

average average average
(Dollars in thousands) Amount rate Amount rate Amount rate
Due within one year...........coccovvceeeecnnee $ 10,000 212% § - 0 0.00% $ 0 0.00%
Due over | year to 2 years ........ccccecveuenene 0 0.00 10,000 2.12 0 0.00
Due over 2 years to 3 years..........ccoeuevnene. 10,000 2.06 0 0.00 10,000 2.12
Due over 3 years to 4 years.......c...c.cccueu.ee. 0 0.00 10,000 2.06 0 0.00
Total...oieeeee § 20,000 2.09% $ 20,000 2.09% § 10,000 2.12%

The Company, as a member of the FHLB system, is required to obtain and hold shares of capital stock of the
FHLB in an amount equal to the greater of 0.50% of mortgage loans and mortgage-backed securities or $500. At
December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company met such requirement. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the
Company owned $12.1 million and $12.3 million, respectively, of capital stock of the FHLB.

(13) Securities Sold under Agreements to Repurchase

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are treated as financings and the obligations to repurchase the
identical securities sold are reflected as a liability with the dollar amount of securities underlying the agreements
remaining in the asset accounts. Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are summarized as follows:

December 31,
2012 2011
Weighted Weighted
Repurchase average Repurchase average
(Dollars in thousands) liability rate liability rate
Maturing:
1 YEar OF 1€SS....ueevereverireeeeenieiereercreenceeieeennes $ 23,000 4.40% $ 28,300 4.75%
Over 1 year t0 2 Years .......c.coceeeveeereerercnennens 0 0.00 33,000 391
Over 2 years to 3 Years......cccoceeeerenirnnnenenn, 47,000 2.11 0 0.00
Over 3 years t0 4 years..........ccccvcvevniinniinnns 0 0.00 47,000 2.11
Total...o $ 70,000 2.86% $ 108,300 3.35%
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During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company prepaid $25.0 million of securities sold under
agreements to repurchase and incurred $321,000 of prepayment penalties, which is reported as loss on
extinguishment of debt in the consolidated statements of income.

Below is a summary comparing the carrying value and fair value of securities pledged to secure repurchase
agreements, the repurchase liability, and the amount at risk at Décember 31, 2012. The amount at risk is the
greater of the carrying value or fair value over the repurchase liability. All the agreements to repurchase are with
JP Morgan Securities and the securities pledged are issued and guaranteed by U.S. government-sponsored

enterprises.
. Lo . Weighted
Carrying Fair ‘ ’ average
value of value of Repurchase - - Amount months to
(Dollars in thousands) securities securities liability  , -atrisk maturity
Maturing: : o
OVET 90 AAYS ....voovvviueeensieeseseesiiio s ssesssesnsssnnns $ 76,120 80,683 70,000 10,683 20

(14) Income Taxes =~ -

Allocation of federal and state income taxes between current and deferred provisions is as follows:

4 v 0 . e e

2012 2011 2010

(Dollars in thousands)
Current _ A E
Federal............. oot —e et e b eben b ebessn et b eretsebersebenas $ 7221 $ ., 8530-% . 7,253
17 11 S S SN R TUUR TSRO PTON rrrereeeenrereeannans 1,668 1,913+ 28
8,880 " © 7 10,443 7,281
Deferred » S ‘ s
T (500) - > (1,239) (1,391)
Statenrrrrnrrrrrn. oo B e ©2) - (506) (378)
: ’ : : (592) (1,745 (1,769)
B O $ 8297 S§ 8698 $ 5512

The federal statutory corporate tax rate for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was 35%. A
reconciliation of the tax provision based on the statutory corporate rate on pretax income and the provision for
taxes as shown i in the accompanying consolidated statements of income is as follows

2012 | ) 2011 - 2010

(Dollars in thousands)
Income tax expense at statutory rate $ 8097 § 7,520 $§ 5,624
Income tax effect of:
Other tax-eXempt INCOME .......eceererrereercervereerennenee (330) (339) 399)
Share based compensation.........oceeveereerreeceesiennen (307)- .~ (103) 0
- State income taxes, net of federal income tax
.~ benefits.............. SOOI OO T RO SRR w0 1,024 ¢ 915, 864
Refund of state franchise taxes (net of taxes).....;. o0 : s 0 © (608)
OthEr ...ii i e diiivieiein (187 705 - 31
Total income tax expense ........... e iiBeien i e s nan -§ 08297 § 8698 § 5512
Effectlve income tax rate ............ et brereenn s ....... 0 3586%  40. 48% o 33.33%

The company recorded a-$1.0 mllhon tax reﬁmd from the State of Hawaii in-2010 as settlement for litigation
related to the State’s denial of a dividend received ‘deduction: After providing taxes on the refund the Company
recognized a net reduction in income tax expense of $608,000.
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The components of income taxes payable (receivable) are as follows:

December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 7 2012 2011
Current taxes payable (receivable):

Federal.................. bpssrerssrsasersastasstesiat st et e asengesanensasenas $ (642) $ 1,235

StALE.c.veerereereerereeserterrersee e s see et s reebens s bbb e srn b ee 1,794 1,879

1,152 3,114

Deferred taxes payable (receivable)

Federal......ovveieeriirirenierenerecneeisinaees hreeeere et (2,782) (2,009)

SEALC...cuveeriererreverreererestereeseae e esessaesesaestene s re e e e s s basae s ersens (798) (639)

(3,580) (2,648)

TOtALocviveeeeeeeee et eresre st ere e neresesae i $ (2,428) $ 466

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2012 and 2011 are presented below:

(Dollars in thousands) 2012 2011
Deferred tax assets:
Premises and eqUIPMENL..........c.c.coccumiiirinvinininenisieresninsensenes $ 1,214 $ 1,114
Hawaii franchiSe taX........c.coecvveeriemnierinriesereneeresreeceecenenes 714 761
Unfunded pension 1iability ........cccooceevvviiiiininniiis 1,676 2,618
Allowance for 10an 10SSE€S .......cccovverrerrereciiiinciiniec i, 665 613
Impaired asset WIte-dOWN ........c.coovvveeriinviiniinieiineeees 2,626 2,780
Employee benefit plans.........c.cccovvviineiirinnininincecns 958 0
Equity incentive plan..........c.ccocoviiiiiiniiinnnne 1,004 717
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale securities .........c..c.cco..... 64 84
8,921 8,687
Deferred tax liabilities:
Net deferred 10an fEeS ......cvviveevvveiireiiieriereccie e e 2,339 2,637
FHLB stock dividends...........ccceevverrierrinriirnenerernerieesceessesesesonses 2,566 2,639
Prepaid EXPense.......cccovvevreerciiiiiiniiniiee ittt 129 110
Premiums on 10ans sold............cccccovvniirivnniniiinnincics 257 386
Deferred compensation ...........ccceeeerneiineninicninnenensesiessines 50 267
5,341 6,039
Net deferred tax aSSELS ...covviinverviiririecirieeeeererreeareesseeeens $ 3,580 $ 2,648

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that
some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is
dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences
become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future
taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based upon the level of historical taxable
income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred tax assets are deductible,
management believes it is more likely than not the Company will realize the benefits of these deductible
differences. The amount of the deferred tax assets considered realizable, however, could be reduced in the near
term if estimates of future taxable income are reduced. There was no valuation allowance for deferred tax assets
as of December 31, 2012 and 2011.
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(15) Employee Benefit Plans

The Company has a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan (Pension Plan) that covers substantially all
employees with at least one year of service. The benefits are based on years of service and the employees’
compensation during the service period. The Company’s policy is to accrue the actuarially determined pension
costs and to fund pension costs within regulatory guidelines. The Company reviews its assumptlons on an annual

‘basis and makes modifications to the assumptions based on current rates and trends when it is appropriate to do

so. The effect of modifications to those assumptions is recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income
(AOCI) beginning in 2006 and amortized to net periodic benefit cost over future periods using the corridor
method. The Company believes that the assumptions utilized in recording its obligations under the plan are
reasonable based on its experience and market conditions.

On November 4, 2008, the Board of Directors approved changes to the Company’s defined benefit pension plan.
Effective December 31, 2008, there will be no further accrual of benefits for any participants, and benefits will
not increase with any additional years of service. Employees already enrolled in the Pension Plan as of
December 31, 2008 will be 100% vested if they have at least five years of service. For employees with less than
five years of service, vesting would occur at the employee’s five-year anniversary date.

In additioﬂ, the Company sponsors a Supplemental Employee Retirement Plan (SERP), a noncontributory
supplemental retirement benefit plan, which covers certain current and former employees of the Company for
amounts in addltlon to those provided under the Pension Plan.

The followmg table sets forth the status of the Pension Plan and SERP at the dates indicated:

Pension Plan ) SERP
December 31,
, : 2012 2011 2012 2011
(Dollars in thousands) -
Accumulated benefit obligation at end of year.................. $ 14644 $ 12948 § - 8408 § 8169
Change in projected benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year .................... $ 12948 $ 11,111 § 8169 § 7573
SEIVICE COSE Lu.vvinurarianensiessresesesenaseeieeseasesssassnsensoses 117 - 98 158 399
INEETESt COSL cuvvuveveerereereririresieie st e s este st : . 625 : 633 : 98 214
Actuarial 10SS....c.coucviiviineniiriiniere et 1,273 1,361 0 0
Benefits paid........cccceeuemeeeereerenserenceniensisessesie s (319) . (255) R CY)) 17
CUrtailMents .......ocvvervierseseeisssssrssseesseebessessesnscnnons 0 .0 -0 0
Benefit obligatioh atend of D SR ‘ ’ 14,644 12,948 8,408 ‘ 8,169
~Change in plan assets: ‘ ,
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year ........., 11,318 10,346 0 0
Actual return on plan assets ........cceeeireierenniininennee 660 (373) ... 0 0
Employer contributions ...........cecccereimneeerisisinnnienes o 0 1,600 17 17
Benefits paid......cccivcovniiinnie s rerrenee (319) (255) 17 )
F,air. value of plan assets at end of year.......cc.ceceenee 11,659 11,318 0 0
Funded status at end ofyear e eereseserameesb et sstasmassseeRSE RS $ (2,985 $ (1,630) $ (8,408 $ (8,169)
Amounts recogmzed in the consolidated balance sheets:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses - :
Hability ....coeveveerree et $ (2985 $ (1,630) $ (8,408) § (8,169)
Amounts recoghizéd in accumulated other comprehensive
loss: , :
Net actuarial 10SS ....coeeevreecveencerrinenennerenenenns $ 6,295 $ 4,954 § 0 3 0
Prior SErvice COSt ...c.cvivuiivemvuinanrnernenens rereeanes 0 0 0 _ 0
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, :
DEFOTE tAX ...ucvevereeerrereeeenereeeerenererinenns $ 6295 $ 4954 § 0 $ 0
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(a)

The following table sets forth the changes recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss for the years
indicated:

Pension Plan

Year ended December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) « 2012 2011
Accumulated other comprehensive loss at beginning of year, before :

X ©veereereeereee st et e et er et e s b et es b r et na s neb et sanin s $ 4954 $§ 2,488
Actuarial net loss arising during the period...........c.covvcereincccnnennnee 1,458 2,509
Amortizations (recognized in net periodic benefit cost):

ACtUATIAl 10SS....cecuiriieiriiiieereiecce e e (117) 43)
PriOT SEIVICE COSE..c.ueiurrrireinienrinrtecrenieterreereeesesessestesressessessens 0 0
Total recognized in other comprehensive loss................. 1,341 2,466
Accumulated other comprehensive loss at end of year, before tax..... '$ 6,295 $ 4,954

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, the following weighted average assumptions were used to
determine benefit obligations at the end of the year:

Pension Plan SERP
Year ended December 31,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Assumptions used to determine the year-end benefit obligations:
DiSCOUNE TALE ......ovveeervirirrererecreceereccere e e 4.20% 4.90% 5.02% 5.02%
Rate of compensation inCrease..........ocovveviviiiviiesininennens N/A N/A 5.00% 5.00%

The Company does not expect any plan assets to be returned to the Company during calendar year 2013.
The dates used to determine retirement measurements for the Pension Plan were December 31, 2012 and 2011.

The Company’s investnient strategy for the defined benefit retirement plan is to maintain a consistent rate of
return with primary emphasis on capital appreciation and secondary emphasis on income to enhance the
purchasing power of the plan’s assets over the long-term and to preserve capital. The investment policy
establishes a target allocation for each asset class that is reviewed periodically and rebalanced when considered
appropriate. Normal target allocations at December 31, 2012 were 50% domestic equity securities, 15%
international equity securities and 35% bonds. Equity securities primarily include investment in exchange traded
funds and large-cap, mid-cap and small-cap mutual funds. Bonds include U.S. Treasuries, mortgage-backed
securities and corporate bonds of companies in diversified industries. Other types of investments include money
market funds and savings accounts opened with the Company.

As of December 31, 2012, the Pension Plan’s assets measured at fair value were classified as follows:

Fair value of measurements at report date using:

Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
December 31, identical assets inputs inputs
2012 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

.................................................... RO 55 $ 55§ 0$ 0
Money market funds.......c.ccooevenvcinineninenne. 706 706 0 0
......................................... i 3,120 3,120 0 0
Mutual funds (2) ....oooeeerieeiereeeeeeeeeeee 7,778 7,778 0 0
............................................................... $ 11,659 § 11,659 § 0 S 0

This category includes mutual funds that invest in equities and bonds. The mutual fund managers have the ability to
change the amounts invested in equities and bonds depending on their investment outlook.
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Estimated future benefit payments reflecting expected future service at December 31, 2012 are as follows:

Pension )
Plan - SERP

(Dollars iﬁ thousandsi . . - : -
1010} 1K TR USSP IO P P PP PPRT PSRRI $ 601 " $ 17
2014 et e sesenepseet e o gsnisebanes . ... 6l4 343
2015 et dreene - = < 639 6,366
2016 e eeeeebeereereateer e e ey egeeser et oo na st aernanaen S 660 17 -
1101 iy RO UP PRI PRPTOPY rrerrerrastesivessessebessesaneste 661 17
D018 = 2022 .eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeineeesreeeseeeeetes s s st bs e 4,170 3,489
TOtAl oo e 87,345 $ 10,249

For the fiscal years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010; the following W¢ighted average assumptions

-+ were-used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the fiscal years shown:

Pension Plan - s .- SERP

Year endeéd December 31,

_ 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
(Dollars in thousands) ‘ — - :
Assumptions used to determine the net periodic benefit cost:
Discount rate .........c.ocoe.... e eeetreeebeee e st st ere b nes 490% 580% 620% 5.05% 5.02% 5.01%
Expected return on plan assets ........cocovriminsiiiineienss 7.75 7.75 8.00 0 0 0
Rate of compensation iNCIease .........ouweverresersnmscines N/A N/A N/A 5.00 5.00 5.00

The components of net periodic benefit cost were as follows:

Pension Plan SERP

Year ended Décember 31,

, 2012 .. 2011 . 2010 2012 2011 2010
(Dollars in thousands) )
Net periodic benefit cost for the year: S . L :
SEIVICE COSL .eveirirrnnrnererneinsernrneseaens srereesaeseseiesrateeaieraaees $ 117 $ 98 $ 101 -§ 158 § 399 § 627
TIEETESt COSL ceinvreeiereeemrerererereeseremraesensenarsnessasesasessrunsaes 625 633 609 98 214 354
Expected return on plan assets ......ocovvereeerinninnscseecscns (845) (776) (771 0 0 0
Amortization of prior SErvice CoSt.......coeveeivisirninnens - .0 0 0o - .0 0 0
Recognized actuarial 108s......c.oeeveueniueiinininniiissnees 117 .43 .24 . 0 0 0
Recognized curtailment 108S.......coc.cvvvimmnmiiieiininnccnees 0 0 0 0 0 0
Net periodic benefit COSt......covvrmmrrurrriniririirerininns $ 148 (8% (B7)S$ 25 § 613 § 981

The estimated prior service cost and net actuarial loss that will be amortized from AOCI into net periodic pension
benefit cost in 2013 are $0 and $155,000, respectively. o

The expected return on plan assets is based on the weighted-average long-term rates of return for the types of
assets held in the:plan. The expected return on plan assets is adjusted when there is a change in the expected
long-term rate of return or in the composition of assets held in the plan:‘The discount rate is based on the return
of high-quality fixed-income investments that can be used to fund the benefit payments under the Company’s
defined berefit plan. » cooT e L ;

Based on'actuarial calculations, the Company is not expected to make a contribution to the defined benefit
pension plan in 2013. The Company expects to make a $17,000 contribution to the SERP in 2013 to cover actual
“benefit payments. o , : ‘ '

; The Company also has a 401(k) deﬁned cdntribﬁtion';.\)lan and }')roﬁt sharing plan co‘ver'ing all employees after
_one year of service. The 401(k) plan provides for employer matching contributions, as determined by the
- Company, based on a percentage of employees’ contributions subject to a maximum amount defined in the plan

agreement. The Company’s 401(k) matching contributions, based on 5% of employees’ contributions for 2012,
5% for 2011, and 7% for 2010, amounted to $50,000, $49,000, and $69,000, respectively. The Company
contributes to the profit sharing plan an amount determined by the Board of Directors. No contributions were
made to the profit sharing plan for years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010.
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(16) Employee Stock Ownership Plan

Effective January 1, 2009, Territorial Savings Bank adopted an Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) for
eligible employees. The ESOP borrowed $9.8 million from the Company and used those funds to acquire
978,650 shares, or 8%, of the total number of shares issued by the Company in its initial public offering. The
shares were acquired at a price of $10.00 per share.

The loan is secured by the shares purchased with the loan proceeds and will be repaid by the ESOP over the 20-
year term of the loan with funds from Territorial Savings Bank’s contributions to the ESOP and dividends
payable on the shares. The interest on the ESOP loan is an adjustable rate equal to the prime rate, as published in
The Wall Street Journal. The interest rate adjusts annually and will be the prime rate on the first business day of
the calendar year.

Shares purchased by the ESOP are held by a trustee in an unallocated suspense account, and shares are released
annually from the suspense account on a pro-rata basis as principal and interest payments are made by the ESOP
to the Company. The trustee allocates the shares released among participants on the basis of each participant’s
proportional share of compensation relative to all participants. As shares are committed to be released from the
suspense account, Territorial Savings Bank reports compensation expense based on the average fair value of
shares released with a corresponding credit to stockholders’ equity. The shares committed to be released are
considered outstanding for earnings per share computations. Compensation expense recognized for the years
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 amounted to $1.0 miltion and $935,000, respectively.

Shares held by the ESOP trust were as follows:

December 31,
2012 2011
Allocated shares.........ccccoveioveivieecciciieeeeeeee 191,577 145,775
Unearned shares..........cccccueeveveeeeieevvee e, 782,921 831,853
Total ESOP shares ........c..cocvveeeeiioeecceveeeeeveeee 974,498 977,628
Fair value of unearned shares, in thousands .......... $ 17,890 $ 16,429

The ESOP restoration plan is a non-qualified plan that provides supplemental benefits to certain executives who
are prevented from receiving the full benefits contemplated by the employee stock ownership plan’s benefit
formula. The supplemental cash payments consist of payments representing shares that cannot be allocated to the
participants under the ESOP due to IRS limitations imposed on tax-qualified plans. We accrue for these benefits
over the period during which employees provide services to earn these benefits. For the years ended

December 31, 2012 and 2011, we accrued $278,000 and $221,000, respectively, for the ESOP restoration plan.

(17) Share-Based Compensation

On August 19, 2010, Territorial Bancorp Inc. adopted the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan, which provides for awards
of stock options and restricted stock to key officers and outside directors. In accordance with the Compensation —
Stock Compensation topic of the FASB ASC, the cost of the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan is based on the fair
value of the awards on the grant date. The fair value of restricted stock is based on the closing price of the
Company’s stock on the grant date. The fair value of stock options is estimated using a Black-Scholes option
pricing model using assumptions for dividend yield, stock price volatility, risk-free interest rate and option term.
These assumptions are based on our judgments regarding future events, are subjective in nature, and cannot be
determined with precision. The cost of the awards will be recognized on a straight-line basis over the five- to six-
year vesting period during which participants are required to provide services in exchange for the awards.

The Company recognized compensation expense, measured as the fair value of the share-based award on the date
of grant, on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. Share-based compensation is recorded in the statement
of income as a component of salaries and employee benefits with a corresponding increase in shareholders’
equity. For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, compensation expense and the related tax
benefit for all share-based awards were as follows:
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2012 2011 2010

(In thousands)
COMPENSALON EXPENISE ...ooverrvssrrsressriserescisnmsrmssssssissesssenssssssensssisss $ 269 §$§ 3461 $ 989
Income tax benefit .......cocoevnnenne o eveveiadaseseresievnsnnaeisansseansssinseats 1,432 1,507 397

. Shares of our common stock issued under the Plan shall be authorized unissued shares. The maximum number of
shares that will be awarded under the plan will be 1,712,637 shares. :

Stock Options
The table below presents the stock option activity for the years ended December 31, 2012,2011 and 2010:
Weighted
average Remaining’ Aggregate
exercise . contractual intrinsic value
Options price life (years) (in thousands)

Options outstanding at December 31, 2009 ........coieeuevierenns 0% 0o 0°$ 0
Granted.............. e 871,144 17.36 9.67 0
EXEICISEA ...vnvvrvcerrmnrmsnsseseciseisciscsnssssmsssassienecenssnasanis 0 0 0 0
FOTEIted .....cuiirvunivirieeressinssinsis st 0 0o 0 0
EXPITE .ooeoeneceeieciiarmssnssiseisisen s 0 0 0 0
Options outstanding at December 31, 20100 ..ccoviiinnennannes 871,144 § 17.36 9.67 $ 27221
(€7 <3111 ¢ PURUUOTRUO ST OO U POR P PPR PRSPPI 0 0 0 0
Exercised......... et aees RSO 0 0 0 0
Forfeited.......cocevveneereeevminenasionnnneen sererereeesaenenens 0 0 , 0 0
EXPITEA ..oeoeeeecbininminnenesessesses s : 0 0 0 0
Options outstanding at December 31, 2011 ..ccoviervirnieniinns 871,144 $ 17.36 867 $§ 2,082
Granted............ ieeeereeeeerenneeanreensens eeereriteeerreraraaneane 3,085 23.62 9.67 0
EXEICISEA o nvereilereerreeieseeeseseeeeesiasesnnerssiansaaescssssnaas 41,275 17.36 .0 171
FOTERItEA ooonneeeeeeeeeeeeeneeeeeerreeesenaeessiranassasnaeeeasassneases 0 0 .0 0
EXPITEA .ecvoeveinminninsesse e ‘ 0 0 0 0
Options outstanding at December 31, 2012 .ccovviiiiininnannnn. 832,954 $ 17.38 767 $ 4,554
Options vested and exercisable at December 31, 2012........ 277,240 $ 17.37 767 $ 1,518

The following summarizes certain stock option activity of the Company for the years ended December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010:

2012 2011 2000

(In thousands) ) ) ) -

Intrinsic value of stock options exercised........c.cc..... ettt $ 171§ 0 S 0
Cash received from stock options eXercised .......ooceeveriminimisinnnnaces 717 0 0
Tax benefits realized from stock options exercised .........cocevuruemeeins . 69 0 0
Total fair value of stock options that vested ..........cocovvimminininninnnee 3,175 3,547 0

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had $2.6 million of unrecognized compensation costs related to the
stock option plan. The cost of the stock option plan will be amortized over the five- to six-year vesting period.
There were 138,929 shares vested in 2012. T

The fair value of the Company’s stock options was determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing formula.
The following assumptions were used in the formula for 2012 and 2010:

, , 2012 2010
Expected volatility ......oceoeeeiininniianies et , 35.82% 31.98%
BT T 1.27% 2.58%
Expected dividends.......... erransennasenerases S 1.86% - 1.61%
Expected life (i YEars) ....ccrevuemmiermnenissenssesinississnininies 6.50 6.75
- Grant price for the Stock OPHONS.......covverireisiniriniienennns $ 2362 $ 1736
Expected volatility—Based on the historical volatility of the Company’s stock and a peer group of comparable

thrifts.
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Risk-free interest rate—Based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve and expected life of the options at the time of
grant.

Expected dividends—Based on the quarterly dividend and the price of the Company’s stock at the time of grant.

Expected life—Based on a weighted-average of the five- to six-year vesting period and the 10-year contractual
term of the stock option plan.

Grant price for the stock options—Based on the closing price of the Company’s stock at the time of grant.

Restricted Stock Awards

Restricted stock awards are accounted for as fixed grants using the fair value of the Company’s stock at the time
of grant. Unvested restricted stock awards may not be disposed of or transferred during the vesting period.
Restricted stock awards carry with them the right to receive dividends.

The table below presents the restricted stock award activity for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011:

Restricted Weighted

stock average grant

awards date fair value
Non-vested at December 31, 2009.........ccccvevvennen. 0 % 0
Granted.........ooveveveeeeiieeceeciiie e cvre e 713,600 17.36
VESted....eeiieeiiieeeeee ettt e 0 0
Forfeited.....covouvieeeeeecee et 0 0
Non-vested at December 31, 2010............c.ooe..... 713,600 $ 17.36
Granted.........ocoeeeeeeireeerirereeeeeeeeneeeeeeeaene 0 0
VESLEA....veiviierrierecetr et certecree e eeneaeree e 149,606 17.36
Forfeited........oocoveeieeeeceererrecieeeree e, 0 0
Non-vested at December 31,2011 ......cccoovrnneane. 563,994 § 17.36
Granted..........ooovvvveevvieiierreeeeeeee e 2,735 23.62
VEStEd.oonviieeeietee et e venas 113,332 17.39
Forfeited........oovveereicrecrieieecreceeeeeeevieene 0 0
Non-vested at December 31, 2012............cccvveenen. 453,397 $ 17.39

As of December 31, 2012, the Company had $7.2 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to restricted
stock awards. The cost of the restricted stock awards will be amortized over the five- to six-year vesting period.

(18) Earnings Per Share
The table below presents the information used to compute basic and diluted earnings per share:

For the year ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

NEt INCOME.......cveieieeieerieeeeeeeereere e ereereeereenns $ 14,838 $ 12,789 $ 11,028

Weighted-average number of shares used in:
Basic earnings per share...........ccoceeuennenee. 10,113,453 10,777,417 11,322,798
Dilutive common stock equivalents:
Stock options and restricted stock

UNIES.c.eeieevreeieeeeieeeieeeniaeesreennees 99,737 159,215 46,363

Diluted earnings per share............c.cce.ee. 10,213,190 10,936,632 11,369,161

Net income per common share, basic ................. $ 147 $ 1.19 § 0.97
Net income per common share, diluted .............. $ 145 $ 1.17 $ 0.97
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(19)  Other Comprehensive Loss
The table below presents the changes in the components of other comprehensive loss:
Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010
- Beginning Comprehensive "Ending = Beginning Comprehensive Ending Beginning Comprehensive Ending
(Dollars in thousands) Balance Income Balance Balance Income Balance Balance Income Balance
Unfunded pension . . .
liability ........ceovnnee $2,966 $ 826 $3,792 $ 1,504 $ 1,462 $2966 $ 1,059 $§ 445 $1,504
Noncredit related losses '
on securities not
expected to -
“besold....cocoeieeeinnin. 679 (234) 445 - 679 . - 0 679 - . 0 679 679
Unrealized loss on- S - o . , ~ EERTE
SECUTTHES ©vvrvvverenen 125 . (29) 9% 322 .. (197 © 125. - 0 322 322
Total....cceeevenees $3,770 § 563 $4,333 $ 2,505 $ 1,265 $3,77O $ 1,059 $ 1,446 $2,505
" The table below presents the tax effect on each component lé'f other compféhensive loss:
Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010
Pretax After Tax Pretax After Tax Pretax After Tax
(Dotlars in thousands) Amount Tax. Amount Amount . .- Tax Amount Amount Tax Amount
Unfunded pension liability....... $6,295 $(2,503) $ 3,792 $4,954 $(1,988) $ 2,966 $ 2,488 $ (984) $ 1,504

Noncredit related losses on

(20
(@)

®)

sesesssasecesassianen

1,106 (427) 679
530  (208) 322

$4,124 $(1,619) $2,505

1,106  (427) 679
209 (84) 125

$6269 $(2,499) $ 3,770

717 (272) 445
161 (65) 96

$7,173 $(2,840) $ 4,333

Commitments

Loan Commitments

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any
terms or conditions established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or
other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since commitments may expire without
being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements.
The Company evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on an individual basis. The Company’s policy

" is to require suitable collateral, primarily real estate, to be provided by customers prior to disbursement of

approved loans. At December 31, 2012 and 201_ 1, the Company had loan commitments aggregating $39.3
million (interest rates from 2.625% to 5.00%) and $28.2 million (interest rates from 3.00% to 5.125%),
respectively, primarily consisting of fixed-rate residential first mortgage loans. In addition to

*~commitments to originate loans, at December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company had $22.0 million and
“$18.9 million, respectively, in unused lines of credit to borrowers.

Lease Commitments

The Company leases a majority of its premisesiunder operating leases expiring on various dates through

. 2023. Total rental expense comprised minimum rentals of $2.6 million, $2.5 million, and $2.5 million for
- the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, respectively.
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At December 31, 2012, future minimum rental commitments under all noncancelable operating leases are
as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

203 e ettt eeteere ekt e st b e be et e s b entenaeases $ 2354
2004 oottt et eere et et e e ae e b e e b e sresrb e rs e b e e reeneenneanes 2,199
2015 ettt et e et e st e sabeeabesraeebaenerneesreenaeerneenraeraens 1,868
2016 .ttt ettt b e r e b bt et sba b e aaeta e aants 1,702
D017 oottt et r b bt et rt e s ste b et eabeaearas 1,463
TRETEATTET ... cveieeeee ettt ettt e e ere e et e e ebe e stbeesbaeeaen 2,729

TOLAL ..ottt eee ettt e st e s vt e eerreesebressr e entesenreeeebeaetneenes $ 12,315

Certain leases are renegotiable during the period of the lease or have renewal options at the expiration of
the lease term. The majority of lease agreements relates to real estate and generally provides that the
Company pay taxes, maintenance, insurance, and certain other operating expenses applicable to the
leased premises.

In addition, the Company leases to a tenant certain property that it owns. Future minimum rental income
for this noncancelable lease is as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

2003 et ereeeseeaeeeea ettt bereba—a——aaaenanaran s narnerannen $ 110
200 oottt et e be e s enes et ———— 110
2005 ettt a e b e et e e bt et e e ta e ba e be e re e arersrenraenrerarenn 110
2016 .ottt ettt ettt re e re b s er et ere e re e neereeareereeentens 110
743 OO PSP URUREPURRRIPOPORt 110
TREIEATIET ... .ocvvecieie et e eeee e re et e e seneseneeenaneenens 440

TOLAL ..ttt et rr e e ettt e et et e eaeaeaneas $ 99

Rental income comprised of minimum rentals for 2012, 2011, and 2010 was approximately $110,000,
$80,000 and $80,000, respectively.

(c) Reserve Requirements

The Company is required by the Federal Reserve Bank to maintain reserves based on the amount of
deposits held. The reserve requirement at December 31, 2012 and 2011 was $12.0 million and $10.1
million, respectively, and the Company met such requirements.

(21) Regulatory Capital and Supervision

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking
agencies. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Bank’s core, tangible, risk-based, and Tier 1 risk-based
capital exceeded the minimum required regulatory capital ratios as follows:

Required Actual
Excess over
Amount Percentage Amount Percentage requirement
(Dollars in thousands)
December 31, 2012:
Core (Tier 1) capital .......c.ccooeveeiiiiniienne, $ 63,149 4.00% $ 207,295 13.13% $ 144,146
Tangible capital ........cccoooveririnnnnicinnienn. 23,681 1.50 207,295 13.13 183,614
Risk-based capital ...........ccceevvrveerrerienreenn. 45,343 8.00 208,991 36.87 163,648
Tier 1 risk-based capital .......c..cc.cccceeennnnnnee. 22,672 4.00 207,295 36.57 184,623
December 31, 2011:
Core (Tier 1) capital ........cccoeeririenincneenns $ 61,525 4.00% $ 201,060 13.07% $ 139,535
Tangible capital......cc.ccccovuevieiriieniniiinies 23,072 1.50 201,060 13.07 177,988
Risk-based capital ..........oeoverereervnrineennnene 41,813 8.00 202,601 38.76 160,788
Tier 1 risk-based capital .......c..ccccoeeerrencnene 20,906 4.00 201,060 38.47 180,154
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The following is a reconciliation of Bank equity to regulatory capital:

December 31,
2012 2011

Bank qUity ......cococecverurerierereecreneniniereeresrevesesssanns $ 203,254 $ 197,606
Intangible assets........ s (232) (225)
Disallowed servicing assets ................... SRR .(60) o1
Accumulated other comprehensive loss.................. _ 4,333 3,770

Core and tangible capital.............cccoerreeennenne. 207,295 201,060
Allowance for loan lossés — general, including

allowance for credit losses on off-balance sheet ,

© Credit EXPOSUIES......evevereirrieiiiseese e eranas ' 1,696 1,541

" Regulatory risk-based capital — computed..... $ 208,991 $§ 202,601

(a) Federal Deposit‘fnsuranée Cofporation Improvement Act (FDI CfA)

FDICIA was signed into law and regulations implementing the Prompt Corrective Action provisions of
FDICIA became effective on December 19, 1992. In addition to the Prompt Corrective Action
requirements, FDICIA includes significant changes to the legal and regulatory environment for insured
depository institutions, including reductions in insurance coverage for certain kinds of deposits; increased
supervision by the federal regulatory agencies; increased reporting requirements for insured institutions;
and new regulations concerning internal controls accounting, and operatlons

The Prompt Corrective Action provisions define specific capital categories based on an institution’s

capltal ratios. However, the regulators may impose higher minimum capital standards on individual
institutions or may downgrade an institution from one capital category to a lower category because of
safety and soundness concerns. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain
mandatory and possible additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a
direct material effect on the Company s consolidated financial statements

- The Prompt Corrective Action provrslons impose certain restrictions on 1nst1tut10ns that are
undercapitalized. The restrictions imposed become increasingly more severe as an institution’s capital
category declines from “undercapitalized” to “critically undercapitalized.”

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Bank’s core, tangible, Tier 1/risk-based, and total risk-based ratios

exceeded the minimum capital thresholds for a “well-capitalized” institution. There are no conditions or
events that have changed the institution’s category under the capital guidelines.

The Bank is required to notify the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency when dividends are paid to
the parent company.

(22) Contingencies
The Company is involved in various claims and legal actions arising out of the ordinary course of business. In the
opinion of management, the ultimate disposition of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the
Company s consohdated balance sheets. : ;

(23) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

In accordance with the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures topic of the FASB ASC, the Company groups
its financial assets and liabilities at fair value into three levels based on the markets in which the financial assets
and liabilities are traded and the reliability of the assumptions used to determme fair value as follows:

e Level 1——Va1uatlon is based upon quoted prices (unad_]usted) for identical assets or liabilities traded in
active markets. A quoted price in an active market provides the most reliable evidence of fair value and
shall be used to measure fair value whenever available.

. Level 2—Valuation is based upon quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted pnces
for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active, and model-based valuation techniques
for which all significant assumptions are observable in the market.
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. Level 3—Valuation is generated from model-based techniques that use significant assumptions not
observable in the market. These unobservable assumptions reflect management’s own estimates of
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. Valuation techniques
include use of discounted cash flow models and similar techniques that require the use of significant
judgment or estimation.

In accordance with the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures topic, the Company bases its fair values on the
price that it would expect to receive if an asset were sold or the price that it would expect to pay to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Also as required, the
Company maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs when
developing fair value measurements.

The Company uses fair value measurements to determine fair value disclosures. Investment securities held for
sale and derivatives are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis. From time to time, the Company may be
required to record other financial assets at fair value on a nonrecurring basis, such as loans held for sale, impaired
loans and investments, and mortgage servicing assets. These nonrecurring fair value adjustments typically
involve application of the lower of cost or fair value accounting or write-downs of individual assets.

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Accrued Interest Receivable, Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses, Current
Income Taxes Payable, and Advance Payments by Borrowers for Taxes and Insurance. The carrying amount
approximates fair value because of the short maturity of these instruments.

Investment Securities. The estimated fair values of U.S. government-sponsored mortgage-backed securities are
considered Level 2 inputs because the valuation for investment securities utilized pricing models that varied
based on asset class and included trade, bid and other observable market information.

The trust preferred securities represent investments in a pool of debt obligations issued primarily by holding
companies for Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation-insured financial institutions. The trust preferred securities
market is considered to be inactive since there have been only three transactions over the past 12 months
involving securities in the same tranche owned by the Company and no new issues of pooled trust preferred
securities have occurred since 2007. The fair value of our trust preferred securities was determined using a
discounted cash flow model. Our model used a discount rate equal to three-month LIBOR plus 20.00% and
provided a fair value estimate of $11.90 per $100 of par value for PreTSL XXIII.

The discounted cash flow analysis includes a review of all issuers within each collateral pool and deferral and
default rate assumptions for each issuer. The fair value of the trust preferred securities are classified as Level 3
inputs because they are based on discounted cash flow models. '

FHLB Stock. FHLB stock, which is redeemable for cash at par value, is reported at its par value.

Loans. The fair value of loans is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the current rates at which
similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining maturities. The
fair value of loans is not based on the concept of exit price.

Loans Held for Sale. The fair value of loans held for sale is determined based on prices quoted in the secondary
market for similar loans.

Deposits. The fair value of checking and Super NOW savings accounts, passbook accounts, and certain money
market deposits is the amount payable on demand at the reporting date. The fair value of fixed-maturity
certificates of deposit is estimated by discounting future cash flows using the rates currently offered for deposits
with similar remaining maturities.

Advances From the FHLB and Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase. Fair value is estimated by
discounting future cash flows using the rates currently offered to the Company for debt with similar remaining
maturities.

Interest Rate Contracts. The Company may enter into interest rate lock commitments with borrowers on loans
intended to be sold. To manage interest rate risk on the lock commitments, the Company may also enter into
forward loan sale commitments. The interest rate lock commitments and forward loan sale commitments are
treated as derivatives and are recorded at their fair value determined by referring to prices quoted in the
secondary market for similar contracts. Interest rate contracts that are classified as assets are included with
prepaid expenses and other assets on the consolidated balance sheet while interest rate contracts that are
classified as liabilities are included with accounts payable and accrued expenses.
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The estimated fair values of the Comnipariy’s financial instruments are as follows:

Carrying

Fair Value Measurements Using

Fair

Ameount Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(Dollars in thousands)
December 31, 2012
Assets -
Cash and cash equivalents.........;.ccieerrreeceninrioensivenennas $ 182,818 $182,818 § 182818 §$ 03 0
Investment secuntles held to maturity.........cccoevvevenee. 554,673 584,125 0 583,704 421
FHLB StOCK ...t eeiceecceeeeecee et eieeesaesnesere e 12,128 12,128 12,128 0 .0
Loans held £or 5ale .........coovvveverreereeeriereesinieniensieseees 2,220 2,335 0 2,335 .0
Loans receivable, 01€t........o.oovvvveeervveeeans e —— 774,876 831,734 "0 ‘ 0 831,734
Accrued interest receivable .......ooovvvercviveireierreneeennn, 4,367 4,367 4,367 0 ‘ 0
Interest rate contracts ...........cceeeeeveeeeeveeeeereieeecceeaeenn, 124 124 0 124 0.
Liabilities h '
DIEPOSIES...cveniereeeierereereereeeanereseeeeseetenesesesaeteseesnensssens 1,237,847 1,239,385 1,032,467 0 206,918
Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank ............ 20,000 . 20,397 -0 0 20,397
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase .......... . 70,000 . - 72,340 . 0 0. 72,340
Accounts payable and accrued expenses..................... ; 23,017 23,017 23,017 0 0
Interest rate CONtracts ................... e R I b 1.0 111 0
Current income taxes payable .............ocoververerruennnn. 1,152 1,152~ 1,152 0 0
Advance payments by borrowers for taxes and ) - - C ,
INSULANCE. ... eereeeecierereteseeeeeeteesereesstereesseresesennas ' 3,639 3,639 3,639 0 0
December 31, 2011
Assets C : : I : L
‘Cash and cash equivalents........... veeenrebesaensgiatanrrtanes $ 131,937 $131,937 $ 131,937 -$-. -0 $ 0
Investment securities held to maturity.............icccueiin. 653,871 . . 687,319 . 0 687,060 - 259 -
FHLB StOCK .....ovvieieeeieieierieciseeei s eereesve e esveenens 12,348 12,348 12,348 0 0
Loans held for sale ...........occioeiiiiiniinnnnionns devinieeeanss ) 3,231 3,352 S0 = 3,352 0
Loans receivable, net.................... et r e e et 688,095 790,220 0 0 790,220
Accrued interest receivable ....... erert oo eaerann - -4,780 4,780 4,780 0 0
Interest rate CONLIacts ......c.ovvverrurereieeereersiveesnerseenenens 156 156 0 156 0
Liabilities L e
Deposits............. reeennine eeureniassneirireseaisisesessnesiresstenties 1,166,116 1,167,855 942,365 0 225,490
Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank ............ 20,000 20,525 0 0 20,525
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase....... 108,300 112,306 o 0 <0 112,306
Accounts payable and accrued expenses............c....... 22,816 22,816 22,816 0 0
Inteérest 1ate CONLTACES ...ovevreeerereeeerirereeteeee et seenereens 139 139 0 139 0
Current income taxes payable .........cccvceeevverererirecnn 3,114 3,114 3,114 0 0
Advance payments by borrowers for taxes and
msurance ................................................................. . 3,264 3 264 .3 264 0 0

At December 31,2012 and 2011, nelther the commltment fees recelved on commitments to extend credit nor the
fair value thereof was material to the consolidated financial statements of the Company.

The table below presents the balance of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of

December 31,2012 and 2011:

(Dollers in thonsands)

December 31, 2012 ’
Interest rate CONtIacts — ASSELS...c..eccevrerierrerrereererrieneeereriarereeseeerenne
Interest rate contracts ~ liabilities ....ccovvveiiccce

December-31, 2011
Interest rate CONLIactS ~ ASSELS...uvviiiervrrierireiiiirarerevereeereeeserreseenens

Level 1 Level2 ~ Level3 ™ " Total
$ 03 124 3 0% 124
0 (111) 0 (111)
$ 03 156 § 0$ 156
0 (139 0 (139)

Interest rate contracts ~ liabilities ..:i.........oic. e ae e o
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The fair value of interest rate contracts was determined by referring to prices quoted in the secondary market for
similar contracts. Gains and losses are included in gain on sale of loans in the consolidated statements of income.

The table below presents the balance of assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis as of December 31,
2012 and 2011 and the related gains and losses for the years then ended:

Total
Gains
(Dollars in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total (Losses)
December 31, 2012
IMPaired J0ANS .........ccveirieieiriirnciniec st $ 0§ 468 § 4907 § 5375 § (222)
Mortgage SErviCing aSSetS.........cccerirrerereerevesrennrrereseereressesesseressesenseneas 0 0 651 651 (220)
Trust preferred SECUTItIES ..........ccveeveveeveererieieceere e 0 0 421 421 389
December 31, 2011
IMPAITed LOANS .....c.ceoveveeiereeieeeeeeceeeetee ettt $ 0 $ 885 % 2,766 $ 3,651 $ (219
Mortgage SEIVICING ASSELS....c.ceerurereererenrererrernarensessseseeseassessessennens 0 0 977 977 (34)

The fair value of impaired loans that are considered to be collateral-dependent is determined using the value of collateral less
estimated selling costs. The fair value of impaired loans that are not considered to be collateral-dependent is determined using
a discounted cash flow analysis. Assumptions used in the analysis include the discount rate and projected cash flows. Gains
and losses on impaired loans are included in the provision for loan losses in the consolidated statements of income. Mortgage
servicing assets are valued using a discounted cash flow model. Assumptions used in the model include mortgage
prepayment speeds, discount rates, cost of servicing and ancillary income. Losses on mortgage servicing assets are included
in service fees on loan and deposit accounts in the consolidated statements of income. The fair value of trust preferred
securities was determined by using a discounted cash flow model. The assumptions used in the discounted cash flow model
are discussed above. Gains and losses on trust preferred securities that are credit related are included in net other-than-
temporary impairment losses in the consolidated statements of income. Gains and losses on trust preferred securities that are
not credit related are included in other comprehensive income in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

(M

The table below presents the significant unobservable inputs for Level 3 nonrecurring fair value measurements:

(Dollars in thousands) Fair Value Valuation Technique Unobservable Input Value
December 31, 2012:
Impaired loans — non-collateral
dependent...........ccovveveriecrevresrenreenen. $ 4,907 Discounted cash flow Discount rate (1)  3.73% — 6.94%
Mortgage servicing assets ................... 651 Discounted cash flow  Discount rate 10.00%
Prepayment speed
(PSA) 144.6 - 316.4
Cost to service
(Basis points) 40
Trust preferred securities..................... 421 Discounted cash flow  Discount rate Three-month
LIBOR plus
20%
December 31, 2011:
Impaired loans — non-collateral
dependent..........cccoceeverrernrrrnrnnnnne. $ 2,766 Discounted cash flow Discount rate (1)  3.73% — 6.94%
Mortgage servicing assets ................... 970 Discounted cash flow  Discount rate 10.00%
Prepayment speed
(PSA) 180.1 - 437.9
Cost to service
(Basis points) 40

Represents the yield on contractual cash flows prior to modification in troubled debt restructurings.
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(24) Parent Company Only

Presented below are the condensed balance sheet, statement of income, and statement of cash flows for
Territorial Bancorp Inc.

Condensed Balance Sheet

December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2012 — 2011
Assets .
$ 10,369 $ 10,970
203,254 197,606
863 4,457
4,498 1,076
$ 218984 § 214,109
$ o128 148
218,972 213,961
$ 218,984 $ 214,109
e Condensed Statement of Income
- For the year ended December 31,
(Doilars in thousands) _ 2012 2011 2010
Interest and dividend income:
Dividends from Territorial Savings Bank .........ccccoeeeeievieeiiieiieiicieeceeic et $11,788 $18,087 $ 0
Interest-earning deposit with Territorial Savings Bank......... e s 32 81 230
Total interest and dividend INCOME ...........ocevvevereveeereieeeeereereree e eeeeeeeens 11,820 18,168 230
Noninterest expense: : : ' . ; SEEIEER B : .
SAIATIES ...ttt sttt sttt st e bbb bbb e ne s ans 37 36 37
Other general and administrative expenses............ e bt s sae e ns 763 677 843
Total noninterest expense ............... SR ettt 800 713 880
Income before income taxes and equity in undistributed earnings in ‘ N
SUbSIdiaries ..., ...occcoveveverreererenenan. e naes o 11,0200 17,455 (650)
INCOME tAXES -ttt ettt e ste s b e et ebeebestansesestenseseensssessssessons (297) (65) - (256)
Income before equity in undistributed earnings in subsidiaries......... 11,3 17 17,520 - (394)
Equity in undistributed earnings of Territorial Savings Bank, net of dividends...................... 3,521 © (4,731) 11,422
Net income.............. s e $14,838 $12,789 $11,028
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Condensed Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2012 2011 2010

Cash flows from operating activities:
NELIICOMIE ..ottt ettt et e e s s e e eneeneeerse e ressere e nressneerseereesesesnseentas $ 14838 $ 12,789 $ 11,028

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in operating activities:
Equity in undistributed earnings of Territorial Savings Bank, net of

QIVIAENAS......ooveeeieeeeeeecreeece ettt s s ane (3,521) 4,731 (11,422)

ESOP EXPENSE ....coviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiitiieiete et e 1,082 967 907

Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation.................... [T (54) 0 0

Net (increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets ............... reveee 172 (2,814) 5,541
Net increase (decrease) in other liabilities.............ccceveveeeeiiceiiiiciecieeeee, (136) 97 (1,418)

Net cash provided by operating activities..............ccoverveecesrereerirceereneenenn. 12,381 15,770 4,636

Cash flows from investing activities:

Investment in Territorial Savings Bank..........cccocvcvvviiniinininenninieneeeenes 0 0 n
Net cash used in INVeSting aCtiVities ........coceerererrvrvereereeseriisierieceseeeneenes 0 0 (51)

Cash flows from financing activities:

Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation...........c.cccoeevcvrverrecrnenennnn 54 0 0
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of COStS .....ccoovmevimieeeerenenne. 717 0 0
Purchases of company StOCK .........cccovevvieiiencieiieiiieceec e (8,025) (25,464) (1,027)
Cash dividends Paid ........coccovverreeierireereireseeee et s re e (5,728) (3,886) (2,713)
Net cash used in financing activities..........c.oceevveeveierieerececieecceeeeeveenns (12,982) (29,350) (3,740)
Net increase (decrease) in cash .......cocceeveecvrenierviniceeeeeecne (601) (13,580) 845
Cash at beginning of the Period ..........c.ccviiieirniriiriie e 10,970 24,550 23,705
Cash at end of the period................ e eeteerhe et eeteeaeeibe et e e — e bt ea b e et e it st s et seabesebesanis $ 10369 $§ 10970 $ 24,550

(25) Unaudited Quarterly Financial Information

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Full Year

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

2012:

Interest and dividend iNCOME ........vvveverereerereererierererereernn, $ 15629 $ 15490 $ 14,826 $ 14,204 $ 60,149
INtErest EXPENSE ......oovveeieieiieeieceeeceeeeeee e 2,578 2,517 2,226 1,908 9,229
Net INtErest INCOME ....vveevveerereeecriecrireeereeinreeereeeseeesreeseaees 13,051 12,973 12,600 12,296 50,920
Provision (reversal of allowance) for loan losses ................. 84 (79 167 243 415
Net interest income after provision for loan losses............... 12,967 13,052 12,433 12,053 50,505
NONINETESt INCOME .......vecuviereiereetrerr e eeeere e e e eseennes 1,442 1,407 1,922 2,297 7,068
NONIMETESt EXPENSE......oevueeereeerieereeneereeereeetresreeeaeeereeeteeaneas 8,638 8,498 8,597 8,705 34,438
Income before iNCOME taXES ......covvvvveveeeeiieeiiiieeeieeeeeeeee 5,771 5,961 5,758 5,645 23,135
INCOME tAXES ..ouvvneireeeeeceeee ettt 2,231 2,115 2,111 1,840 8,297
NEL INCOIME......eererererreieteeeeeereeaete e et e s e eve et eeeeereereens 3,540 3,846 3,647 3,805 14,838
Basic earnings per share ..........cccccoceeeenn. e 0.35 0.38 0.36 0.38 1.47
Diluted earnings per Share .........c.c.cceceeeeevcrvrnnnevenririeonas 0.34 0.37 0.36 0.34 1.45
Cash dividends declared per common share...........c..ccc....... 0.10 0.11 0.11 0.22 0.54

96




First” -~ Second’ * Third Fourth -
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Full Year
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) ’

2011:

Interest and dividend InCOME..........ccevvvveererereeereeceeireerreeerens $§ 15346 $ 15,733 $ 15,790 $ 15,864 $ 62,733
INETESt EXPENISE ...ooonevereeeeeiirieeeieeririee e e cenaeeerie e s raesnees e 2,828 2,857 2,872 2,728 11,285
Net interest iNCOME .........coeeeveereerveennenn. heveeseienieesieesreeaesnann C 12,518 - 12,876 12,918 13,136 51,448
Provision (reversal of allowance) for loan losses ................ ~ - 108 ¢ 14 (39) 335 418
Net interest income after provision for loan losses............... s 12,410 - 12,862 12,957 12,801 51,030
NONINLETESt INCOMIE .....veeiereereeeeresieieeeeresaesresessessoneseeseneoses 1,126 1,223 1,168 1,594 5,111
Noninterest expense........... et OO 8,409 8,645 9,221 8,379 34,654
Income before inCOmMe taxes ......ccuveeveeeveeiiereeeveeiee e, . 5,127 5,440 4,904 . 6,016 21487
INCOME tAXES ....vvvevevenrresrererereenseesseeneeseeens rerreeresereraesteeraeees S 2,127 2,055 1,918 2,598 8,698
Nt INCOME....cvieeieeieeeiereneereeeeeeeeere et esreeseeressessessesneonsenee 3,000 3,385 2,986 3,418 12,789
Basic earnings per Share ..........ccoceeereeeenieniencseescneeseesiee 0.27 0.31 0.28 0.33 1.19
Diluted earnings per share .................. reveneenaes edrenieeeedreneeeens - 0.26 0.30 0.28 0.33 1.17
Cash dividends declared per common share.............cooeuunee. ’ 0.07 0.09 . 0.09 0.09 0.34

(26) Subsequent Events

On February 4, 2013, the Board of Drrectors of Terrltorlal Bancorp Inc. approved a quarterly cash dividend of
$0.12 per share of common stock. The dividend was pa1d on March 4, 2013 to. stockholders of record as of

February 18, 2013.
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ITEM 9. Changes In and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

ITEM 9A. Controls and Procedures

(a) An evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s management,
including the Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer and the Senior Vice President and Treasurer, of
the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-
15(e) promulgated under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as of December 31, 2012. Based on that
evaluation, the Company’s management, including the Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer and the
Senior Vice President and Treasurer, concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2012, there have been no changes in the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting.

(b) Management’s annual report on internal control over financial reporting.

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) in the Exchange Act. The Company’s internal control system is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance to the Company’s management and board of directors regarding the preparation and
fair presentation of published financial statements.

Our internal control over financial reporting includes policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect transactions and dispositions of assets; provide reasonable assurances
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and the directors of the Company; and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on our financial
statements.

All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems
determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and
presentation. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

The Company’s management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2012. In making this assessment, we used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control-Integrated Framework. Based on our assessment we believe
that, as of December 31, 2012, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting is effective based on those criteria.

The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm that audited the consolidated financial statements has
issued an audit report on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2012, and it is included in Item 8, under Part II of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 9B. Other Information
None.

PART 111

ITEM 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information in Territorial Bancorp Inc.’s definitive Proxy Statement for the 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders
under the captions “Proposal 1—Election of Directors,” “Information About Executive Officers,” “Section 16(a) Beneficial
Ownership Reporting Compliance,” “Code of Ethics and Business Conduct,” “Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee Procedures—Procedures to be Followed by Stockholders,” “Committees of the Board of Directors™ and “—Audit
Committee” is incorporated herein by reference.
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ITEM 11. Executive Compensation

The information in Territorial Bancorp Inc.’s definitive Proxy Statement for the 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders
under the caption “Executive Compensatlon is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information in Territorial BanCOrp Inc.’s definitive Proxy Statement for the 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders
- under the caption “Stock Ownership” is incorporated herein by reference. Information with respect to the security ownership

of our directors and executive officers is included above in “Item 10 Directors, Executlve Ofﬁcers and Corporate
Governance,” and is incorporated herein by reference: i

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Set forth below-is information as of December 31, 2012 with réspect to compensation plans (other than our employee
stock ownership plan) under which equity securities of the Registrant are authorized for issuance.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of securities
- remaining available for
future issuance under
' . o A share-based
Number of securities to Weighted-avérage compensation plans

be issued upon exercise exercise price of (excluding securities
of outstanding options, ‘outstanding options, reflected in first
warrants and rights warrants and rights column)
Equity compensation plans approved . o ‘ v ‘
by security holders ..........cccoererenen 1,286,327 $ 17.38(1) 122,073

(1)  Reflects weighted average price of stock options only

ITEM 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information in Territorial Bancorp Inc.’s definitive Proxy Statement for the 2013 Annual Meetmg of Stockholders
under the captions “Transactions with Certain Related Persons” and “Proposal 1—Election of Directors” is incorporated
herein by reference. ‘ : P o

ITEM 14.  Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information in Territorial Bancorp Inc.’s definitive Proxy Statement for the 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders
under the captions “Proposal II—Ratification of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm—Audit Fees” and “—Pre-
Approval of Services by the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm” is incorporated herein by reference.
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ITEM 15.

PART IV

Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) Financial Statements

The following documents are filed as part of this annual report:

(M

(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

™)

(vi)
(vii)
(b)  Exhibits.
3.1
3.2
4
10.1
10.2
10.3
10.4
10.5
10.6
10.7
10.8
10.9

10.10

10.11
10.12

10.13
10.14
10.15
10.16
10.17
10.18
10.19
10.20

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2012 and 2011
Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income for the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Articles of Incorporation of Territorial Bancorp Inc. (1)

Bylaws of Territorial Bancorp Inc. (1)

Form of Common Stock Certificate of Territorial Bancorp Inc. (1)

Employment Agreement between Territorial Bancorp Inc. and Allan S. Kitagawa (2)

Employment Agreement between Territorial Savings Bank and Allan S. Kitagawa (1)

First Amendment to Employment Agreement between Territorial Savings Bank and Allan S. Kitagawa (4)
Employment Agreement between Territorial Bancorp Inc. and Vernon Hirata (2)

Employment Agreement between Territorial Savings Bank and Vernon Hirata (1)

First Amendment to Employment Agreement between Territorial Savings Bank and Vernon Hirata (4)
Employment Agreement between Territorial Bancorp Inc. and Ralph Y. Nakatsuka (2)

Employment Agreement between Territorial Savings Bank and Ralph Y. Nakatsuka (1)

First Amendment to Employment Agreement between Territorial Savings Bank and Ralph Y. Nakatsuka
4
Supplemental Executive Retirement Agreement between Territorial Savings Bank and Allan S. Kitagawa
(D
Supplemental Executive Retirement Agreement between Territorial Savings Bank and Vernon Hirata (1)

Supplemental Executive Retirement Agreement between Territorial Savings Bank and Ralph Y.
Nakatsuka (1)

Executive Deferred Incentive Agreement between Territorial Savings Bank and Allan S. Kitagawa (1)
Executive Deferred Incentive Agreement between Territorial Savings Bank and Vernon Hirata (1)
Territorial Savings Bank 2010 Amended and Restated Employee Stock Ownership Plan (4)
Territorial Savings Bank Non-Qualified Supplemental Employee Stock Ownership Plan (2)
Territorial Savings Bank Executive Incentive Compensation Plan (1)

First Amendment to Territorial Savings Bank Executive Incentive Compensation Plan (1)

Second Amendment to Territorial Savings Bank Executive Incentive Compensation Plan (4)

Territorial Bancorp Inc. 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (3)
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10.21
1022
10.23
10.24
10.25
10.26

10,27
10.28
10.29
10.30

10.31
23
31.1

312
32

101

101.INS

101.SCH
101.CAL
101.DEF
101.LAB

101.PRE

Form of Employee Restricted Stock Award (4)
Form of Employee Stock Option Award 4)
Form of Director Restricted Stock Award (4)

' Form of Director Stock Option Award (4)

Territorial Savings Bank Separation Pay Plan and Summary Plan Description (1)

Amendment One to Territorial Savings Bank Amended and Restated Supplemental Employee Retirement

"Agreement for Vernon Hirata (5)

Amendment One to Territorial Savings Bank Amended and Restated Supplemental Employee Retirement
Agreement for Ralph Nakatsuka (5)

Amendment One to Territorial Savings Bank Amended and Restated Supplemental Employee Retirement
Agreement for Karen J. Cox (5)

Amendment Two to Territorial Savings Bank Amended and Restated Supplemental Employee Retirement
Agreement for Vernon Hirata (6)

Amendment Two to Territorial Savings Bank Amended and Restated Supplemental Employee Retirement
Agreement for Ralph Nakatsuka (6)

Second Amendment to Employmént Agreement between Territorial Savings Bank and Vernon Hirata

Consent of KPMG LLP .

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a- 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The following financial statements from Territorial Bancorp Inc.’s Annual Report on Form-10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2012, filed on March 15, 2013, formatted in XBRL: (i) Consolidated Statements
of Income, (ii) Consolidated Balance Sheets, (iii) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, (iv)
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity and Comprehensive Income, (v) Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income, (vi) the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Interactive datafile
Interactive datafile
Interactive datafile
Interactive datafile
Interactive datafile

Interactive datafile

XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Exte»nsionv Definition Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

(1) Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-155388), mltlally filed
November 14, 2008.

{2) Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K (file no. 1-34403), filed November 18, 2009.

(3) Incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statement for the 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (file no. 1-34403), filed
July 12, 2010.

4) Incorporated by reference to the Annual Report on Form 10-K/A (file no. 001-34403), filed March 29,2011.

(5) Incorporated by reference to the Annual Report on Form 10-Q (file no. 001-34403), filed May 14, 2011.

(6) Incorporated by reference to the Annual Report on Form 10-K (file no. 001-34403), filed March 14, 2012.

(c) ~ Financial Statement Schedules

Not applicable.
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 of the Exchange Act, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf
by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

TERRITORIAL BANCORP INC.

By: /s/ Allan S. Kitagawa

Allan S. Kitagawa

Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer

(Duly Authorized Representative)

In accordance with the Exchange Act, this report has been signed by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant
and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signatures Title Date

/s/ Allan S. Kitagawa Chairman of the Board, President and March 15. 2013
Chief Executive Officer ’
(Principal Executive Officer)

Allan S. Kitagawa

s/ Mf:lvm M..Mlyamoto Senior Vice President and Treasurer March 15, 2013
Melvin M. Miyamoto (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

/s/ Kirk W. Caldwell Director : March 15, 2013
Kirk W. Caldwell

/s/ Howard Y. Ikeda Director ‘ March 15, 2013
Howard Y. Ikeda

/s/ David S. Murakami Director March 15, 2013
David S. Murakami

/s/ Richard I. Murakami Director March 15, 2013
Richard I. Murakami

/s/ Francis E. Tanaka Director March 15, 2013

Francis E. Tanaka
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Exhibit 10.31
SECOND AMENDMENT TO
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This Second Amendment, dated as of February 27, 2013 (the “Amendment”), to the Territorial Savings Bank
Employment- Agreement, dated as of October 29, 2008 (the “Employment Agreement”), is made by and between Territorial
Savings Bank, located at 1132 Bishop Street, 22" Floor, Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 (thé “Bank™), and Vernon Hirata: (the
“Executive”). Capitalized terms which are not defined herein shall have the same meaning as set forth in the Employment
Agreement. ' .

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the parties desire to amend the Employment Agreement to provide that payment of any severance
benefits thereunder is contingent upon the Executive timely executing and not revoking a release of all claims agamst the
Bank; and

WHEREAS, Section 12 of the Employment Agreement provides that the parties hereto may amend the Employment
Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the mutual agreements herein set forth and such other
consideration the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Bank and the Executive hereby agree as follows:

1. New Section 9(g) of the Employment Agreement. The following is hereby added as a new Section 9(g) of the
Employment Agreement:

“(g) Termination and Release of Claims. Any payments to be made under this Agreement shall be
contingent on Executive’s execution and non-revocation of a mutual release in a form acceptable to the Company
and the Bank; provided, however, that if the Company or the Bank refuse to execute such mutual release, the
Executive’s obligation to execute and not revoke the release as a precondition to receiving such severance
benefits shall terminate. The mutual release agreement shall release the Company and the Bank from any and all
claims and other actions by Executive and it shall also release the Executive from any and all claims and other
actions by the Company and the Bank.”

2. Effectiveness. This Amendment shall be deemed effective as of the date first above written, as if executed on such
date. Except as expressly set forth herein, this Amendment shall not by implication or otherwise alter, modify, amend or in
any way affect any of the terms, conditions, obligations, covenants or agreements contained in the Employment Agreement,
all of which are ratified and affirmed in all respects and shall continue in full force and effect and shall be otherwise
unaffected.

3. Governing Law. This Amendment and the rights and obligations hereunder shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of Hawaii applicable to contracts entered into and to be performed entirely within the
State of Hawaii, except to the extent that federal law controls.

4. Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall for all purposes be
deemed an original, and all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Bank and the Executive have duly executed this Second Amendment as of the day
and year first above written

TERRITORIAL SAVINGS BANK

February 27, 2013 By: /s/ Kirk W. Caldwell

Date Name: Kirk W. Caldwell
Title: Chairman of the Compensation Committee

February 27, 2013 By:  /s/ Vernon Hirata
Date Name: Vernon Hirata
Title: Executive
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Exhibit 23
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors Territorial Bancorp Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statements No. 333-168839 and No. 333-170579 on Form S-
8 of Territorial Bancorp Inc. of our reports dated March 15, 2013, with respect to the consolidated balance sheets of
Territorial Bancorp Inc. as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated statements of income,
comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-
year period ended December 31, 2012, and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2012, which reports appear in the December 31, 2012 annual report on Form 10-K of Territorial Bancorp Inc.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Honolulu, Hawaii
March 15, 2013
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Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Allan S. Kitagawa, certify that:
1) I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Territorial Bancorp Inc.;

2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this renoﬁ , fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the reglstrant as of,. and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4) The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-1 5(f) and 15d-1 S(t)) for the registrant and have: . :

a) designed such disclosure controls and proce'dufes, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including:its consolidated subsidiary, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the -
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presentéd in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial repofting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in.the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5) The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s Board of Directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 15, 2013

/s/ Allan S. Kitagawa

Allan S. Kitagawa o ; c
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief
Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Melvin M. Miyamoto, certify that:
1) I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Territorial Bancorp Inc.;

2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in
all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods

presented in this report;

4) The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiary, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5) The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s Board of Directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 15, 2013

/s/ Melvin M. Miyamoto

Melvin M. Miyamoto
Senior Vice President and Treasurer
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Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Territorial Bancorp Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report”), the undersigned, Allan S.
Kitagawa, Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and Melvin M. Miyamoto, Senior
Vice President and Treasurer, each certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to best of his knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934;
and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results
of operations of the Company.

/s/ Allan S. Kitagawa Date: March 15 2013
Allan S. Kitagawa
Chairman of the Board, President and

Chief Executive Officer

/s/ Melvin M. Miyamoto ‘ Date: March 15, 2013

Melvin M. Miyamoto
Senior Vice President and Treasurer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Territorial Bancorp Inc. and will be
retained by Territorial Bancorp Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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; e Suite 2200
. Monolulu, Hawaii 9681‘3
Aina Haina Branch
820 W. Hind Drive, Suite 118
Honolulu, Hawaii 96814
Ala Moana Center Branch
Street | evel, Mauka
1450 Ala Moana Boulevard, #1052
Honolulu, Hawali 96814
Downtown Branch
1000 Bishop Street
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

: ﬁawaii Kal Branch

Hawail Kai Shopping Center
377 Keahole Steget
Honolulu, Hawaii 96825
Hilo Branch
Waiakea Center
315 Makaala Street
Hilo, Hawall 9672
Kahala Branch
4819 Kilauea Avenue
Honolulu, Hawail 96816
Kahulyi Branch
Kaahumanu Center
275 Kaehumanu Avenue
Kabwilul, Maui, Hawail 96732
Kailua Branch
19 Oneawa Street
Katlus, Hawali 86734
Kalmuld Branch
1108 12th Avenue
Honoluly, Hawali 96816
Kalihi-Kapalama Branch
1199 Dillingham Boulevard
Honoluhu, Hawait 96817
Kamehameha Shopping
Center Branch

1620 Narth School Street, Suite 136

Honolulu, Hawall 96817

Kaneohe Branch
46-005 Kawa Street
Kaneohe, Hawali 96744
Kapahulu Branch
Kilchana Square

1016 Kapahulu Avenue
Honeluly, Hawail 2681

Kapolei Branch

Ace Center at Kapolei
480 Kamaokita Boulevar.
Kapolei, Hawaii 96707
Kauai Branch

Kukui Grove Shopping
4393 Kukui Grove Stree
Lihue, Kaual, Hawaii 96
Kihei Branch

Azeka Shopping Center
1279 South Kihei Road,
Kihel, Hawall 96753
Kona Branch
Crassroads Shepping C
75-1027 Henry Street, ¢
Kailua-Kona, Hawali 96
Lahaina Branch

Old Lahaina Center
170 Papalaua Street, U

~4.ahaina, Hawaii 96761

McCully Branch
1111 MeCully Street
Honoelulu, Hawali 9682
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Mililani Branch
Town Center of Milifani

95-1249 Meheula Park Way, Unit 168
Mitilani, Hawali 96789

Nuuanu Branch

Nuuanu Shopping Center

1613 Nuuanu Avenue, B6

Honolulu, Hawall 26817

Peart City Branch

Peart City Shopping Center

850 Kamehameha Highway, Suite B2
Pear] City, Hawali 96782

Pearlridge Branch

98-084 Kamehameha Highway

Alea, Hawall 26701

Piikoi Branch

1159 5. Beretania Street

Honoluly, Hawalii 96814

Salt Lake Branch

Salt Lake Shopping Center

848 Ala Lilikoi Street

Honolulu, Hawail 96818

Waipahu Branch
Waipahu Town Center
94-050 Farrington Highway
Waipahu, Hawail 96797

Waipio Branch

Laniakea Plaza

94-1221 Ka Uka Boulevard, #102
Waipahu, Hawali 96797




